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SECTION A: FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR 

 

Significant progress has been made in addressing the triple challenges facing our district 

which is under development, poverty and unemployment.  

As the Executive Mayor of the district; I am pleased with monumental strides that have been 

made to address service delivery backlogs. It is imperative for me to indicate that this 

progress would not have been achieved without the support of various sector departments, 

state agencies, private partners, civil society stakeholders and most importantly our 

communities.  

To our stakeholders and communities, let’s reiterate the fact that we are a people centred municipality and 

we have created platforms that are aimed at strengthening our relations with them.  

We have held a series of Mayoral Outreaches that were aimed at maintaining a   continuous process of 

engagements between government and citizenry through which accountability was maintained and 

communities were asserted as co-creators of solutions to the broader district socio-economic challenges. 

This annual report will also be paramount, as it will highlight significant progress that has been made, as we 

are all aware that as the country we are celebrating 20 years of democracy in 2014. These celebrations 

should be an opportunity for the people of the district to reflect and measure the impact that we have 

collectively made in improving livelihoods of our communities. As we reflect on this annual report, let’s also 

be mindful of more work that still lies ahead, as the third decade of our democracy will require acceleration 

of new approaches in line with the National Development Plan (NDP).  

As we step into the new financial year, we must collectively move with speed in transforming our plans as 

contained in the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) into tangible deliverables that will contribute immensely 

in addressing service delivery backlogs.  

We have put together various strategies in place, as part of our concerted effort to achieve clean audit 

opinion by 2014; these measures will go a long way in our approaches of attaining clean administration. Let 

me take this opportunity to thank our stakeholders and communities for their contribution into the 

development of this district. 

In conclusion, let me thank all the employees of the district municipality who have continued to provide 

valuable services to our communities.  

____________________ 

CLLR. EUNICE DIKO  

EXECUTIVE MAYOR 
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SECTION B: STATEMENT BY THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

 

Undoubtedly, Alfred Nzo District Municipality, continues to make strides in turning-

around not only the performance of the institution, but also its control environment, 

which will ultimately contribute towards better improvement of our financial and 

human resource systems. The commitment shown by both the Political and 

Administrative leadership, in ensuring that we achieve the clean administration by 2014 

will take the institution to higher level. Alfred Nzo District Municipality, is undoubtedly on 

the road to recovery despite the numerous legacy challenges facing the municipality. 

What will make the turn-around of this municipality to be a success is the commitment 

that has been made by the new leadership of the municipality as a collective, as well as the positive 

attitude and the acknowledgement of our weakness in order for us to be assisted where possible, in 

coming up with realistic and achievable strategies and mechanisms to overcome those challenges. 

As a municipality, we are mindful of our target for a clean audit by 2014 and for certain we will not leave 

that to chance and indeed we will work tirelessly to achieve that target before it is due. We also 

acknowledge that we are a government in our own right, and that through the spirit of cooperative 

government we will continue to work very closely with the other spheres of government in particular, the 

Provincial Departments and National Treasury and organs of state such as the Auditor General’s office, to 

name but a few, in order for us to achieve our desired objectives. 

However it should be understood that this is a completely new municipality with added responsibilities and 

expectation which translate to more challenges than there were before, and notwithstanding that, as a 

responsible municipality we will not wish away those challenges, but rather we have already taken 

ownership of all the liabilities and irregularities of the previous Council and made serious commitment and 

endeavour to remedy the situation. 

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee is fully functional and playing its oversight role in the manner 

expected of it  has imaged as one of the leading municipalities in the expenditure of the MIG grant as 

well as being number one nationally in creating employment through EPWP. 

Admittedly, the new challenge that has emerged in the infancy stages of this new Council is the  

imbalance  brought  about  by  the  service  delivery  levels  of  the  newly  incorporated municipalities of 

Mbizana Municipality and Ntabankulu Municipality in relation to the extent of service delivery 

achievements that had been made in the old Alfred Nzo District Municipality. As such our priorities have 

been rearranged as a result of the imbalance. 

Overall, the performance of the municipality has improved remarkably and for certain the environment 

that prevails is conducive to good working order and for that reason there can never be any reasons for 

failure. 

 

_____________________________ 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER M.Z. SILINGA 
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SECTION C. OVERVIEW OF THE MUNICIPALITY 

C.1. VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT 

The Alfred Nzo District Municipality set its vision and mission 2012-2017 where it aimed to have all plans and 

activities aligned and channeled towards its achievement. 

 

C.1.1. VISION 

“A self-sustainable municipality that guarantees effective and efficient rural development”. 

 

C.1.2. MISSION 

Creating a conducive environment by improving human capabilities and enhancing relevant skills, and 

maximizing the utilization of natural resources in order to improve quality of life for its communities. 

 

C.1.3. MOTTO 

“To be a place of diverse heritage” 

 

C.1.4. VALUES 

Humanity,  

Professionalism,  

Responsiveness,  

Respect,  

Transparency,  

Courtesy,  

Accountability,  

Trustworthiness and  

Teamwork 
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C.2. GEOGRAPHIC PROFILE  

 

MAP 1: LOCALITY 

 

 

 

Source: ANDM SDF 2011/12 

 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality is situated in the North Eastern corner of the Eastern Cape Province.  It  

stretches  from  the  Drakensberg  Mountains,  borders  Lesotho  in  the  West, Sisonke District Municipality to 

the North and O.R. Tambo District Municipality in the East and South. 

The Municipality covers the jurisdiction comprising of four local municipalities i.e. Matatiele, Umzimvubu, 

Ntabankulu and Mbizana.    In terms of area of cover it comprises 11119 km2 in size and the four local 

municipalities are summarized as follows: 

 

Table 1: Geographic composition of Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

Municipality Area (Km2) Percentage of the District Area (%) 

Matatiele LM 4352 39 

Umzimvubu LM 2506 23 

Ntabankulu LM 1455 13 

Mbizana LM 2806 25 

ANDM 11119 100 

Source: Statistics SA 2011  
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 Table 2: Local Municipalities and Key Towns within ANDM 

Local Municipality Towns 

Umzimvubu LM 
Mount Ayliff 

Mount Frere 

Matatiele LM 

Matatiele 

Maluti 

Cedarvillle 

Ntabankulu LM Ntabankulu 

Mbizana LM Bizana 

TOTAL 7 Towns 

Source: Statistics SA 2011 

 

Demographic profile  

Alfred Nzo District Municipality had a total population of 801344 (STATSSA 2011). The population of Alfred 

Nzo is unevenly distributed amongst the four local municipalities.  Mbizana has the highest population 

such that approximately 35.1% of the people within the district reside within it. This is followed by 

Matatiele which accommodate approximately 25.4% of the population. A substantial amount of the 

population also resides within Umzimvubu as well such that approximately 24% of the district population 

accounts for Umzimvubu population. Ntabankulu accounts for 15.4% of the population which implies that 

it is the area with least population within Alfred Nzo. Just more than half of the ANDM population is female 

(54.27%), which implies that the District and Local Municipalities need to ensure that women’s issues 

remain high on the developmental agenda. 

The elderly population is relatively small contributing only (6.27%) in relation to the potentially 

economically active population (52.9%), which suggests that the economically active population (15yrs-

65yrs) should be able to support the elderly population. However, due to the high unemployment rate, 

the reality is that many of the potentially economically active population are economically dependent 

on pensioners and grant-eamers within the household. 
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C.3. SOCIO ECONOMIC CONTEXT 

The Alfred Nzo District is characterized by poor socio economic conditions and low levels of development 

which is not an uncommon trend in the region. 

 

C.3.1. ECONOMIC SECTORS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE 

The figure below shows the total Gross Value Adding (GVA) of the district relative to that of other districts in 

the province.  Alfred Nzo is the least significant contributor to the provincial GVA, contributing less than 1% 

of the province’s GVA. 

 

Figure 1:  Sector Contributions to the District Economy 

 

Source: (Census 2011) 

 

The district local economy is heavily reliant on the Community Services sector which contributes 28% of the 

Gross Value Adding (GVA) in the District.  This includes salaries and  wages  for  government  employees  

such  as  office  workers,  nurses,  teachers  and doctors. 

The second highest contributor to the District’s economy is Wholesale / Trade (15% of GVA). This sector is 

underpinned by the public sector based expenditure through government employment and social grants. 

The third highest contributor to the District’s economy is Agriculture (12% of GVA) and Manufacturing is the 

fourth highest contributor by 10% to the district economy. The contribution of the other sectors is very limited 

with construction contributing only6% and transport sector contributing 6.4%.  This is a reflection of a 

relatively large number of informal taxi operators in the area.  
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C.3.2. INCOME LEVELS 

Income levels within the District are very low.   Only 6.6% of the economically active population has an 

income of more than R1601.00 per month.  The majority of the people within the district are having income 

that is less than R800 per month.  Municipal planning needs to focus strongly on local economic 

development initiatives that will enable the community to generate income. 

The absence of a higher income earning class limits the growth potential of the District in that it is this 

category that usually offers the necessary intellectual and financial capital to support growth. 

 

C.3.3. POVERTY LEVELS 

Increasing levels of absolute poverty have been recorded in the Eastern Cape and 74% of the people of 

the Eastern Cape live below the poverty line of R800 or less a month. Poverty levels vary from district to 

district but in Alfred Nzo 40.4% of the population live below the poverty line. High poverty levels imply a high 

dependency on social assistance in the form of grants. Municipal planning needs to focus strongly on 

poverty alleviation mechanisms. 

 

C.3.4. EMPLOYMENT LEVELS AND TRENDS 

The Alfred Nzo District has very low levels of employment and a high percentage of people who are not 

economically active.  This in turn accounts for the high poverty levels and low income levels. High 

unemployment rates impact negatively on municipalities as low affordability levels result in a poor payment 

rate for services. 

A chart below provide a brief overview of employment levels and trends within the ANDM. 

Unemployment/employment rate by local municipality;    

 

Source: Census 2011 

  

Matatiele Umzimvubu Mbizana Ntabankulu Alfred Nzo

Employed 61.3 54.1 56.4 49.4 56.5

Unemployed 38.7 45.9 43.6 50.6 43.5
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C.3.5. DEPENDENCY ON SOCIAL GRANTS 

 

The Alfred Nzo District to some level is dependent on government grants to support the welfare of its 

population.  A total of 314 489 people or 36 % of the population in the district are dependent on social 

grants: 

 

Table 3: Number of grants per municipality 

Municipality Grants Percent 

Umzimvubu 79 789 36.16% 

Matatiele 80 493 31.11% 

Mbizana 100 585 35.95% 

Ntabankulu 53 622 37.93% 

ANDM 314, 489 35.92% 

Source: Statistics South Africa: Census 2011 

 

Table 4: Breakdown of grants in each local municipality 

Municipality 
Old age 
pension 

Disability 
grant 

Child 
support 
Grant 

Care 
depende
ncy 
grant 

Foster 
care 
grant 

Grant in 
aid 

Social 
relief 

Multiple 
social 
grants 

Total 

Umzimvubu 20.87% 7.43% 68.65% 1.26% 0.15% 1.38% 0.00% 0.26% 100.00% 

Matatiele 22.59% 5.64% 69.02% 1.37% 0.06% 0.86% 0.31% 0.16% 100.00% 

Mbizana 17.38% 4.76% 75.87% 1.13% 0% 0.50% 0.21% 0.12% 100.00% 

Ntabankulu 19.37% 4.98% 71.78% 1.20% 0.23% 1.90% 0% 0.50% 100.00% 

Alfred Nzo 
DM 

26% 8% 63% 2% 0% 1% 0% 0% 100 % 

Source: Statistics South Africa: Census 2011 

  

Most  grants  are  child  support  grants  (63%)  followed  by  people  receiving  old  age pensions (26%).  The 

number of people receiving disability grants is low at 10,466 considering that approximately 8% of the 

population, approximately 32 585 has at least one form of disability. 

The table above points to the fact that there is little regional variation in the pattern of support grants 

between local municipalities in the District.  According to South African Social Security Agency beneficiary 

report indicates that beneficiaries of grants within the district stood at 247 970 and at estimated monthly 

cost of R157, 409,659 which varies from month to month.  
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SECTION D. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The annual report for the 2012/13 financial year marks the second financial year of the current Council. Once 

again during the financial year under review ANDM audit outcomes were negative.  

This report will highlight achievements and challenges experienced during this financial year in each key 

performance area. 

D.1. MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION AND INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT  

 

Achievements: Challenges 

Organogram approved by the Council ANDM could not fill all critical positions 

411 posts were filled resulting in a vacancy percentage of 

51.36% for the period. 
Lack of office space  

Performance agreements for all Section 56 managers were 

signed and approved 
 

ANDM developed and adopted a workplace skills plan for the 

2012/13 financial year. 
Non completion of skills audit 

Employees are trained on various training programmes  

Councilors received training.  

In terms of institutional arrangements ANDM has the following 

structures e.g. council, municipal public accounts committee, 

audit committee, district intergovernmental structures. 

No- sitting of standing committees in line 

with the adopted year planner/calendar. 

 

D.2. BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY  

 

The district municipality is still faced with huge backlogs in water and sanitation. This situation has been 

worsened by the incorporation on Mbizana and Ntabankulu to the district. Some of the highlights and 

challenges of service delivery include the following: 

Achievements: Challenges 

ANDM has performed remarkable in terms of MIG expenditure 

where it has been declared the best performing municipality in 

the province as a result it received a Vuna Award for leading 

in spending the MIG allocation. 

Huge backlogs on water and sanitation  

Number of households with water above RDP standards 74557. 
Limited financial resources to address 

backlog and dilapidated infrastructure. 

The sanitation target for the year 2012/2013 was 38188 and 

36404 was achieved 

Supporting departments do not respond 

promptly on compliance approvals i.e. 

water licenses, ROD’s on EIA’s and basic 

assessment conducted. 

In terms of water provision, the set target for the year 

2012/2013 was 7648, however, only 589 has been achieved. 

Mostly, the water projects are implanted 

over multi years and even though 

infrastructure is installed, in most cases the 

water sources are still under development. 

The municipality has observed great improvements with 

regards to Blue Drop and Green Drop compliance status, 

where it has recently achieved position 4 in the provincial 

ratings. 

Lack of access to some villages which 

impacts badly on service delivery. 

 

Major challenges that were our biggest 

obstacles in achieving our set targets are 

attributed to contracts of contractors that 

had to be terminated due to poor 

performance. Staff retention. 
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D.3. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  

 

Achievements: Challenges 

Full transfer of Municipal Health Services to the DM was finally 

done. 

Insufficient budget to perform all the 

departmental programmes and activities 

Municipal Health Services has extended the food safety 

programme to rural areas of the district. 
 

Health and hygiene awareness campaigns have been 

conducted for all communities with and without water and 

sanitation projects, as long as they have residents. 

 

ANDM participated on SALGA EC municipal games for 2012, 

and was also given a torch to host SALGA games 2013. 
 

The district participated in netball games that were hosted in 

Rustenburg. 
 

Ngqindilili heritage site was identified and a monument 

erected by ANDM 
 

The district successfully facilitated OR Tambo memorial lecture.  

Disaster Management embarked on preventive measures in 

dealing with disasters (adoption of the inclusive DMP) 
 

Fire Safety Plan for the district was adopted  

 

D.4. MUNICIPAL LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOMENT FRAMEWORK 

 

Achievements: Challenges 

The District Municipality continues to focus on agriculture and 

livestock improvement in developing the economy. 

Lack of integration and coordination of 

LED initiatives. 

Number of Co-operatives and SMMEs were supported through 

awareness raising workshops regarding funding opportunities. 
Silo mentality 

During the financial year under review ANDM developed and 

adopted the area-wide LED Strategy together with SMME and 

Tourism Sector Plans. 

Limited financial resources for the 

implementation of LED initiatives. 

District Support Team was established during the previous 

financial year and is functional. 
 

MOU with Service SETA to provide bursary to youth for tertiary 

education was signed. 
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D.5. FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT  

 

The district municipality is both a water services authority and provider for the water and sanitation   

function. For the better part of the financial year, the district municipality was without a Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) as he resigned during September 2012.  The position was vacant for a period of seven months 

until a candidate was appointed effective from May 2013.     

Due to the rural nature of the district municipality, it is highly grant dependent and only manages to raise 

3% as own revenue out of a total budget of R900 million.  Collection of revenue has significantly improved 

to approximately 39% of actual billings.  However, the collection of old outstanding debt continues to 

remain a challenge.   

The district municipality has drastically improved in ensuring that creditors are paid within 30days in line with 

legislative requirements.  Also, proper SCM processes have been put in place to ensure that the turn-

around time in the awarding of bids is improved.  Proper internal controls have also been implemented to 

ensure that we fully account for all assets and liabilities.  

The support provided by the National Treasury through the MFIP program has greatly assisted the district 

municipality in improving operations within the revenue management unit. 

 

Achievements: Challenges 

Appointment of a Chief Financial Officer. Poor collection of revenue 

Improvement in Revenue Collection to 39% of actual billings. 
Escalating debt owed by domestic 

consumers for water services 

Improvement in SCM processes resulting in the reduced turn-

around time in the appointment of service providers. 

High indigent rate 

Approximately 90% of audit queries raised by the AG during 

the 2011/12 financial year were successfully cleared. 

High level of unfilled vacant posts 

The District Municipality is financially viable with sufficient cash 

reserves available to sustain its on-going operational costs. 

Accuracy of consumer data-base 

 Contracts management 

 
The financial management system 

remains a challenge 

 

 

D.6. GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Our Council has met ten (10) times during the financial year and all council meetings preceded by Mayoral 

Committee and Standing Committees.  IDP and Budget road-shows were held in all local municipalities 

(with the exaptation of Matatiele Local Municipality) before adoption. Mayoral imbizos were conducted by 

the municipality in soliciting inputs from the public relating to the IDP. All established Council structures e.g. 

Audit committee etc. have been functional during the financial year and reports tabled to Council. The 

communication strategy is informed by communication plans emanating from the local municipalities. 

Achievements: Challenges 

  

Target of four (4) Council meetings convened per annum was 

exceeded. 

Committees (sec 80) did not adhere to 

the approved Council Calendar. 

 

CONCLUSION  

A lot has been achieved during this financial year although there are still challenges. As this is the second 

annual report for this term, the administration would like to thank Council for the support provided and look 

forward to more fruitful years to come. 
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CHAPTER 1: HUMAN RESOURCES AND OTHER ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT – (KPA 1) 

1.1. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

Section 66 of the Local Government: The Municipal Systems Act (Act No 32 of 2000) as amended requires a 

Municipal Manager to develop a staff establishment for the municipality and submit the staff establishment 

to the municipal council for approval. In line with the above legislative framework and other pertinent 

employment regulations the ANDM has reviewed its staff establishment for the financial year 2012-2013. 

The structure had a total of 845 posts for the period and sum of 411 posts are filled resulting in a vacancy 

percentage of 51.36% for the period. The municipality administration is comprised of the following 

departments: 

 Office of the Municipal Manager  

 Corporate Services 

 Budget and Treasury  

 Community Development Services  

 Infrastructure Development and Municipal Services  

 Planning and Economic Development  

The municipal manager together with four section 56 managers have all signed annual performance 

agreements for the year under review and submitted to the relevant authorities that is Department of Local 

Government and Traditional Affairs and Provincial Legislature. It is essential to note that positions for 

Executive Managers: Corporate Services and Planning and Economic Development were filled during the 

second quarter of 2012/13 financial year. 

It is also of importance to note that the CFO resigned during the first quarter and the Accounting Officer: Mr 

Moyo terminated his services in the second quarter of the financial year 2012-13 and as such acting CFO 

and Municipal Manager were appointed by Council. The positions of Municipal Manager and CFO were 

filled on the fourth quarter of financial year 2012/13.   

The municipality structure reflected below covers the top levels only and the comprehensive adopted 

organizational structure is attached to the report as an annexure for further reference. 

  

Municipal 
Manager 

Filled  

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Filled  

Executive 
Manager: IDMS 

Filled  

Planning & 
Economic 

Development 

Filled  

Executive Manager: 
Corporate Services 

 

Filled  

t 

Executive Manager: 
Community 

Development Services 

vacant 
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1.2. STAFF DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

The municipality developed and adopted a workplace skills plan for the financial year 2012/13. A number 

of training programmes were rolled out and benefitted the officials/ office- bearers which could be 

summarised as shown below: 

 

INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME  

 

Training Intervention 

BENEFICIARIES 

Departments 
Gender 

Total 
Female Male 

Internship: HRD CPS 1 0 1 

Internship: Legal Services CPS 0 0  

Internship: Communications MM’s Office 1 0 1 

Internship: HRM CPS 0 0  

Internship: MM’s Office MM’s Office  1 0 1 

Internship: Admin Support CPS 0 1 1 

Internship: SPU MM’s Office 1 0 1 

Internship: Fleet Management BTO 1 0 1 

Internship: ICT CPS 1 1 2 

Internship: BTO BTO 3 6 9 

Internship: Internal Audit MM’s  Office 1  1 

Internship : PMU IDMS 1 1 2 

Internship: CDS CDS  1 1 

Total   11 10 21 
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STUDY ASSISTANCE PROGRAMME  

 

Training Intervention 

BENEFICIARIES Grand Total 

Department 
Gender Levels Occupational 

Category 
Total 

Female Male 

National Diploma : Public 

Management  
Speaker’s Office   1 Legislator 1 

BA: Development Studies BTO 1  Clerical & Admin 1 

Honours in Spatial Planning Planning and LED  2 
Community & Social 

Service 
2 

Bcom Human Resource 

Management 
BTO 1  Clerical & Admin 1 

M. Tech: Electrical Engineering CPS  1 Professional 1 

B.Compt BTO  1 Professional 1 

Postgraduate Diploma in 

Monitoring and Evaluation 
MM’s Office  1 Management 1 

BA Human Social Studies BTO  1 Professional 1 

Bcom Accounting Science BTO  1 Professional 1 

Honours in Public Governance CPS 1  Professional 1 

Masters in Public Administration CDS 1  Clerical & Admin 1 

Postgraduate Diploma in 

Management 

CDS,CPS, MM’s 

Office, IDMS, 

Planning & LED 

11  
Professionals  

& Clerical & Admin 
11 

CIA part 1 and 2 MM’s office  1 Professional 1 

Grade 12 CDS 1  

Community & 

Personnel Service 

Workers 

1 

Total   16 9  25 

 

SKILLS PROGRAMME 

 

Training Intervention 

BENEFICIARIES Grand Total 

Department 
Gender Levels Occupational 

Category 
Total 

Female Male 

VIP Premier Basic CPS 1  Professional 1 

Supervisory Management IDMS 1  Management 1 

Leanership : Applied Population 

Science 

IDMS, Planning and 

LED 
2 1 

Management  

& Professional 
3 

Municipal Finance Management 

Programme 

 

BTO, MM’s Office, 

Planning and 

LED,IDMS 

2 3 
Management 

& Professional   
5 

Municipal Performance and 

Management Audit 
MM’s Office , CPS 1 2 

Management       

& Professionals 
3 

Vmware Sphere 5 CPS 1 1 professionals 2 

Cisco Certifies Network Associate CPS  1 Professional 1 

Training of Training Committee 

CPS, CDS, BTO, 

IDMS & MM’s 

Office 

8 8 

Management 

Professional 

Clerical & Admin 

16 

Asset and Disposal Management BTO 1 1 Management 2 
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Training Intervention 

BENEFICIARIES Grand Total 

Department 
Gender Levels Occupational 

Category 
Total 

Female Male 

& Professional 

Public Participation MM’s Office 1  Clerical & Admin 1 

Logistic Management  BTO  2 Professional 2 

Intermediate Archives and 

Records Management  
CPS 1  Professional 1 

Municipal Minimum Competency 

MM’s  Office, 

Planning & LED, 

BTO, IDMS, CDS 

3 5 Management 8 

Demand   Management BTO 1 1 Professionals 2 

Report Writing and Minute Taking 
CPS, IDMS, CDS, 

MM’s office 
5 1 

Clerical & Admin 

Workers 
6 

Payroll Administration CPS  1 
Clerical  and admin 

workers 
1 

Total  28 27  55 
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1.3. TRAINING FOR COUNCILLORS 

 

Training Intervention 

BENEFICIARIES Grand Total 

Department 
Gender Levels Occupational 

Category 
Total 

Female Male 

Municipal Performance and 

Management Audit  

Speaker’s Office  4 Legislators 4 

Certificate in Public Administration 

for Community 

Service 

Speaker’s Office 3 2 Legislators 5 

Training of training Committee Speakers Office  1 3 Legislators 4 

 

 

Municipal Minimum Competency Speaker’s Office 1  Legislators 1 

Advanced Certificate in Municipal 

Governance 

Speaker’s Office 1 4 Legislators 5 

IDP Training Speaker’s  Office 5 3 Legislators 8 

Total   11 16  27 

 

1.4. KEY HR. STATISTICS PER FUNCTIONAL AREA 

 

1.4.1.MUNICIPAL MANAGER, SECTION 56 AND LINE MANAGERS 

 
Approved positions (e.g. MM-S56 

& Line Managers) 

Number of approved and 

budgeted posts per position 
Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Municipal Manager 1 1 0 

2  Executive Managers 5 4 1 

3 Line Managers 28 28 0 

Total 34 33 1 

 

1.4.2. STAFF COMPLEMENT IN THE TECHNICAL SERVICES 

 
Approved positions (e.g MM-S56 

& Line Managers) 

Number of approved and 

budgeted posts per position 
Filled posts Vacant posts 

1 Senior Manager 01 01 00 

2 Sectional Heads 05 05 0 

3 Project Manager 02 02 00 

4 Supervisor 01 01 00 

5 Technicians 25 05 25 

6 Administrators 22 03 19 

7 Plumber 65 38 27 

8 Driver 06 02 04 

9 General Assistant 66 43 23 

10 Superintendents 13 09 04 

11 Operators 72 59 13 

TOTAL 283 168 115 
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1.5. TECHNICAL STAFF REGISTERED WITH PROFESSIONAL BODIES 

 

Technical Service 

(e.g  water, 

Electricity etc...) 

Total number of 

technical service 

Managers 

Total  number  

registered in the 

accredited 

professional body 

Total number 

pending 

registration 

confirmation in the  

accredited 

professional body 

Total number not 

yet registered in 

the  accredited 

professional body 

Director (IDMS) 1 1 0 0 

WSP 5 1 4 4 

WSA 4 4 0 0 

PMU 4 1 3 3 

 

1.6. LEVELS OF EDUCATION AND SKILLS 

             

Total number of staff 

Number of  

Staff without  

Grade 12 

Number of staff with 

Senior Certificate 

only 

Number of staff with 

Tertiary/accredited professionals 

training 

439 143 119 177 

 

1.7. TRENDS ON TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 

  

The table below reflects the Personnel Expenditure rends during the last three financial years: 

Financial Years Total number of staff 
Personnel  expenditure  (salary  and  salary 

related) 

2010-2011 304 R64 801 360 

2011-2012 423 R92 233 206 

2012-2013 411 R97 841 399 

 

 

Personnel Expenditure over the period of three financial years has shown increase and this is due to 

creation of new posts, increase in labour costs and annual increments.  During 2012-2013 financial year 

some staff members resigned and few were deceased.  
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1.8. LIST OF PENSION AND MEDICAL AIDS TO WHOM EMPLOYEES BELONG 

 

Names of pension fund Number of members 

 

Names of Medical 

Aids 
Number of members 

Cape retirement fund 12 Bonitas 165 

Samwu provident fund 103 LA Health 67 

Natal joint pension fund 15 Samwumed 15 

Municipal employees 

pension fund 
153 Hosmed 7 

Municipal councillors 

pension Fund 
6 Fedhealth 1 

Government Employees 

Pension Fund  
71 Keyhealth 1 

TOTAL 360 TOTAL 256 

 

1.9. DISCLOSURES - COUNCILORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

This section covers the municipal expenditure on both Councilors and Senior Management remuneration 

reflecting the current financial year.    The increase noted during 2012 / 2013 financial year is due to annual 

adjustment increment and the determination of the upper limits for Councilors. 

 

1.9.1. REMUNERATION FOR SENIOR MANAGERS: 2012/2013 FINANCIAL YEAR 

NAME AND SURNAME  
TOTAL 

PACKAGE 
JOB TITLE 

ENGAGEMENT 

DATE 

1. Mr. W Sobahle R 930 000.00 
Executive Manager: Office of the 

Executive Mayor 
01-Aug-11 

2.Mr. L Fokazi R 1 262 280.00 CFO 02-May-13 

3. Mr. ON Hlazo R 1 262 280.00 EXECUTIVE MANAGER: IDMS 01-Aug-09 

4. Mr.MZ Silinga R 1 300 500.00 MUNICIPAL MANAGER 02-Apr-13 

5. Mr.MSA Kraai R 1 262 280.00 EXECUTIVE MANAGER: LED&PLANNING 16-Nov-12 

6. Ms. NN Qaba R 1 262 280.00 EXECUTIVE MANAGER:CPS 16-Nov-12 

 

1.9.2 REMUNERATION FOR COUNCILLORS: 2012/2013 FINANCIAL YEAR 

Category Vote 2011/12 2012/13 

Executive Mayor’s allowance R647 521.43 R 410 723 

Deputy Executive Mayor’s allowance R0.00 R 84 811 

Council Speakers allowance R523 310.54 R 272 791 

Mayoral Committee’s allowance R827 568.75 R 1 950 424 

Councillors allowance R1 545 157.53 R 3 393 289 

Councillors’ contribution to medical aid and pension R582 422.77 R 871 337 

TOTAL R4 125 981.02 R 6 983 375 
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1.10. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY RATIO 

The municipality has developed an Employment Equity Plan (EEP) informed and guided by the Employment 

Equity Act no 55 of 1998 and National Department of Labour’s Code of Good Practice on Employment 

Equity Plans. The main objective of the plan seeks to achieve reasonable progress towards equity in the 

workforce. 

 

 

 

Occupational Levels 

Male Female 
Foreign 

Nationals 
Total 

A C I W A C I W Male Female 

Top management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Senior management 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0   4 

Professionally 

qualified and 

experienced 

specialists and mid-

management 

41 0 0 0 26 1 0 0 0 0 

 

 

68 

Skilled technical 

and academically 

qualified workers, 

junior management, 

supervisors, 

foremen, and 

superintendents 

          
 

 

 

 

124 

102 6 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 

          

Semi-skilled  and 

discretionary 

decision making 

 

48 

 

3 

 

0 

 

0 

 

84 

 

3 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

138 

Unskilled and 

defined decision 

making 

52 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 58 

Temporal 

employees 

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 

GRAND TOTAL 248 9 0 0 134 4 0 0 1 0 396 

            

 

1.11 EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES 

 

 

 

 

Occupational Levels 

Male Female 
Foreign 

Nationals 
Total 

A C I W A C I W Male Female 

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professionally 

qualified and 

experienced 

specialists and mid-

management 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Skilled technical          

and academically 

qualified workers, 

junior management, 

supervisors, 

foremen, and 

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 
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Occupational Levels 

Male Female 
Foreign 

Nationals 
Total 

A C I W A C I W Male Female 

superintendents 

Semi-skilled and  

discretionary  

decision making 

 

1 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

1 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

2 

Unskilled and 

defined decision 

making 

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL PERMANENT 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Temporary 

employees 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GRAND TOTAL 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 
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1.12 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (PMS) 

 

The Municipality developed a Performance Management Framework, which requires to be reviewed 

annually. All Section 56 Managers signed Performance Agreements and were submitted to the Department 

of Local Government and Traditional Affairs and Provincial Legislature. 

 

1.12.1. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

 Indicator name 

Total  number of 

people (planned 

for) during the year 

under review 

Achieveme

nt level 

during the  

year under 

review 

Achievement 

percentage 

during the 

year 

Comments on the 

gap 

1 

Vacancy rate for all 

approved and  

budgeted posts 

67 31 46%  

2 

Percentage  of  

appointment in 

strategic positions 

(Municipal Manager 

and Section 56 

Managers) 

5 4 80%  

The Municipality 

experienced a 

number of delays as 

a result the position 

of Exec Manager 

CDS was not filled  

3 

Percentage  of    

Section  56 Managers 

including Municipal 

Managers who 

attended at least 1   

skill development 

training course within 

the FY 

5 4 80%  

  

Percentage of 

Managers in Technical  

Services with a 

professional 

qualification(IDMS) 

6 5 83%  

5 

Percentage of 

municipalities within the 

district area that have 

a fully functional 

Performance 

Management System 

(DM only) 

5 4 80%  

6 

Percentage   of   staff   

that have  undergone  

a  skills audit (including 

competency profiles) 

within the current 5 

year  term 

347 110 31%  

7 

Percentage  of     

councillors who 

attended a skill 

development training 

within the current 5 

year term 

40 27 67,5%  

8 Percentage of staff 3 3 100%  
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 Indicator name 

Total  number of 

people (planned 

for) during the year 

under review 

Achieveme

nt level 

during the  

year under 

review 

Achievement 

percentage 

during the 

year 

Comments on the 

gap 

complement with 

disability 

 
Percentage of 

female employees 
57 49 75% 

female 

 

employees have

 been given 

recognition during

    the 

recruitment period 

12 

Percentage of 

employees 

that are aged 35 or 

younger 

411 143 32%  

 

 

1.13 MAJOR CHALLENGES AND REMIDIAL ACTIONS 

 

 

Challenges Remedial Actions 

-Managers and supervisors still need more exposure 

on Performance Management in order to assist in the 

implementation of the system. 

-Regular workshops - Managers are undergoing 

management and leadership training through 

CPMD and the Management Leadership 

Programme to enrich their management skills. 

-Lack of time dedicated to the PMS process. 
-Regular emphasis of its importance in 

management meetings. 
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 OVERALL MUNICIPAL PERFORMANCE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012 /2013 

 

The municipality planned and budgeted for a total number of 230 projects or programmes for the financial 

year 2012/13.  The overall performance by the municipality as per the targets for the concerned financial 

year under review can be summarized as follows: 

 

 

 

 

The performance of the municipality for 2012/13 is almost identically to the performance for 2011/12 where 

the municipality obtained 47% of targets achieved, 29% of targets partially achieved and 24% of targets 

that were not achieved. The non-achievement of municipal targets can be mainly associated with lack of 

resources e.g. human resources capacity where the municipality had vacancies and the fact that most 

plans or policies were developed but were not finally adopted by Council. 
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CHAPTER 2: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS (KPA 2) 

2.1. WATER SERVICES 

  

A. WATER SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

The Municipality is a Water Services Authority under the Municipal Structures Act (No117 of 1998). The 

Municipality, being the WSA, has also decided to fulfill the Water Services Provider function for the local 

Municipalities that fall within its area of jurisdiction.  These services are performed under the infrastructure 

within the DM. The infrastructure department is split into three sections, the WSA, PMU and WSP. 

The WSA is responsible for the compilation of the Water Services Development plan (WSDP) and the Master 

Plans for sanitation & transport planning. It is also responsible for the verification and review of by-laws and 

tariffs in terms of the Water Services Act (108 of 1997). It is also responsible for the investigations and designs 

of all water schemes and extensions. 

The PMU deals with all capital and MIG funded projects in the entire district. These include water, sanitation, 

community facilities, and LED projects. This section also deals with the management of the funding of 

projects for which applications have been received and the implementation thereof. The strategic 

objectives of this unit are to provide services including engineering and community services to address the 

current backlogs. 

The WSP is responsible for the operations and maintenance of the water purification and sewerage 

treatment works in all local municipalities within ANDM (Matatiele, Umzimvubu, Mbizana and Ntabankulu 

local Municipalities). It is responsible for the bulk and reticulation networks in the aforementioned 

municipalities. It is responsible for the operations and maintenance of water services infrastructure 

management of the drought relief funding, also deals with sampling for water and effluent quality testing 

and compliance with legislative requirements (BDS & GDS). 

The key main stakeholders that are critical to the success of our effort to reduce backlog are listed as 

follows: 

 The entire community (beneficiaries) to be served with water to ensure ownership of the project. 

 Political leadership represented by Council who ensures that budget is equitably allocated to 

ensure that it addresses the imbalances of the past in line with the Government’s vision. 

 National and Provincial Government through Municipal Infrastructure Grant which ensures that 

budget is made available. 

 Contractors and professional service providers who forms part of business community to ensure that 

projects are implemented on time at the right quality. 

LUDEKE DAM CONSTRUCTION 
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B. LEVELS AND STANDARDS IN WATER SERVICES: 

The municipality provides a high level, RDP and below RDP standards level of services of water and 

sanitation. People sourcing water from springs, rainwater tanks, streams, rivers, dams, or water vendors are 

deemed to be unserved.  People sourcing water from within 200m from a standpipe in the rural areas are 

deemed to be served within the RDP Standards and people with ERF connections in the urban areas are 

deemed to be served with a high level service. 

The Municipality provides bulk services for water and Sanitation to Schools and clinics where the cost for 

connection is incurred by the respective sector departments. 

 

C. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN WATER SERVICES 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custome

r reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage 

of 

achieveme

nt during the 

year 

1 

Percentage of 

households with 

access to potable 

water 

Total h/hds 178347 

 

With Water 75146 

 

42% 

99126 

 

56% 

7648 

 

8% 

589 

 

0.6% 

0.6% 

2 

Percentage of 

indigent households 

with access to free 

basic potable 

Water 

75146 

 

42% 

99126 

 

56% 

7648 

 

8% 

7648 

 

0.6% 

7648 

 

0.6% 

4 

Percentage of 

clinics with access 

to potable water 

N/A     

5 

Percentage of 

schools with access 

to potable water 

N/A     

6 

Percentage of 

households using 

buckets 

N/A     

 

D. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN WATER SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

The major challenge that the municipality is currently facing is the reverse in backlogs resulting from the 

increase of a number of local municipalities it is serving. The verification reports show that there is a lot of 

backlog eradication, replacement and refurbishment of infrastructure that needs to be carried out at 

Mbizana and Ntabankulu areas.  One of the challenges that the Municipality is facing in water provisioning 

is the statutory obligations. The challenge lies when the supporting departments do not respond promptly 

on compliance approvals i.e water licenses, ROD’s on EIA’s and Basic Assessments conducted. This, 

sometimes, stalls progress of projects thereby delaying the backlog eradication processes. The other 

challenge that is usually overlooked is the poor performance by the contractors. 

These challenges need to be addressed in the following manner: - Strengthening relations with the support 

departments through the IGR process. It is imperative that the implementation of debt collection strategies 

and the compilation of the indigent register is done so that all consumers that do not qualify as indigent are 

billed to recover costs for operations and maintenance. 

Contractor development/ incubation programme had been identified and strict selection criteria with 

respect to appointment of contractors are our areas of focus to change the situation going forward. Staff 

development and training remains our other area of focus to try and mitigate the issue of staff retention. 
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2.2. ELECTRICITY SERVICES 

 

A. ELECTRICITY SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

The municipality does not provide electricity to its communities but plays a supporting role to its locals in 

terms of co-ordinating the main role players i.e. ESKOM, in the process of electrification. ESKOM is the 

licensed distributor of electricity in the majority of the municipal area with the exception of the town of 

Matatiele where Matatiele Local Municipality is the licensed distributor. 

The majority of the households do not have access to electricity services and this translate to 165093 of the 

households with only 46,2% having access to electricity.  Most of the affected areas are those identified to 

be remote in their set-up as the bulk of the municipal area is deemed to be rural.  The district municipality 

has completed the electricity sector plan for all four local municipalities. 

 

B. LEVELS AND STANDARDS IN ELECTRICAL SERVICES 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custome

r reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage 

of 

achieveme

nt during the 

year 

1 

Percentage of 

Households with 

access to electricity 

services 

 
 

 
   

2 

Percentage of 

indigent households 

with access to 

basic 

electricity services 

     

3 

Percentage of 

 

indigent households 

with access to free 

alternative energy 

sources 

     

 

C. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN ELECTRICITY SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

The major challenges include the National capacity challenge of ESKOM infrastructure. The other 

challenge is the inability of our Local Municipalities to provide this function on their own since they are not 

yet licensed to do so. This challenge goes on to the point where ESKOM as an accredited service provider, 

plans and implements on their own IGR where the Department of Minerals needs to be put on board with 

these issues so that without really involving the Local Municipalities. This as well needs to be addressed as 

there could be steering committees or any other committee where ESKOM accounts to. 
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2.3. SANITATION 

 

A. SANITATION SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

The Municipality provides sanitation for its entire jurisdiction i.e. Umzimvubu, Matatiele, Mbizana and 

Ntabankulu Local Municipalities. 

The Department operates the established 7 Sanitation Zone centres that are responsible to produce and 

construct sanitation facilities in the rural area. This activity is purely a labour intensive initiative. This is where 

the District Municipality manages to provide many job opportunities whilst providing the sanitation service 

to the community. It is through this initiative that the District Municipality received lots of incentives from the 

EPWP. Furthermore, implementation of the VIP toilets programme has also been extended to Mbizana and 

Ntabankulu local municipalities, the construction is done through normal tender processes and 

construction. It should be noted, however, that due to change from use of cement blocks for the building 

of toilets to precast type structure, the requirement for huge numbers of labour was reduced as the precast 

panels are not manufactured within the zone centres. 

 

B. LEVEL AND STANDARDS IN SANITATION SERVICES 

The  Municipality  provides  different  levels  of  services  in  Sanitation  under  the  Water Services Act (108 of 

1997).  People with flush toilets are deemed to be served with a high level of sanitation service. People with 

ventilated improved pits (VIP) are deemed to be served within the RDP standards of services.  People using 

unventilated pit latrines, buckets or no facility are deemed to be unserved. The municipality is implementing 

a movable toilet structure which is a precast type. 

 

C. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custome

r reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage 

of 

achieveme

nt during the 

year 

1 

Percentage of 

household s with 

access  to 

sanitation services 

Total h/hds 178437 

79773 

43.3% 

99857 

 

56.6% 

38188 

 

38% 

36404 

 
36% 

2 

Percentage of 

indigent households 

with access  to free  

basic sanitation 

services 

79773 

43.3% 

99857 

 

56.6% 

38188 

 

38% 

36404 

 

36% 

36% 

4 

Percentage of 

clinics with access  

to sanitation 

services 

N/A     

5 

Percentage of 

schools with access  

to sanitation 

services 

N/A     

 

D. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN SANITATION SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

The municipality is faced with a huge number of backlogs on Sanitation and this will impact in reaching the 

set National targets. The main challenge around this service is the issue of funding. The Municipality has 

submitted frontloading funding application to DBSA via National Treasury. This stride was taken to reduce 

the challenges of both water and sanitation services. 
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2.4. ROAD MAINTENANCE 

 

A. ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

Road maintenance remains the function of the Department of Roads and Public Works whilst the Local 

Municipalities deal with the minor and access roads within villages and towns. The  District  Municipality  

plays  a  supportive  role  in  providing  maintenance  of  roads infrastructure to its Locals Municipalities. 

 

B. LEVEL AND STANDARDS IN ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

The District Municipality is not responsible for road maintenance, however, it plays a coordination. 

The  district  municipality  has  completed  the  District  Transport  Plan  for  all  four  local Municipalities. 

 

C. ANNUAL  PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custome

r reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage 

of 

achieveme

nt during the 

year 

1 

Percentage of 

households without 

access  to gravel or 

graded roads 

N/A     

2 

Percentage of road 

infrastructure 

requiring upgrade 

N/A     

4 

Percentage of 

planned new road 

infrastructure  

actually 

constructed 

N/A     

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 

Percentage of 

capital budget 

reserved for road 

upgrading and 

maintenance 

effectively used. 

N/A     
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2.5. WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 

A. WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality is not performing the task of refuse removal. The refuse removal services are 

performed by the local municipality and in this case the four local  municipalities  performing  this  task  of  

refuse  removal  is  Mbizana,  Ntabankulu, Matatiele and Umzimvubu local municipalities. The district 

municipality assisted the local municipalities by developing the Integrated Waste Management Plan. Both 

Matatiele and Umzimvubu have integrated Waste Management Plans that were developed by the Alfred 

Nzo District Municipality. A budget was set aside to develop the plan and implement the plan. 

With regards to the Adoption and implementation of waste management plans, the district municipality 

adopted the Integrated Waste Management Plan with its recommendations/ implementation plans in a 

form of Waste Action Plan (WAP).Two Waste Buyback Centre were initiated as part of the implementation 

of the IWMP and only one was completed during the 2012-2013 financial year and that is the Mt Frere 

Buyback Centre based in Umzimvubu Local Municipality. This buyback centre was completed within the 

financial year. 

Waste Training and Awareness was a second Waste Action Plan that the Alfred Nzo District municipality 

initiated as part of the implementation of the IWMP. Three waste management workshops were conducted 

in 2012/2013 and conducted in Ntabankulu, Umzimvubu and Mbizana. 

B. Level and standards in waste management services 

The four local municipalities mentioned in section (a) above could be classified as providing low level 

access to waste management services. The reason for this assumption is that the four local municipalities 

only provide refuse removal services to urban areas (towns and its surrounding urban residential areas and 

townships). In the rural areas / villages there are no refuse removal services and this is what determines the 

low level access to waste management service because all four local municipalities are predominantly 

rural. 

All local municipalities provide high quality standards of waste management services considering their rural 

and economic stress. Waste is collected on a daily basis in town and in some instances such as Mt Frere 

waste is collected twice a day in town. In urban residential areas and townships the waste is collected 

twice a week. There are refuse receptacles in a form of skips and rubbish bins in towns and the refuse 

removal vehicles and trucks are in good conditions. The waste is disposed in the licensed landfill sites in 

Matatiele and Umzimvubu local municipalities and these landfill sites are currently being managed as per 

license conditions. Ntabankulu and Mbizana local municipalities are in a process of licensing their landfill 

sites. 

C. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

Budget constraints- the municipality need to prioritise the budget towards waste management. 

Continuously changing  legislation-  this  creates  a  lot  of  confusion  and  it  becomes difficult for the 

municipality to keep up with the changes and this leads to most WAP not being implemented. 

Lack of compliance in landfill sites- Burning of waste and scavenging in the landfill sites are the major 

challenges within the district. Local municipalities must allow the district municipality and DEDEA to monitor 

compliance so as to assist in ensuring that the landfill sites are compliant and remains in good conditions. 

D. HIGHLIGHTS OF ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-2013 

 

 

 

Water 
Status 

Quo 

2010-11 

StatusQuo 

2012-13 

Total 

achieved 

Total no of hh 178 347 178 347  

No  of  HH  with  

no Water 
83 784 77 741 7648 

No of HH with 

Water below RDP 

standard 

15 931 15 931 0 

No of HH with 

Water above RDP 

standard 

74 557 80 600 7648 

Sanitation 

Status 

Quo 

2010-11 

StatusQuo 

2012-13 

Total 

achieved 

Total no of hh 178 347 178 347 

36404 Served hh 79 333 111 932 

Unserved hh 98 574 66 415 
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2.6. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

  

2.6.1.  MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

A. MHS SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

The district municipality took over the function of Municipal Health Services that was previously performed 

by other government stakeholders (in particular Local Municipalities and Dept. of Health) through 

devolution process of powers and functions to the district municipalities and metros.  The DM has 

undergone a lot of processes in trying to meet the requirements of owning the function, amongst others, 

was: 

Continuing funding of the function by the National Treasury based on ANDM population  

14,5 million during the financial year under review. 

 

B. LEVELS AND STANDARDS IN MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES: 

As set by the standards of the WHO (World Health Organisation), it is mandatory that each environmental 

health practitioner (EHP) deals with 7,500 of the population for the EHS to be efficient and effective. 

The arrangement entered into by South Africa and World Health Organisation was for each EHP to service 

10,000 people. 

Despite the strides made by ANDM to retain EHPs, the attrition caused by the rural nature of the terrain was 

unavoidable. Nevertheless dedication of the remaining Environmental Health Practitioners has continued to 

improve the service delivery. 

The district municipality has included a comprehensive MHS programme in its organogram. 

The process of the devolution of powers and functions with regard to the transfer of staff from the province 

to the district municipality is reaching its terminal stages now (and this has been going on for a good 4 years 

now). 

 

C. MHS OPERATIONS 

MHS FOOD SAFETY ON URBAN BUSINESSES OUTREACH 

Municipal Health Services (MHS) embarked on an extended food safety programme that targeted all the 

food selling businesses in the 7 towns of the district. This programme was started so as to ensure that the 

service is done with the backing of the councillors. The food selling businesses in all the towns were 

evaluated. There were teams that comprised of a councillor, a CDS manager, and EHPs. The LM councillors 

and officials from Community Services were also part of the awareness/ outreach programme.  

As this exercise was done together with the councillors who are directly in charge of the service, it had 

another perspective to the business owners as they saw themselves as still being an important part of the 

decision making world within their jurisdiction. 

Outcomes of the outreach 

Out of these evaluations, all unsound foodstuffs were condemned, detained and disposed with immediate 

effect. The grounds were politically leveled as it was now clear to businesses 

This also assisted in the council being able to account on the function that is being its responsibility. 

SOPs 

ANDM has seen the need to operate MHS function in a unique way that suites this area, although not 

running away from the national and provincial legislation. This has necessitated a need to have standard 

operating procedures for the key municipal health performance areas. During this year emphasis was put 

on food safety and water quality, hence the formulation of these 2 SOPs. They are now ready to be used. 
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D. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 

Water Quality 

Monitoring (No of 

samples taken) & 

analysed from 

potable water sources 

953 samples taken & 

analysed from 102 

wards taken at a  

monthly interval and 

as per  need,  but 

there has been much 

focus in towns where 

the BDS & GDS is 

administered 

Some areas 

still depend 

on 

unprotected 

springs & river 

water 

750 

samples 

taken, 

analysed  

communic

ated  

80 %  of  HH 

 

reached 

Adding on this, a 

64 % of a blue 

drop status, has 

been retained 

for 2 consecutive 

years, although 

plans to improve 

this financial year 

are underway 

Also the DM has 

improved in the 

Green Drop 

(Waste Water 

Initiative), and it 

has been rated 

the best 

improved 

municipality in 

systems of 

monitoring 

WWTW in the 

province 

 

2 

Food Safety and 

Control Percentage of 

food handling 

premises (urban 

& rural) are selling 

sound foodstuffs 

Percentage of food 

samples taken 

85% of food handlers 

with approved CoAs 

65  %  of  food 

samples collected, 

analysed & 

communicated 

170 food 

handling 

premises do 

not comply 

with the 

health 

standards 

 

 

806 

businesses 

that are 

selling 

foodstuffs 

have  been 

evaluated 

769 food 

samples 

have been 

taken.  

119 

awareness 

done for the 

food related 

conditions in 

all wards. 

70 CoAs re-

issued for the 

re-applying 

food 

premises.  

70% 

improvement on  

un-expired 

foodstuffs 

60%  of  the food 

handling 

premises 

(rural) have 

improved 

structurally 

75  %  of  food 

samples comply 

with health 

standards 

3 

Waste management 

(Health Care Risk 

Waste) Percentage of 

clinics and hospitals 

with adequate 

management systems 

of healthcare waste 

The service level 

agreement   of the 

ECDoH with an 

accredited service 

provider is still 

maintained by the 

department and this 

entails 66 clinics, 7 

hospitals, and 2 health 

centres This 

agreement is for 

collecting and safely 

disposing their 

healthcare waste.  

40% of HCRW 

generators 

do  not  use 

an 

accredited 

service 

provider to 

dispose their 

healthcare 

waste 

All public 

& 

private 

healthcare 

institutions, 

mortuaries 

(including 

state 

mortuaries) 

to properly 

manage 

their 

healthcare 

waste 

44 HCRW 

generators 

are 

monitored, 

and there is 

ample 

improvemen

t in their 

managemen

t of HCRW. 

In health and 

hygiene 

sessions, 

communities 

All govt facilities, 

and a few 

private facilities 

are complying    

in managing 

their healthcare 

waste properly  
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 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/customer 

expected to benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

are  

educated to  

report  any 

healthcare 

 

waste 

dumping 

that may 

affect them 

 

Surveillance and 

Prevention of 

Communicable 

diseases 

-100% of all reported 

cases are attended 

(investigated and 

followed up) 

All  wards in the 

ANDM benefit in the 

form of health and 

hygiene education 

 

Delay in 

receiving 

notifications 

from 

relevant 

stakeholders 

Investigati

ons and 

follow-up 

done to 

100% of 

cases 

received 

02 food 

poisoning 

outbreaks 

reported 

 

 

D. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

As the time goes on, funding is going to impact heavily on the rendering of the services, especially when it 

comes to adjusting the organogram to fit to the numbers of Environmental Health Practitioners versus the 

population. The National Treasury, on the other hand is increasing the budget to cover the cost of 

rendering the service (but because of previous inequities this is a drop in the ocean).  
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2.6.2. CUSTOMER CARE AND INSTITUTIONAL & SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT (ISD) 

 

A. MHS SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

Customer Care and ISD is a unit composed of two sub-units: namely Customer care which is responsible for 

ensuring that sound relations exist between the municipality and its customers and ISD component, 

responsible for ensuring that development initiatives are implemented through a people-centred approach 

where development is community driven, owned and therefore sustainable. 

Institutional & Social Development (ISD) conforms to The Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 32 of 

2000, Chapter 4 (17) (2e), which provides for a municipality to establish appropriate mechanisms, processes 

and procedures to enable the local community to participate in the affairs of the municipality, and also 

report  back to the local community. This component ensures that: 

 Development is community driven 

 Promotes participation and involvement of all relevant stakeholders 

 Instills proper consultation, awareness and communication channels 

 Creates ownership and sustainability of services delivered 

 Facilitates creation of employment and poverty alleviation 

 

B. LEVELS AND STANDARDS OF ISD AND CUSTOMER CARE 

The ISD unit conforms to The Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, Chapter 4 (17) (2e), 

which provides for a municipality to establish appropriate mechanisms, processes and procedures to 

enable the local community to participate in the affairs of the municipality, and also reports back to the 

local community. 

The Local Government: Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, Chapter 9, Section 95(a) stipulates that: a 

municipality must within its financial and administrative mandate establish a sound customer management 

system that aims to create a positive and reciprocal relationship between customers and the municipality 

hence the establishment of the Customer Care section. 

 

C. CUSTOMER CARE AND ISD PROGRESS: 

CUSTOMER CARE 

Establishment of the Customer Care Unit was more of ensuring a good rating and improvement of the 

services rendered to our customers through the following: 

 Official launch of the customer care centre 

 Customer care service market to all the 4 LMs through workshops, and roadshows in Ntabankulu LM 

 Trained frontline personnel in all the 5 departments 

 Trained 6 Customer Care Officers 

 Elevation of the Presidential Hotline to address the communities 

 Customer Relations Management Systems (CRM) 

 

INSTITUTIONAL AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT (ISD) 

All recruitment processes for additional ISD personnel were conducted. Community participation has been 

enhanced through community mobilization to introduce all new ANDM development initiatives ( Projects / 

Programmes) ,capacity building of all established community structures that drive development initiatives 

at a community level Health and Hygiene awareness campaigns have been conducted for all 

communities with water  and  sanitation  projects  to  provide  communities  with  a  good  understanding  

of Hygiene,  Sanitation  promotion  and  behavioural  change  in  relation  to  Hygiene  and Sanitation 
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D. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN CUSTOMER CARE AND ISD 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custom

er reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 

Facilitate the 

Recruitment of 

Customer Care 

Manager and 

Customer Care 

personnel 

Appointment Of 

Customer Care 

Personnel 

HR 

recruitment 

processes 

may delay 

1Custom

er Care 

and ISD 

Manager,

2 Senior 

Customer 

care 

officers 

and 4 

Customer 

Care 

Officers 

Customer 

Care and 

ISD 

Manager 

assumed   

duty on 

January 

2012. 

Appointme

nt letters of 

2 

Senior 

Customer 

Care 

Officers 

have been 

signed. 

70% 

Recruitment 

processes 

achieved. 

2 

Establishment of 

the 

Call Centre 

To procure and 

install customer 

relation system 

 ( CRM 

Nil 

Install 

CRM  

System 

Develop 

manual 

complain

ts 

CRM  

procured 

and 

Installed. 

Complaints 

registers 

developed 

100% CRM 

system tested 

and  found 

functional. 

Complaints 

logged 

annually 

3 

Development of  

the Customer 

Care 

Policy. 

Customer 

Care Policy 

Adopted by the 

Council. 

Nil 

Impleme

ntable 

policy 

develope

d 

Consultativ

e 

workshop 

and 

interviews 

with all 

relevant 

stakeholder

s. 

80% 

 

Achievement, 

Draft   policy   

in place. 

4 

Coordinate

 and 

Facilitate 

establishment of 

Local

 Communit

y Safety Forum 

Local 

Community Safety 

Forums 

established in all 

LM’S. 

Nil 

Review  

of  all 

Local 

Communi

ty Safety 

Forums 

Consultatio

n 

 

meetings 

with all 

relevant 

stakeholder

s 

50 % 

Achievement, 

Consultative 

meetings held 

with all four 

LMS 

5 

Community 

Mobilization and 

Involvement 

promoted 

Stakeholder 

participation and 

Community 

ownership   of all 

ANDM projects 

Nil 

Introduce       

all 

new 

ANDM 

Projects 

to 

communi

ties 

Community 

Mobilization 

meetings 

for all new 

and existing 

projects 

facilitated. 

100% Achieved 

Information 

dissemination 

to communities 

About planned 

projects, and 

provision of 

detailed 

implementatio

n plan Public 

education on  
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 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custom

er reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

various  water 

scarcity 

intervention 

6 

Establishment of 

community 

structures 

All ANDM New  and Nil 

Selection 

of Project 

Steering 

Committe

es, 

Project  

Steering 

Committee

s, Village 

100 % 

Achieved. 

Project Steering 

committees 

7 

Training  and  

Capacity Building 

of Community 

structures 

All ANDM New  and 

Existing projects. 
Nil 

All 

communi

ty 

structures 

must be 

capacita

ted. 

Project  

Steering 

Committee

s, Village 

Sanitation 

Committee

s 

have been 

established 

and trained 

100% 

Achieved, 

Training 

manuals and 

ISD    guidelines 

in place. 

8 

Health and 

Hygiene 

promotion 

All  ANDM New and 

Existing projects 
Nil 

Conduct 

Health 

and 

Hygiene 

educatio

n in all 

ANDM 

New and 

existing 

projects. 

Village 

Health 

workers 

and 

communitie

s have 

been 

capacitate

d. 

100% 

Achieved, 

Training 

manuals are  in 

place 
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2.6.3. SPORTS, ARTS, CULTURE, RECREATION, HERITAGE AND MUSEUMS 

 

A. MHS SERVICES DELIVERY STRATEGY AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS 

The district municipality took over the responsibility of coordinating social activities which  includes;  sports,  

arts  and  culture,  recreation,  heritage  and  libraries. Amongst these items the Heritage and museum is the 

core mandate of the municipality. 

The guiding documents (Sports, Art, Culture for the SACRH&M unit were developed and are at a draft 

stage now. These includes; sport and recreation policy, arts and culture policy, heritage and museum 

policy respectively. 

 

B. SACRH&M OPERATIONS: 

 

Sport and Recreation 

This unit as it has been mandated to coordinate sport and recreational programme, number of activities 

have been done. The municipality has participated in the SALGA EC municipal games for 2012 that took 

place in Mthatha hosted by ORTDM, as part of playing coordinating role.  We have also participated in the 

National Spar Netball tournament that took place in the City of Johannesburg in University of Johannesburg 

sport grounds. 

 

Arts and Culture 

We had also started an annual programme of drawing community attention to the cultural festival, this is 

the promotion of cultural diversity of the glorious district municipality. 

 

Heritage and museum 

As we should know, Heritage tells the stories of our past, it reflects our present and will be our legacy for the 

future generations. Heritage resources and services are central to human development in the post-

apartheid South Africa and play and important political, social and economic role in constituting and 

transforming our society. The memorial lecture of the late Alfred Baphetuxolo Nzo was declared by the 

municipality as the annual activity for the purposes of preserving his legacy, the erection of Ngqindilili and 

Khananda Hill monuments to mark the memories of the fallen heroes of the Pondo Revolt between 1960 

and 1962. 
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C. ANNUAL  PERFORMANCE  AS  PER  KEY  PERFORMANCE  INDICATORS  IN  SPORT,  ARTS, 

 Indicator name 

Total number of 

household/custome

r expected to 

benefit 

Estimated 

backlogs 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target 

Set for the 

FY under 

review 

(actual 

numbers) 

Number of 

HH/custom

er reached 

during the 

FY 

Percentage of 

achievement 

during the year 

1 
Sport and 

Recreation 

Alfred Nzo 

District Municipality 

federations 

Nil 

Five 

sporting 

codes 

Focus was 

under 19 in 

deferent 

sporting 

codes 

100% (soccer, 

rugby, netball, 

volleyball, 

table tennis) 

2 Arts and Culture 

All       cultural 

Practices within the 

district were 

recognised 

Nil 

Host a 

cultural 

festival 

Nil 

A cultural 

festival that 

included all 

cultures in the 

district was 

successfully 

hosted 

3 
Heritage and 

museum 

Memorial 

 

lecture of Alfred 

and Oliver Reginald 

Tambo were done, 

and procurement 

of the Monument  

at Ngqindilili  

Nil 

OR 

Tambo 

Memorial 

lecture 

and 

erection  

of the 

monume

nt 

 100% 

 

Major challenges in Sport, Arts, Culture, Recreation, Heritage and Museum and remedial actions 

As the time goes on, funding is going to impact heavily on the rendering of the services,  especially  when  

it  comes  to  adjusting  the  organogram  to  fit  to  the numbers of Sport, Arts, Culture, Recreation, Heritage 

and Museum officers versus the population.  
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2.7. DISASTER AND RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 

KPA 1: INTEGRATED INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY FOR DISASTER RISK MANAGEMENT 

KPA 2: DISASTER RISK ASSESSMENT  

KPA 3: DISASTER RISK REDUCTION  

KPA 4: RESPONSE AND RECOVERY 

 

Enablers   

Enabler 1 – Information Management and Communication  

Enabler 2 – Education, Training, Public Awareness and Research  

Enabler 3 - Funding arrangements  

 

 

 Indicator name 

Total 

number of 

population 

expected to 

benefit from 

the service 

Estimated 

shortfall 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target set for   the   

FY under review 

(actual numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the FY 

Percentage 

of 

achievement 

during the 

year 

1 

KPA 1: integrated 

institutional 

capacity for 

disaster risk 

management 

For 

Community 

of ANDM at 

large 

Nil Supply 

Chain 

Processes 

were a 

problem 

Revival of the 5 

Disaster 

Management 

Advisory Forums 

Recruitment of 

Disaster 

Management 

volunteers  

Conducted training 

of 20 disaster 

management 

practitioners and 

councilors  

Procurement of 2 

disaster 

management 

vehicles  

District and all 

4 LM  

All four local 

municipalities 

  

100% 

Achieved 

100% 

achieved 

20 % 

achieved  

2 

KPA 2: disaster 

 

risk assessment 

102 wards  Nil 

Appointment of 

Aurecon to conduct 

a scientific risk 

assessment for  the 

entire Alfred  Nzo  

Area of jurisdiction 

Conducted re 

alignment 

workshops at 

Mbizana and 

Ntabankulu local 

municipalities for the 

development of the 

disaster 

management plan  

Adoption of the final 

draft of the Disaster 

102 wards 100% 
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 Indicator name 

Total 

number of 

population 

expected to 

benefit from 

the service 

Estimated 

shortfall 

(actual 

numbers) 

Target set for   the   

FY under review 

(actual numbers) 

Number of 

HH/customer 

reached 

during the FY 

Percentage 

of 

achievement 

during the 

year 

Management Plan 

by the council  

 

 

3 
KPA 3: Disaster 

risk reduction 

For 

community 

of ANDM at 

large 

Matatiele 

LM and 

stakeholders  

Insufficient 

readiness 

of other 

hospitals  

To ensure that all 

hospitals in the 

ANDM develop their 

own disaster 

management risk 

profiles and disaster 

management plans. 

Plans were 

developed  for 2 

Greenville and St 

Patrick’s in Bizana 

Workshop of 70 

Matatiele Local 

Municipality 

Councilors and 

stakeholders on the 

role of disaster 

management 

ANDM 70  
40% 

100 % 

4 
KPA 4: Response 

& Recovery  

 

102 wards  
 

 Procurement of 

relief material for 

affected people 

(100 sponges for 100 

blankets for each 

satellite centre) 

Distribution of relief 

material to affected 

families 

300 100 %  

 

MAJOR CHALLENGES IN DISASTER MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

The main challenge that is facing the service since the unit was initiated is that there is gross shortage of 

personnel, but the positions have been included in the organogram. What is also a challenge is that even 

the filling of the vacancies is not that easy due to budgetary constraints. 
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2.8. THUSONG SERVICES CENTRE 

 

Through the National Government concept of Thusong Service Centre, Alfred Nzo District Municipality in 

partnership with the Provincial Government established a Thusong Service Centre in Nophoyi servicing 

Ward 10, 12 and 13 of Umzimvubu Local Municipality) to meet the government objectives of having a one 

stop service centre in order to bring services closer to the people.  Alfred Nzo District Municipality also has 

an office within the Thusong Centre to handle community queries in relation to services offered by the 

district municipality as well as the Local Municipality of Umzimvubu through Cooperative Governance 

approach. There also have been initiations of 3 other thusong service centres in all the other LMs: for 

Mbizana it’s to be in Nkantolo, for Ntabankulu LM it’s to be in Chibini. In Matatiele LM further consultations 

have to be done.  The services offered to the Communities in the Thusong Centre are summarised in the 

table below: 

 

INSTITUTION SERVICES OFFERED 

Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality 

Handling  of  Community  Queries  in  terms  of  service  delivery and 

information dissemination to the community. 

Post Office Postal Services including payment of grants to community members 

SASSA Accept and Process all grants applications by Community members 

Department of  Home 

Affairs 

Process   applications   of Birth   and   Death   Certificates,   Identity 

Documents and Passport and further distribution of such documents. 

South African Police 

Services 

Attending Community safety Queries and processing of affidavits and 

document certifications. 

Department of Social 

Development 
Deals with all social matters affecting communities. 
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2.9. SPECIAL PROGRAMMES 

 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality during the financial year under review also embarked on Special 

Programmes and these were facilitated by the Special Programmes Unit and which is located in the office 

of the Executive Mayor politically and in the office of the Municipal Manager administratively.   The SPU is 

charged with the responsibility to ensure that special community groups (Youth, children, People with 

disability, older persons and Women) that were marginalized due to various challenges, are involved and 

benefit from municipal Services Delivery Programme like all citizens.  The section is also engaged in all HIV & 

AIDS Programmes and Projects in the district through District Aids Council coordinating structure in a multi-

sectorial approach. 

Through the Special Programmes, the municipality during the financial year under review achieved the 

following: 

 

HIV and AIDS 

 12 awareness campaigns conducted  

 Commemorated world AIDS day and Candle Light memorial 

 4 support groups trained 

 Distribution of condoms 

 Capacity building workshop for community leaders councilors, and traditional leaders 

 HIV and AIDS strategy and implementation plan developed 

 Commemorated Condom week, VCT week. 

 

Gender 

 Men’s Forum established 

 Women’s forum reviewed 

 Notional women’s month commemorated 

 Conducted 16 days of Activism against women and children 

 Conducted International Women’s Day in all four local              municipalities 

 Conducted awareness on women with disabilities 

 

Disabilities  

 Conducted 1 awareness on disabilities 

 Conducted 1 district empowerment workshop 

 Conducted skills development on HIV and AIDS to Sive Special School 

 Launch District Disability Forum 

 Commemorated Disability Month 

 

Older Persons 

 Developed older Person’s data base 

 Older Person’s forum reviewed  

 Commemorated older person’s month 

 Hosted Golden games 

 Hosted talk show for older person’s 

 Hosted older person’s Christmas party and honour 50 centenarians 

 Hosted Easter Week prayer day and Moral regeneration programme 

 Conducted 4 older person awareness campaigns 
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Children 

 

 Children’s Advisory Council Established 

 Hosted 1 children’s parliament 

 Provide playing material to 4 Pre- schools 

 Conducted 1 children’s awareness on children’s rights and responsibilities campaign and 1 School 

Health campaign  

 Conducted 1 Parent Child debates 

 Conducted take a child to work 

 Conducted 2 back to school campaigns 

 

Youth 

 Supported Ntsizwa S.S.S. and Dumsi S.S.S. with study guides and calculators to grade 12 

mathematics and physical science  learners 

 Conducted Youth Summit  

 District Youth Council Launched 

 

CHALLENGES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

 

Challenges Recommendations 

Poor  participation  of  stakeholders  on  the SPU 

programs. 

All stakeholders must be involved during IDP review 

for proper integration of programmes SPU. 

Poor  coordination  of  stakeholders  which results to 

ineffective participation in Community  Based  

structures,  namely Children’s Advisory Council. 

Stakeholders to be invited through IGR. 

Lack of  Sustainability of the existing Support Groups 

and projects. 

Integration of programs with other departments. 

Empowerment of Support Groups on basic skills on 

Project management 

Poor participation of Women structures in 

 

Gender Programs. 

Involvement of  portfolio head and women 

structures in SPU programmes 

Poor attendance in DAC Meetings. 

To develop a policy that will address transport 

challenges for the  stakeholders that are 

unemployed 
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2.10. HOUSING AND TOWN PLANNING  

  

2.10.1.  HOUSING FUNCTION AND MAIN ROLE-PLAYERS  

Schedule 4 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996, read together with section 9 

of Housing Act, 107 of 1997, places the housing competency on both the Provincial Administration (co-

ordinated by the Provincial Department of Human Settlements) as well as the Local Municipalities. 

However, the ANDM, as adhering to the responsibilities as stipulated in the Local Government: Municipal 

Structures Act, 117 of 1998, has taken the position to co-ordinate, support and guide the process of housing 

development within the district area. ANDM takes the responsibility to in assist in building houses that have 

been damaged through a disaster or emergency housing because disaster management is a function of 

the district. 

 

 2.10.2.  TOWN PLANNING SERVICES  

 

Part B of Schedule 4 and 5 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996, places the 

function of town planning on Local Municipalities. However, in line with the position as taken by the Council 

of ANDM of providing hands on support to all its Local Municipalities, and also in adherence to the 

prescripts of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 117 of 1998, the ANDM has, through its 

Development Planning Unit, made available the positions of the town planners with the task of assisting 

Local Municipalities in the following aspects: 

 Determine the efficiency and consistency of municipal spatial tools, i.e.; SDFs GIS and LUMS in 

addressing spatial matters. 

 Ensure alignment of SDFs in terms of development, review and implementation. 

 To keep abreast of legislation and trends as this relates to town planning. 

Furthermore, the Development Planning Unit has established the District Town Planners Forum whose main 

objectives are to look at specific town planning issues affecting the function throughout the district. This 

forum is comprised of town planners officials from the ANDM and all its local municipalities. 

 

 

 2.10.3.  SPATIAL PLANNING  

 

In line with the legislative requirements, during the financial year (2012-13) under review, the ANDM 

undertook a process of reviewing its Spatial Development Framework (SDF) and was adopted by the 

council. The objectives of this review were to ensure: 

 The alignment between the strategic approach to managing development investment in the 

district embodied in the original SDF and current government policy as embodied by- 

o The National Spatial Development Perspective 

o The Eastern Cape Provincial Growth and Development Plan  

o And other relevant legislation governing development planning 

 The incorporation of the latest available data on social (demographic), economic and 

infrastructure development indicators and  

 The building into the SDF latest information derived from new and or revised sector plans data-sets 

and spatial proposals. 
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C. MAJOR CHALLENGES IN SPATIAL PLANNING SERVICES AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS 

 

There is much concern about land administration in terms of land allocation, the recording of issued land 

rights and the management of land use processes in rural settlement areas. This is caused by a breakdown 

of formal systems in the communal land areas which has resulted in the informalisation of practices 

whereby various role-players like traditional authorities, the Department of Agriculture and ward councilors 

allocate land. The problem of land administration has repercussion on land management because it results 

in conflicts between land users in the rural areas. 

 

 

2.11 INDIGENT POLICY IMPLEMENTATION   

 

The indigent policy was reviewed and adopted by the council for implementation. The ANDM’s indigent 

policy sets out the following: 

 Procedures for identifying indigent households  

 Procedures f or verifying the information received  

 A definition of indigent  

 The qualifying conditions for participation in the ANDM service 

 A process for applying for the subsidy  

 Administering the subsidy  

 Monitoring the efficiency of implementation  

 Detecting and dealing with free-riders/ fraudulence  

 Community education with regards to indigent policy  

 Minimum levels of service provision and  

 Services that qualify for subsidization  

A total number of 13 861 households were registered for the indigent assistance. This assistance is in a form 

of free basic water and free basic sanitation.  
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CHAPTER 3: MUNICIPAL LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK (KPA 3) 

 

3.1. BRIEF PRESENTATION OF THE LED STRATEGY/PLAN 

 

The philosophy underpinning the basic understanding of the ANDM Council in relation to the economic 

trajectory of the District is that of positioning the region in such a way as to maximize the economic 

potentials offered by its natural endowments and making choices about where to allocate scarce 

resources to ensure maximum impact so that the district gets the best possible economic leverage to 

achieve its economic and social objectives. 

The ANDM LED strategy identified the following as the priority sectors for economic growth in the District: 

 Agriculture and agro-processing  

 Tourism  

 Forestry  

 Construction  

 Manufacturing  

 Trade and business services  

For the financial year under review ANDM adopted district-wide LED Strategy, Tourism and SMME Sector 

Plans. It is imperative to note that during the formulation of the strategy and sector plans all relevant 

stakeholders participated fully. 

The LED Section within the municipality currently has the following positions: 

Position Status 

Senior Manager: Local Economic 

 

Development and Planning 

Filled  

Manager: Local Economic Development Filled 

Assistant  Manager: Local  Economic 

 

Development 

Filled 

Coordinator: Local Economic 

 

Development 

Vacant 

LED Officers (4) Vacant 

LED Assistants / Interns (3) Filled  

 

As a result of majority of positions within the LED Unit being filled, there exists a fair indication in terms of the 

availability of LED capacity and expertise. A large proportion of personnel employed in these positions hold 

related qualifications and expertise pertinent to this field. 

The District Support Team which is a form of intergovernmental structure for LED has held 4 DST meetings 

during the 2012/13 financial year. The structure currently has in place Terms of Reference and a Work Plan 

in place to guide its activities in a given year. The municipality received grant funding for LED Capacity 

Building from the Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs (DLGTA). This funding was used 

to employ LED Assistants/LED Interns. 

In light of the background provided in terms of the status for LED within ANDM it is further important to 

elaborate on the approach that the ANDM has employed to ensure the implementation of LED. Currently, 

the District has in place a Planning and Economic Development Department which is responsible for 

planning and a development agency- Alfred  Nzo  Development  Agency  which  is  responsible  for  

implementation  of  all  LED Programs and initiatives.  As a result of this approach the District is not able to 

provide elaborative feedback in terms direct LED implementation and support. 
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3.2. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN LED 

 

 Indicator name 
Target set 

for the year 

Achievement 

level during the year 

(absolute figure) 

Achievement 

percentage during 

the year 

1 
Percentage  of  LED  Budget 

Spent on LED related activities. 
   

2 
Number  of  LED  stakeholder 

fora held 
4 4 100% 

3 

Percentage   of   SMME   that 

have benefited from a SMME 

support program 

A number of initiatives were implemented which focused on 

supporting SMMEs from the various LED perspectives. 

4 
Number  of  job  opportunities 

created through EPWP 
N/A N/A N/A 

5 
Number  of  job  opportunities 

created through PPP 
N/A N/A N/A 
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3.3. CHALLENGES REGARDING LED STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION 

 

The LED Unit within ANDM is faced with a number of challenges as stipulated below: 

Challenge Proposed remedies 

Non availability of resources such as land (operating 

space) for SMME’s  

Coordinate relevant stakeholders to avail land/ 

operating space for SMME’s  

Lack of funding/ limited budget for implementation 

of identified programmes or projects  
Priorities resource mobilization   

Lack of commitments by some partners in 

implementing the identified projects  

Strengthen partnership and stakeholder 

management 

Limited internal and external capacity to access 

financial and technical resources 

The   ANDM   has   planned   to   undergo business 

plan development training. Furthermore, the District 

will partner with relevant institutions in order to 

enhance capacity   to   access   support   for   LED 

projects. 

Poor linkages between ANDM and Alfred Nzo 

Development Agency, where ANDM undertakes 

planning and ANDA is responsible for 

implementation 

Through various mechanisms the District is 

in  the  process  of  trying  to  strengthen linkages 

between ANDM and ANDA 
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CHAPTER 4: FINANCIAL VIABILITY  

4.1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Mayoral committee 

Designation Name 

Executive Mayor E.N Diko 

Speaker S. Sello 

Chief Whip Nyangani 

Councillor P.B Mabengu 

Councillor B.B Maningi 

Councillor L. Ntantini 

Councillor B.N Tobo 

Councillor M.M Gqola 

Councillor S. Mehlomakulu 

Grading of local authority Grade 2 

Municipal Manager  M.Z. Silinga  

Chief Finance Officer (CFO) Luyolo Fokazi 

 

The reports and statements set out below comprise the consolidated financial statements presented to the 

provincial legislature: 

Abbreviations  

COID Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases 

CRR Capital Replacement Reserve 

DBSA Development Bank of South Africa 

SA GAAP South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practice 

HDF Housing Development Fund 

IAS International Accounting Standards 

IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance Officers 

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

ME's Municipal Entities 

MEC Member of the Executive Council 

MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act 

MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant (Previously CMIP) 
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4.1.1. MEMBER'S RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 

 

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain 

adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the consolidated 

financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the 

accounting officer to ensure that the consolidated financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of 

the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 

period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related 

data. 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board. 

The consolidated financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently 

applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. 

The accounting officers acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal 

financial control established by the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a 

strong control environment. To enable the accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the municipality 

sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. 

The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 

controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest 

ethical standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk 

cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavors to minimize it by ensuring that appropriate 

infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints. 

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management 

that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied 

on for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. However, any system of internal financial 

control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 4 to 62, which have been prepared on the going 

concern basis, were approved by the accounting officer on 4 December 2013 and were signed on its 

behalf by: 

 

 

 

  

M .Z Silinga             L Fokazi 

Accounting officer        Chief Financial Officer 
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4.1.2. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2013 

 

ASSETS 

Figures in Rands Notes 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current Assets 

Inventories 7 4,294,299 4,402,335 4,294,299 4,402,335 

Operating lease asset 6 7,347 1,274 7,347 1,274 

Receivables from exchange transaction  491,352 14,423 - - 

Receivables from non-exchange 

transactions 
8 4,729,968 172,029 4,729,968 172,029 

VAT receivable 9 10,093,448 22,932,381 10,093,448 22,932,381 

Consumer debtors 10 16,990,585 10,803,865 16,990,585 10,803,865 

Current Portion of Long Term 

Receivables 
 - 192,552 - 192,552 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 232,451,575 137,010,609 226,115,180 129,844,781 

Total  269,058,574 175,529,468 262,230,827 168,349,217 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 2 1,666,199,464 1,519,786,587 1,665,848,430 1,519,490,941 

Intangible assets 3 952,270 755,0310 850,192 748,305 

Heritage assets 4 131,100  131,100 131,100 131,100 

Investments  20,425,734  18,477,653 20,425,834 18,477,753 

Long term Receivables 5 162,387 576,354 162,387 576,354 

Total  1,687,870,955 1,539,726,725 1,687,417,943 1,539,424,453 

Non Current Assets  1,687,870,955 1,539,726,725 1,687,417,943 1,539,424,453 

Current Assets  269,058,574 175,529,468 262,230,827 168,349,217 

Non current Assets held for sale (and) 

(assets of disposal groups) 
 - - - - 

Total Assets  1,956,929,529 1,715,256,193 1,949,648,770 1,707,773,670 

 

LIABILITIES 

Figures in Rands Notes 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current Liabilities 

Operating lease liability 6 43,656 29,901 43,656 29,901 

Payables from exchange 

transactions 
15 124,377,147 85,055,628 127,852,794 83,996,175 

VAT payable  1,948,867 1,397,465 - - 

Unspent conditional grants 

and receipts 
12 16,320,764 20,305,125 16,320,764 20,305,125 

Long Service Awards 13 99,766 163,902 99,766 163,902 

Unallocated credits  1,011,767 - 1,011,767 - 

Current Portion of Long term 

liabilities 
14 1,534,749 1,441,675 1,534,749 1,441,675 

Bank Overdraft 11 - 422,164 - 422,164 

Total   145,336,716 108,815,860 146,863,496 106,358,942 

Non current liabilities      

Long service awards 13 2,661,384 1,268,710 2,661,384 1,268,710 

Long term liability 14 28,398,507 29,932,345 28,398,507 29,932,345 

Total  31,059,891 31,201,055 31,059,891 31,201,055 

Non Current liabilities  31,059,891 31,201,055 31,059,891 31,201,055 

Current liabilities   145,336,716 108,815,860 146,863,496 106,358,942 

Liabilities of disposal groups  - - - - 
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Figures in Rands Notes 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Total liabilities   176,396,607 140,016,915 177,923,387 137,559,997 

Assets  1,956,929,529 1,715,256,193 1,949,648,770 1,707,773,670 

Liabilities  (176,396,607) (140,016,915) 177,923,387) (137,559,997) 

Net Assets  1,780,532,922 1,575,239,278 1,771,725,383 1,570,213,673 

Reserves 

Government grant reserve  1,517,942,029 1,517,942,029 1,517,942,029 1,517,942,029 

Accumulated surplus  262,570,893 57,297,294 253,783,354 52,271,644 

Total Net Assets  1,780,532,922 1,575,293,278 1,771,725,382 1,570,213,673 
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4.1.3. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Revenue 

Service charges 18 13,720,324 15,286,268 13,720,324 15,286,268 

Rental of facilities and 

equipment 
  330,331 235,339  330,331 235,339 

Income from agency services   52,639 26,182  52,639 26,182 

Public Donations   200,000 116,833  200,000 116,833 

Other income 20 1,029,310 1,864,732 1,029,310 1,864,732 

Interest received - investment  12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

Gains on disposal of assets   112,802 -  112,802 - 

Government grants & 
subsidies 19 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785   1,115,496,954 

Total Revenue  771,900,035 1,144,553,825 771,749,246    1,144,501,076 

Expenditure 

Personnel 22 123,089,243 92,457,648 120,732,582 90,910,343 

Remuneration of councillors 23 6,983,375 6,258,391 6,983,375 6,258,391 

Project Expenses  4,942,450 2,296,481 - - 

Depreciation and amortisation  49,326,315 31,183,208 49,178,089 31,132,891 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of 

impairments 
 7,520,000 - - - 

Finance costs  2,836,722 2,333,330 2,582,345 2,217,752 

Debt impairment  3,998,790 22,092,662 3,998,790 22,092,662 

Repairs and maintenance  15,242,406 14,763,887 15,235,425 14,714,835 

Bulk purchases 26 1,519,815 2,742,760 1,519,815 2,742,760 

Contracted services  25,621,036 41,425,427 25,621,036 41,425,427 

Grants and subsidies paid  268,106,609 277,420,542 283,920,558 285,710,436 

Loss on disposal of assets  - 84,076 - 84,076 

 

General Expenses 

 
21 90,142,556 65,010,887 85,694,335 62,860,713 

Total expenditure  599,329,317 558,069,299 595,466,350 560,150,286 

  - - - - 

Total Revenue   771,900,035 1,144,553,825 771,749,246 1,144,501,076 

Total Expenditure   (599,329,317) (558,069,299) (595,466,350) (560,150,286) 

Operating surplus  172,570,718 586,484,526 176,282,896 584,350,790 

Surplus before taxation   172,570,718 586,484,526 176,282,896 584,350,790 

Taxation   - - - - 

Surplus for the year 
 172,570,718 586,484,526 176,282,896 584,350,790 

Attributable to: 

Owners of the controlling 

entity 

 172,570,718 586,484,526 176,282,896 584,350,790 
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4.1.4. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Figures in Rand 
Government 

grant reserve 
Accumulated surplus Total net assets 

Economic entity 

Opening balance as previously reported Adjustments - 1,144,048,839 1,144,048,839 

Off set Depreciation - 31,130,494 31,130,494 

Change in accounting policy  -  (98,243) (98,243) 

Prior year adjustments -  (1,285,071,574) (1,285,071,574) 

Balance at 01 July 2011 as restated  (109,990,484) (109,990,484) 

Changes in net assets 

Funds utilised to finance Assets 1,549,156,599 (472,760,691) 1,076,395,908 

Transfer to income iro Depreciation (31,130,494) - (31,130,494) 

Transfer to income iro Disposals (84,076) - (84,076) 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 1,517,942,029 (472,760,691) 1,045,181,338 

Surplus for the year -    586,484,526 586,484,526 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 1,517,942,029 113,723,835 1,631,665,864 

Prior Period Error  - 53,563,898 53,563,898 

Total changes 1,517,942,029 167,287,733 1,685,229,762 

Opening Balance as Previously Reported  1,517,942,029 64,791,360 1,582,733,389 

Adjustments 

Correction of Errors  - 25,228,815 25,228,815 

Balance at 01 July 2012 as restated 1,517,942,029 90,020,175 1,607,962,204 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year - 172,570,718 172,570,718 

Total changes  172,570,718 172,570,718 

Balance at 30 June 2013 1,517,942,029 262,590,893 1,780,532,922 

Note(s)    

Controlling entity 

Opening balance as previously reported Adjustments - 1,140,625,984 1,140,625,984 

Adjustments 

Off set Depreciation - 31,130,494 31,130,494 

Change in accounting policy - (98,243) (98,243) 

Prior year adjustments - (1,284,540,588) (1,284,540,588) 

Balance at 01 July 2011 as restated - (112,882,353) (112,882,353) 

Changes in net assets 

Funds utilised to finance Assets 1,549,156,599 (472,760,691) 1,076,395,908 

Transfer to income iro Depreciation (31,130,494) - (31,130,494) 

Transfer to income iro Disposals (84,076) - (84,076) 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 1,517,942,029 (472,760,691) 1,045,181,338 

Surplus for the year - 584,350,790 584,350,790 

Opening Balance as previously reported 1,517,942,029 111,590,099 1,629,532,128 

Prior period adjustments - 53,563,898 53,563,898 

Total changes 1,517,942,029 165,153,997 1,683,096,026 

Balance as at 01 July 2012 as restated 1,517,942,029 52,271,643 1,570,213,672 

Adjustments 

Prior Year Adjustments - 25,228,815 25,228,815 

Total 1,517,942,029 77,500,458 1,595,442,487 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year - 176,282,896 176,282,896 
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Figures in Rand 
Government 

grant reserve 
Accumulated surplus Total net assets 

Total changes - 176,282,896 176,282,896 

Balance at 30 June 2013 1,517,942,029 253,783,354 1,771,725,383 

Note(s)    

 

4.1.5. CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

 

Figures in Rands Note(s) 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Public Contribution and 

Donations 
 200,000 116,833 200,000 116,833 

Service Charges  13,720,325 3,573,027 13,720,325 3,573,027 

Grants  744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 

Interest income 
 

12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

Other receipts 
 

1,525,082 1,864,732 1,525,082 1,864,732 

Adjustment for interest to be 
disclosed as investing activities 

 (12,029,844) (11,527,517) (11,879,055) (11,474,768) 

Total 
 759,870,192 1,121,051,546 759,870,192 1,121,051,546 

Payments 

Employee costs  (123,089,243) (92,457,648) (120,732,582) (90,910,343) 

Remuneration of councillors 
 

(6,983,375) (6,258,391) (6,983,375) (6,258,391) 

Finance costs  (2,836,722) (2,333,330) (2,582,345) (2,217,752) 

Suppliers Paid  (482,233,926) (598,355,849)  (465,168,048) (593,809,825) 

Adjustments of non cash items  79,189,399 (102,917,303)  55,007,369 55,642,479 

Adjustments for movement in 

working capital 
 54,744,696 195,925,144 59,931,067 35,590,092 

Total  (481,209,171) (606,397,377) (480,527,914) (601,963,740) 

Total receipts  759,870,192 1,121,051,546  759,870,192 1,121,051,546 

Total payments  (481,209,171) (606,397,377) (480,527,914) (601,963,740) 

Net cash flows from operating 

activities 
27 278,661,021                      514,654,169 279,342,278 279,342,278 519,087,806 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment 
2 

(198,519,842) (801,111,147) (198,376,875) (800,833,976) 

Proceeds from sale of property, 

plant and equipment 
 6,708,082 379,893,962 6,708,082 379,893,962 

Decrease/ (Increase) in 

Investments 
 (1,948,081) - ( 1,948,081) - 

Purchase of other intangible 

assets 
3 (637,986) (689,160) (481,988) (689,160) 

Purchases of heritage assets 4 - (31,100) - (31,100) 

Interest Income  12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 - 

Net cash flows from investing 

activities 
 (182,367,983) (410,409,928) (182,219,807) (421,660,274) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Cash flows from financing      
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Figures in Rands Note(s) 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

activities 

Movement in long term liability  (1,441,675) (1,248,692) (1,441,675) (1,248,692) 

Unallocated credits  1,011,767 -  1,0110767 1,011,767 - 

New Loans raised  
- 7,993,492  - - 7,993,492 

Net cash flows from financing 

activities 
 (429,908) 6,744,800                       (429,908) (429,908) 6,744,800 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 

and cash equivalents 
 95,863,130 110,989,041                          96,692,563 96,692,563 104,172,332 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

the beginning of the year 
 136,588,445 25,599,404                        129,422,617 129,422,617 25,250,285 

Cash and cash equivalents at 

the end of the year 
      11 

232,451,575 136,588,445                       226,115,180 226,115,180 129,422,617 

 

4.1.6. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

ECONIMIC ENTITY 

 
Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget 
Actual amounts 
on comparable 
Basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 
actual 

Reference 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Service charges 32,420,000 3,670,00 28,750,000 13,720,324 15,029,676)  

Other income 1 78,186,093 (41,517,609) 36,668,484 1,725,082 (34,943,402)  

Interest received - investment 10,400,000 - 10,400,000 12,029,844 1,629,844  

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 

121,006,093 (45,187,609) 75,818,484 27,475,250 (48,343,234)  

Revenue from non-exchange 
Transactions 

Taxation revenue 

Government grants & 
subsidies 

797,863,000 33,430,259 831,293,259 744,424,785 (86,868,474)  

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 

121,006,093 (45,187,609) 75,818,484 27,475,250 (48,343,234)  

Total revenue from non- 
exchange 
transactions' 

797,863,000 33,430,259 831,293,259 744,424,785 (86,868,474)  

Total revenue 918,869,093 (11,757,350) 907,111,743 771,900,035 (135,211,708)  

Expenditure 

Personnel  (144,484,835) 1,535,057 (142,949,778) (130,072,618) 12,877,160  

Transfer payments  (6,150,000) (450,000) (6,600,000) (4,942,450) 1,657,550  

Depreciation and amortisation (10,160,000) 60,000 (10,100,000) (49,326,315) (39,226,315)  

Impairment loss/ Reversal of 
impairments 

- - - (7,520,000) (7,520,000)  

Finance costs (250,000) (2,663,000) (2,913,000) (2,836,722) 76,278  

Other Expenses (218,919,091) (265,823,299) (484,742,390) (420,445,161) 64,297,229  

Total expenditure (379,963,926) (267,341,242) (647,305,168) (615,143,266) 32,161,902  

 538,905,167 (279,098,592) 259,806,575 156,643,967 (103,162,608)  

 - - - - -  

Surplus before taxation 583,905,167 (279,098,592) 259,806,575 156,643,967 103,162,608  

Deficit before taxation 583,905,167 (279,098,592) 259,806,575 156,643,967 103,162,608  

Taxation - - - - -  

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

583,905,167 (279,098,592) 259,806,575 156,643,967 103,162,608  
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CONTROLING ENTITY 

 

 
Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget 
Actual amounts 
on comparable 
Basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 
actual 

Reference 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Service charges 32,420,000 (3,670,000) 28,750,000 13,720,324 (15,029,676)  

Other income 1 78,186,093 (41,517,609) 36,668,484 1,725,082 (34,943,402)  

Interest received - 
investment 

10,300,000 - 10,300,000 11,879,055 1,579,055  

Total revenue from 
exchange 
transactions 

120,906,093             (45,187,609)        75,718,484         27,324,461        (48,394,023) 
 

Revenue from non-exchange 
Transactions 

Taxation revenue 

Government grants & 
subsidies 

797,863,000 33,430,259 831,293,259 744,424,785 (86,868,474)  

Total revenue from 
exchange transactions 

120,906,093 (45,187,609) 75,718,484 27,324,461 (48,394,023)  

Total revenue from non-
exchange 
transactions' 

797,863,000 33,430,259 831,293,259 744,424,785 (86,868,474)  

Total revenue 918,769,093 (11,757,350) 907,011,743 771,749,246 (135,262,497)  

Expenditure 

Personnel  (138,314,835) 1,535,057 (136,779,778) (127,715,957) 9,063,821  

Depreciation and 
amortisation 

(10,000,000) - (10,000,000) (49,178,089) (39,178,089)  

Finance costs (250,000) (2,663,000) (2,913,000) (2,582,345) 330,655  

Other Expenses (212,897,379) (265,493,299) 478,390,678) (415,989,959) 62,400,719  

Total expenditure (361,462,214)  (266,621,242) 628,083,456 (595,466,350) 32,617,106  

 (557,306,879)  (278,378,592)  278,928,287 176,170,094 (102,758,193)  

 

Surplus before taxation 557,306,879  (278,378,592) 278,928,287 176,170,094 (102,758,193)  

Deficit before taxation 557,306,879  (278,378,592) 278,928,287 176,170,094 (102,758,193)  

Taxation - - - - -  

Actual Amount on 
Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

557,306,879  (278,378,592) 278,928,287 176,170,094 (102,758,193)  
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4.1.7. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board. 

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 

accordance with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

4.1.7.1. CONSOLIDATION 

 

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

Consolidated consolidated financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the economic entity 

presented as those of a single entity. 

The consolidated consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the 

controlling entity and all controlled entity. 

Control exists when the controlling entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity 

so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

The results of controlled entity, are included in the consolidated consolidated financial statements from the effective 

date of acquisition or date when control commences to the effective date of disposal or date when control ceases. 

The difference between the proceeds from the disposal of the controlled entity and its carrying amount as of the date 

of disposal, including the cumulative amount of any exchange differences that relate to the controlled entity 

recognised in net assets in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 

Rates, is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial performance as the surplus or deficit on the disposal of 

the controlled entity. 

The consolidated financial statements of the controlling entity and its controlled entity used in the preparation of the 

consolidated consolidated financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date. 

Adjustments are made when necessary to the consolidated financial statements of the controlled entity to bring their 

accounting policies in line with those of the controlling entity. 

All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

 

ENTITY COMBINATIONS 

The economic entity accounts for entity combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the 

entity combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and 

equity instruments issued. Costs directly attributable to the entity combination are expensed as incurred, except the 

costs to issue debt which are amortised as part of the effective interest and costs to issue equity which are included in 

equity. 

Contingent consideration is included in the cost of the combination at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent changes to the assets, liability or equity which arise as a result of the contingent consideration are not 

affected against goodwill, unless they are valid measurement period adjustments. 

The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities which meet the recognition conditions of IFRS 3 

Business combinations are recognised at their fair values at acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal 

economic entity) that are classified as held-for-sale in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Non-current Assets 

Held-For-Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised at fair value less costs to sell. 

Contingent liabilities are only included in the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree where there is a present 

obligation at acquisition date. 

On acquisition, the economic entity assesses the classification of the acquiree's assets and liabilities and reclassifies 

them where the classification is inappropriate for economic entity purposes. This excludes lease agreements and 

insurance contracts, whose classification remains as per their inception date. 
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4.1.7.2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held 

for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and 

are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow 

to the municipality; and 

 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to 

bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of 

acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or 

monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 

measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is 

the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 

are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and 

costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in 

the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced 

part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 

located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur 

such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes 

other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the 

item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are 

included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can 

only be used in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, 

plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment 

and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of 

property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are 

derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to 

their estimated residual value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
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The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item Average useful life 

Buildings 

Improvements 5- 30 

Infrastructure 

Sewerage 15-60 

Water 10 - 100 

Roads 15 - 50 

Gas 10 - 50 

Security Measures 3 - 5 

Plant and machinery 2 - 15 

Furniture and fixtures 5- 10 

Motor vehicles 5 - 10 

Office equipment 3 - 10 

Specialised Vehicles  5 - 15 

Community 

Community Facilities 20 - 30 

Recreational Facilities 20 - 30 

Other Assets 

Bins and Containers 5 - 15 

Computer Equipment 3 - 10 

Emergency Equipment 3 - 10 

Other Assets 25 - 30 

IT Equipment 5 

 

4.1.7.3.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 

 is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or 

 arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate 

from the municipality or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the municipality; and 

 The cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

An intangible asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item 

 
Useful life 

Computer software 2 - 5 years 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 

 on disposal; or 

 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in 

surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised. 
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4.1.7.4. HERITAGE ASSETS 

 

Assets are resources controlled by an economic entity as a result of past events and from which future 

economic benefits or service potential are expected to flow to the economic entity. 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment 

losses. 

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an economic 

entity’s operations that is shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the consolidated financial 

statements.  

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or 

artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations. 

 

RECOGNITION 

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or 

service potential associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the 

asset can be measured reliably.  

INITIAL MEASUREMENT 

Heritage assets are measured at cost. 

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair 

value as at the date of acquisition. 

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. 

IMPAIRMENT 

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any 

such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service 

amount of the heritage asset. 

TRANSFERS 

Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a 

heritage asset. 

Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset. 

DERECOGNITION 

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service 

potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between 

the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is 

recognised in surplus or deficit when the heritage asset is derecognised. 
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4.1.7.5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or a residual interest of another entity. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or 

financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 

amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the 

maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for 

impairment or uncollectibility. 

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 

failing to discharge an obligation. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s 

statement of financial position. 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 

 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, 

commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or 

other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a 

party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’). 

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required 

for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market 

factors.  

 It is settled at a future date. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a 

financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or 

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when 

appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When 

calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms 

of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future 

credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract 

that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from 

Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that 

the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. 

However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life 

of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the municipality shall use the contractual cash 

flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

A financial asset is: 

 cash; 

 a residual interest of another entity; or 

A contractual right to: 

 receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 

 Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favorable to the entity. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 

accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. 
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A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 

 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to 

the municipality. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by the municipality in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations 

associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other 

price risk. 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), 

whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or 

factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of a municipality after deducting all 

of its liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 

 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital; 

 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the 
transaction as forming part of the municipality's’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at 
the time of the contribution; or 

 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial 

interest in the net assets of the municipality. 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a 

financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the 

municipality had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument. 

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial 

liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

 the municipality designates at fair value at initial recognition; or 

 are held for trading. 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in 

an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 

 derivatives; 

 combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 

 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 

 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 

 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed 

together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 

 non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are 

designated at fair value at initial recognition; and 

 financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or 

financial instruments at cost. 
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CLASSIFICATION 

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial 

position or in the notes thereto: 

 

Class Category 

Unlisted Investments (Stock) Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Investments in Fixed Deposits Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Long term Receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Cash and cash equivalents - Notice Deposits Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Cash and cash equivalents - Call deposits Financial asset measured at fair value 

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at fair value 

 

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 

Consolidated statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 

Class Category 

Long term Liabilities Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

Payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

 

INITIAL RECOGNITION 

The municipality recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the 

municipality becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The municipality recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

 

INITIAL MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

The municipality measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

The municipality first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the 

municipality analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. 

The municipality accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is: 

 a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, 

where it is the issuer of the loan; or 

 non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 

 

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

The municipality measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following 

categories 

 Financial instruments at fair value. 

 Financial instruments at amortised cost. 

 Financial instruments at cost. 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT CONSIDERATIONS 

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, 

the municipality establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to 

establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange 

motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market 

transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another 

instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation 

technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated 

to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The 

chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific 

inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with 

accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an economic entity calibrates the 

valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same 

instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data. 

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount 

payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. 

RECLASSIFICATION 

The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is: 

 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or 

 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification. 

Where the municipality cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated 

from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument 

at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value. 

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the 

municipality reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no 

longer available becomes the cost. 

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not 

available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the 

instrument from cost to fair value. 

GAINS AND LOSSES 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is 

recognised in surplus or deficit. 

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or 

deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process. 

IMPAIRMENT AND UNCOLLECTIBILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The municipality assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 

asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 

financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use 

of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 

to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 

directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset 

that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the 

impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Financial assets measured at cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is 

not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is 

measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are 

not reversed. 
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DE RECOGNITION 

 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The municipality derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

The municipality derecognises a financial asset only when: 

 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived; 

 the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset; or 

 the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 

entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 

additional restrictions on the transfer.  

In this case, the municipality : 

 derecognise the asset; and 

 recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those 

transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are 

measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts 

recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. 

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the 

right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing 

contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a 

servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be 

more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an 

amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset. 

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a 

new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial 

asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 

consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its enti rety, 

the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be 

recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the 

transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference 

between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the 

part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the municipality has retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership of the transferred asset, the municipality continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and 

recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the municipality recognises any 

revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the 

associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset. 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

The municipality removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its consolidated  statement of 

financial position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, 

expires or waived. 

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is 

accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a 

substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having 

extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability. 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or 

transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, 

is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-

exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange 

Transactions (Taxes and Transfers). 

  



Alfred Nzo District Municipality 2012/13 Annual Report 

 Page 74 
 

PRESENTATION 

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense 

in surplus or deficit. 

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or 

expense in surplus or deficit. 

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of 

financial position when the municipality currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and 

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the municipality does not offset 

the transferred asset and the associated liability. 

4.1.7.6. LEASES  

 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease 

is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element 

separately. 

 

FINANCE LEASES - LESSOR 

The municipality recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are 

presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. 

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the municipality’s 

net investment in the finance lease. 

 

FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the consolidated  statement of financial position at amounts 

equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 

corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease 

obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the municipality's 

incremental borrowing rate. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 

finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the 

remaining balance of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

OPERATING LEASES - LESSOR 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 

leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line 

basis. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-

line basis. 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in consolidated  statement of financial performance. 

OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 

between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 

asset or liability. 
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4.1.7.7. INVENTORIES 

 

Inventories comprise current assets held-for-sale, current assets for consumption or distribution during the 

ordinary course of business. Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase 

price, plus taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and 

condition. Where Inventory is manufactured, constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, 

materials and overheads used during the manufacturing process. 

Where Inventory is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (ie a non-exchange 

transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired. 

Direct costs relating to properties that will be sold as Inventories are accumulated for each separately 

identifiable development. 

Costs also include a proportion of overhead costs 

Consumables Stores, Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods: 

Consumables stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and 

net realisable value (net amount that the municipality expects to realise from the sale of Inventory in the 

ordinary course of business). In general, the basis of determining cost is the Weighted Average Cost of 

commodities. If Inventories are to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge, they are valued at 

the lower of cost and current replacement cost. 

Water Inventory 

Water is regarded as inventory when the municipality purchases water in bulk with the intention to resell it to 

the consumers or use it internally,or where the municipality has incurred purification costs on water 

obtained from natural resources (rain, rivers, springs, boreholes, etc.) However, water in dams that are filled 

by natural resources and that has not yet been treated, that is under the control of the municipality but 

cannot be measured reliably as there is no cost attached to the water, is therefore not recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Position. 

The basis of determining the cost of water purchased and not yet sold at the Statement of Financial 

Position date comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

Inventory to its present location and condition, net of trade discounts and rebates. 

Unsold Properties 

Unsold properties are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a Weighted Average Cost 

Basis. Direct costs are accumulated for each separately identifiable development. Cost also includes a 

portion of overhead costs, if this relates to development. 

Other Arrangements 

Redundant and slow-moving Inventories are identified and written down from cost to net realisable value 

with regard to their estimated economic or realisable values and sold by public auction. Net realisable 

value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses. 

Differences arising on the measurement of such Inventory that the lower of cost and net realisable value 

are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arise. The amount of 

any reversal of any write-down of Inventories arising from an increase in net realisable value or current 

replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in 

the period in which the reversal occurs. 

The carrying amount of Inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the Inventory was sold, 

distributed, written off or consumed unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation. 

The carrying amount of Inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the Inventory was sold, 

distributed, written off or consumed unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation. 
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4.1.7.8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by a municipality in exchange for service rendered by 

employees. 

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the 

Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting municipality, if the proceeds of the policy can be used 

only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting 

municipality’s own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting municipality, unless either: 

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit 

obligations; or 

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting municipality to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: 

 a municipality’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or  

 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination 

benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render 

the related service. 

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide 

postemployment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by 

employees. 

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from a municipality’s actions where by an established pattern of 

past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the municipality has indicated to other 

parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the municipality has created a valid expectation on the 

part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities. 

 

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 

Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 

 wages, salaries and social security contributions; 

 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for 

the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the 

employees render the related employee service; 

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service; and  

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars 

and cellphones) for current employees. 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted 

amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds 

the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the municipality recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to 

the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 

increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.  The municipality 

measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects 

to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the 

municipality has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a 

reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic 

alternative but to make the payments. 
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4.1.7.9. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 

Provisions are recognised when: 

 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 

present obligation at the reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the 

expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 

party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 

be received if the municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The 

amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions 

are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or 

service potential will be required, to settle the obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the 

passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is 

recognised and measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

 the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 

 the principal locations affected; 

 the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services 

being terminated; 

 the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 

 when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to 

implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are 

those that are both:  

 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

 not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is 

committed to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised 

separately are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 

 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 29. A 

financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 

the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance 

with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 
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The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires 

judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are: 

 financial difficulty of the debtor; 

 defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 

 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed 

term and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 

 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and 

unemployment) that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged 

on loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 

obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of 

economic resources is probable, the municipality recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

 the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets; and 

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation 

recognised in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 

 

4.1.7.10. REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when 

those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities 

extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of 

assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

 

MEASUREMENT 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts 

and volume rebates. 

 

SALE OF GOODS 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 

 the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods; 

 the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated 

with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 

the municipality; and 

 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
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RENDERING OF SERVICES 

 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, 

revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the 

following conditions are satisfied: 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the municipality; 

 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 

 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 

reliably. 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is 

recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other 

method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any 

other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, 

revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 

date. Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services 

to be performed. 

 

4.1.7.11. REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a 

municipality, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from 

owners. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 

potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future 

economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its 

objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities 

extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or 

use of assets) to another entity in exchange. 

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether 

or not they pay taxes. 

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a 

court or other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 

transaction, a municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving 

approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another municipality without directly receiving 

approximately equal value in exchange. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred 

asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be 

returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon 

the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality. 
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RECOGNITION 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, 

except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources 

from a nonexchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 

recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

 

MEASUREMENT 

 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 

recognised by the municipality. 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises 

revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, 

unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be 

measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and 

the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently 

reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the 

liability is recognised as revenue. 

 

4.1.7.12.  INVESTMENT INCOME 

 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.  

4.1.7.13.  COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in 

the current year.  

4.1.7.14.  UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 

 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 

 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in 

accordance with the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the consolidated 

statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is 

classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 

accounted for as revenue in the consolidated statement of financial performance. 

4.1.7.15. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 

consolidated statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The 

expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is 

subsequently accounted for as revenue in the consolidated statement of financial performance. 
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4.1.7.16. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA in relation to a municipality or municipal entity -  

 Expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in 

accordance with, the requirement of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 

170 

 Expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the 

municipal systems Act 

 Expenditure incurred in contravenetion of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the 

public office Bearers Act 

 Expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in accordance, a requirement of the Supply 

Chain Management Policy or any Municipal By-Laws giving effect to such policy, and which has not 

been condoned in terms of such policy or By-law, but excludes expenditure which falls within the 

definition of unauthorised expenditure. 

 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which 

condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No 

further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the 

following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated 

with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not 

condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular 

expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account 

must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the 

amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting 

authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the 

financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular 

expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must 

remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial 

statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 

of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 

1998) or is in contravention of the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular 

expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in 

the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue 

in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

 

4.1.7.17. INVESTMENTS 

 

Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written 

down immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is charged to the consolidated  

statement of financial performance. 

 

4.1.7.18. CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS 

 

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent 

that the municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the 

agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is 

recognised. 
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4.2. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

4.2.1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

 2013 2012 

 Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 
Cost / 

Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 

Economic entity 

Land 54,513,030 (13,097,556) 41,415,474 54,325,040 (11,260,606) 43,064,434 

Infrastructure 1,742,055,799 (139,979,343) 1,602,076,456 1,555,336,073 (96,414,892) 1,458,921,181 

Other property, 

plant and 

equipment 

34,038,219 (11,330,685) 22,707,534 29,021,374 (11,220,402) 17,800,972 

Total 1,830,607,048 (164,407,584) 1,666,199,464 1,638,682,487 (118,895,900) 1,519,786,587 

Controlling entity 

Land 54,513,030 (13,097,556) 41,415,474 54,325,040 (11,260,606) 43,064,434 

Infrastructure 1,742,055,799 (139,979,343) 1,602,076,456 1,555,336,073 (96,414,892) 1,458,921,181 

Other property, 

plant and 

equipment 

33,536,692 (11,180,192) 22,356,500 28,662,814 (11,157,488) 17,505,326 

Total 1,830,105,521 (164,257,091) 1,665,848,430 1,638,323,927 (118,832,986) 1,519,490,941 

 

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - ECONOMIC ENTITY  

 
Opening 

balance 
Additions Disposals 

Other changes, 

movements 
Depreciation Total 

2013 

Land 43,064,434 187,990 - - (1,836,950) 41,415,474 

Infrastructure 1,458,921,181 186,719,727 - - (43,564,452) 1,602,076,456 

Other property, plant and 

equipment 
17,800,972 11,612,125  (6,595,280) 3,434,247 (3,544,530) 22,707,534 

Total 1,519,786,587 198,519,842  (6,595,280) 3,434,247 (48,945,932) 1,666,199,464 

2012 

Land 44,249,082 601,590 - 

 

(1,786,238) 43,064,434 

Infrastructure 1,074,396,789 790,220,885 (379,586,171) (26,110,322) 1,458,921,181 

Other property, plant and 

equipment 
10,985,965 10,288,672 (391,867) (3,081,798) 17,800,972 

Total 1,129,631,836 801,111,147 (379,978,038) (30,978,358) 1,519,786,587 
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RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - CONTROLLING ENTITY  

 
Opening 

balance 
Additions Disposals 

Depreciation of 

Disposed 

Assets 

Depreciation Total 

2013 

Land 43,064,434 187,990   (1,836,950) 41,415,474 

Infrastructure 1,458,921,181 186,719,727   (43,564,452) 1,602,076,456 

Other property, plant and 

equipment 
17,505,326 11,469,158 6,595,280 3,434,247 (3,456,951) 22,356,500 

Total 1,519,490,941 198,376,875 6,595,280 3,434,247 (48,858,353) 1,665,848,430 

2012 

Land 44,249,082 601,590 - 

  

(1,786,238) 43,064,434 

Infrastructure 1,074,396,789 790,220,885 (379,586,171) (26,110,322) 1,458,921,181 

Other property, plant and 

equipment 
10,923,961 10,011,501 (391,867) (3,038,269) 17,505,326 

Total 1,129,569,832 800,833,976 (379,978,038) (30,934,829) 1,519,490,941 

 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is 

available for inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 

 

4.2.2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 

 2013 2012 

 Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 

Economic entity 

Computer 

software 
1,980,909 (1,028,639) 952,270 1,342,922 (587,891) 755,031 

Controlling entity 

Computer 

software 
1,804,543 (954,351) 850,192 1,322,555 (574,250) 748,305 

 

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Opening balance Additions Depreciation Total 

Economic entity - 2013 

Computer software 755,031 637,986 (440,747) 952,270 

Economic entity – 2012 

Computer software 646,909 689,160 (581,038) 755,031 

Controlling entity – 2013 

Computer software 748,305 481,988 (380,101) 850,192 

Controlling entity – 2012 

Computer software 633,395 689,160 (574,250) 748,305 
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4.2.3. HERITAGE ASSETS 

 

 2013 2012 

 Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value Cost / Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 

Economic entity 

Heritage Assets 131,100 - 131,100 131,100  131,100 

Controlling entity 

Heritage Assets 131,100 - 131,100 131,100  131,100 

 

RECONCILIATION OF HERITAGE ASSETS 

 Opening balance Additions Total 

Economic entity – 2013 

Computer software 131,100 - 131,100 

Economic entity – 2012 

Computer software 100,000 31,100 131,100 

Controlling entity – 2013 

Computer software 131,100 - 131,100 

Controlling entity – 2012 

Computer software Economic entity - 2013 131,100 131,100 

 

4.2.4.  LONG TERM RECEIVABLES 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Long term Receivables 771,504 576,354 771,504 576,354 

Impairment of long term 

receivables 
(609,117) - (609,117) - 

Total 162,387 576,354 162,387 576,354 

 
The Long term receivables relate to car loans issued to former employees. These loans were issued at 8% per annum for 

4 years. These loans have been owing been owing since 2004. The loans have been handed over to the Lawyers for 

collection. The recoverability of these amounts is not certain hence the provision for impairment. 

4.2.5. OPERATING LEASE ACCRUAL 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current assets 7,347 1,274 7,347 1,274 

Current liabilities (43,656) (29,901) (43,656) (29,901) 

Total (36,309) (28,627) (36,309) (28,627) 

 

Operating Leases relate to Property, Plant and Equipment with lease terms not longer than 5 years with an option to 

extend for a further period. All operating contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the municipality 

exercises its option to renew. The municipality does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the 

lease period. 
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4.2.6. INVENTORIES 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Consumable stores 1,962,908 2,966,802 1,962,908 2,966,802 

Water 2,207,281 1,435,533 2,207,281 1,435,533 

Other 124,110 - 124,110 - 

 4,294,299 4,402,335 4,294,299 4,402,335 

 

INVENTORY PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

No Inventories have been pledged as collateral for Liabilities of the municipality 

 

4.2.7. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Staff Debtors 840,618 44,173 840,618 44,173 

Accrued Interest 126,487 - 126,487 - 

Sundry Debtors 3,762,863 127,856 3,762,863 127,856 

Total 4,729,968 172,029 4,729,968 172,029 

 

The overspent grants relates to municipal funds that were spent to speed up the delivery process. Funds are 

to be re-imbursed by National Treasury. Allocations have been made in the 2013/2014 Division of Revenue 

Act therefore the amount was not written off and no provision for doubtful debts has been raised. 

4.2.8. VAT RECEIVABLE 

 

VAT is payable on payment basis once payment has been received from Debtors VAT is paid over to SARS. 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

VAT 10,093,448 22,932,381 10,093,448 22,932,381 
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4.2.9. CONSUMER DEBTORS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Gross balances 

Water 46,436,103      39,578,112 46,436,103 39,578,112 

Sewerage 5,706,590 4,554,363 5,706,590 4,554,363 

Other 7,189,562 4,808,254 7,189,562 4,808,254 

Total 59,332,255 48,940,729 59,332,255 48,940,729 

Less: Allowance for impairment 

Water (37,708,718) (15,295,796) (37,708,718) (15,295,796) 

Sewerage (4,632,952) (22,841,068) (4,632,952) (22,841,068) 

Total (42,341,670) (38,136,864) (42,341,670) (38,136,864) 

Net balance 

Water 8,727,385 24,282,316 8,727,385 24,282,316 

Sewerage 1,073,638 (18,286,705) 1,073,638 (18,286,705) 

Other 7,189,562 4,808,254 7,189,562 4,808,254 

Total 16,990,585 10,803,865 16,990,585 10,803,865 

Water 

Current (0 -30 days) 183,552 577,815 183,552 577,815 

31 - 60 days 1,475,295 1,885,972 1,475,295 1,885,972 

61 - 90 days 1,292,902 1,415,600 1,292,902 1,415,600 

91+ days 5,775,636 20,402,929 5,775,636 20,402,929 

Total 8,727,385 24,282,316 8,727,385 24,282,316 

Sewerage 

Current (0 -30 days) 8,395 68,880 8,395 68,880 

31 - 60 days 167,707 60,230 167,707 60,230 

61 - 90 days 161,473 61,663 161,473 61,663 

91+ 120 days 177,163 177,163 177,163 177,163 

121+ Days 558,900 801,689 558,900 801,689 

Total 1,073,638 1,169,626 1,073,638 1,169,626 

Other 

Current (0 -30 days) 7,189,562 4,808,254 7,189,562 4,808,254 

 

  

SUMMARY OF DEBTORS BY CUSTOMER CLASSIFICATION 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Consumers 

Current (0 -30 days) (252,621) 518,007 (252,621) 518,007 

31 - 60 days 657,258 1,225,836 657,258 1,225,836 

61 - 90 days 661,305 556,021 661,305 556,021 

91+ days 27,742,800 23,557,862 27,742,800 23,557,862 

Total 28,808,742 25,857,726 28,808,742 25,857,726 

Less: Allowance for impairment (25,371,341) (23,520,525) (25,371,341) (23,520,525) 

Total 3,437,401 2,337,201 3,437,401 2,337,201 

Industrial/ commercial 

Current (0 -30 days) (194,692) 1,081,924 (194,692) 1,081,924 

31 - 60 days 801,151 638,641 801,151 638,641 

61 - 90 days 660,552 582,013 660,552 582,013 

91+ days 18,002,615 13,766,166 18,002,615 13,766,166 

Total 19,269,626 16,068,744 19,269,626 16,068,744 

Less: Allowance for impairment (16,970,329) (14,616,340) (16,970,329) (14,616,340) 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Total 2,299,297 1,452,404 2,299,297 1,452,404 

National and provincial government 

Current (0 -30 days) (88,133) 481,004 (88,133) 481,004 

31 - 60 days 414,613 361,364 414,613 361,364 

61 - 90 days 336,130 549,092 336,130 549,092 

91+ days 10,178,907 5,317,101 10,178,907 5,317,101 

Total 10,841,517 6,708,561 10,841,517 6,708,561 

Total 

Current (0 -30 days) (535,446) 2,080,935 (535,446) 2,080,935 

31 - 60 days 1,873,022 2,225,840 1,873,022 2,225,840 

61 - 90 days 1,657,987 1,687,127 1,657,987 1,687,127 

91+  days 56,336,692 42,946,827 56,336,692 42,946,827 

Total 59,332,255 48,940,729 59,332,255 48,940,729 

Less: Allowance for impairment (42,341,670) (38,136,864) (42,341,670) (38,136,864) 

Total 16,990,585 10,803,865 16,990,585 10,803,865 

 

Balance at beginning of the year (37,708,718) (16,510,262) (37,708,718) (16,510,262) 

Contributions to allowance (4,632,952) (21,626,602) (4,632,952) (21,626,602) 

Total (42,341,670) (38,136,864) (42,341,670) (38,136,864) 

 

4.2.10.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Consumers 

Cash on hand 186,858,265 129,846,881 186,858,265 129,844,781 

Bank balances 45,570,180 7,141,484 39,256,915 - 

Short-term deposits 23,130 22,244 - - 

Bank Overdraft - (422,164) - (422,164) 

Total 232,451,575 136,588,445 226,115,180 129,422,617 

Current assets 232,451,575 137,010,609 226,115,180 129,844,781 

Current liabilities - (422,164) - (422,164) 

 232,451,575 136,588,445 226,115,180 129,422,617 

 

 The Economic entity had the following bank accounts 

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances 

 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 

First National Bank - Mount Frere 

Branch, Mount Frere - Account 

Number 620 2493 2974 

4,066,273 529,478 595,446 27,197,128 (6,799,474) (71,804) 

First National Bank - Mount Frere Branch, Mount 

Frere - Account Number 621 5258 1586: 
11,981,165 6,788,950 2,303,898 12,059,779 6,377,310 2,433,437 

First National Bank - Public 

Sector Cheque Account - 

62215290355 (Agency) 

6,313,265 7,141,484 329,593 6,313,265 7,141,484 329,593 

ANDM Plant Account- Money Market Account # 

62045760578 
178,804 173,300 167,137 178,804 173,300 167,137 

ANDM Main- Money Market Account # 

62027456038 
9,977,587 10,913,470 216,862 9,977,587 10,913,470 216,862 

ATTIC Account - Call Account # 62058639348 920,727 1,751,174 1,035,646 920,727 1,751,174 1,035,646 

Disaster Management Centre Money Market 
Account # 

5,304 5,814 6,323 5,304 5,814 6,323 
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Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances 

 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 

62027457036 

Drought Relief - Call Account # 62058638415 1,036 1,026 2,884,943 1,036 1,026 2,884,943 

DWAF Capital Account - Money 

Market Account # 62049316278 
6,004,997 3,821,532 1,759,623 6,004,997 3,821,532 1,759,623 

DWAF Salaries Account - Call Account # 

62027459371 
7,295,322 938,932 122,052 7,295,322 938,932 122,052 

EPWP Account - Call Account # 62058637110 6,205,408 5,387,366 2,675,760 6,205,408 5,387,366 2,675,760 

FMG Account - Money Market Account # 

62033034597 
38,617 5,860 80,431 38,617 5,860 80,431 

IDP Grant Account - Money Market Account # 

62027456088 
1,190 1,700 517,550 1,190 1,700 517,550 

LG SETA Account - Money Market Account # 

62054297893 
918,539 460,980 111,106 918,539 460,980 111,106 

LED Grant Account - Call Account # 62019084144 2,603 2,569 380,176 2,603 2,569 380,176 

LED Capacity Building Account Money Market 

Account # 
1,576,715 1,157,081 751,047 1,576,715 1,157,081 751,047 

LED Strategy Account - Call Account # 

62090556279 
1,570 1,518 111,106 1,570 1,518 111,106 

MIG Account - Call Account # 62065368328 22,789,957 149,268 559,147 22,789,957 149,268 559,147 

MSIG Account - Call Account # 62027459256 30,563 3,850 148,825 30,563 3,850 148,825 

PMS Account - Call Account # 62058638837 1,774 1,757 1,739 1,774 1,757 1,739 

Reserve Fund Account - Money Market Account # 

62027455808 
46,235,438 1,097,706 1,056,150 46,235,438 1,097,706 1,056,150 

Rural Housing Development - Money Market 

Account # 62027456559 
1,327,013 1,282,949 1,234,304 1,327,013 1,282,949 1,234,304 

Salaries Account - Money Market Account # 

62034530297 
34,090,317 42,975,049 1,842,363 34,090,317 42,975,049 1,842,363 

Sport & Recreation Account- Money Market 

Account # 62025448855 
1,007,756 974,414 2,125,980 1,007,756 974,414 2,125,980 

Thetha Account - Call Account # 62093560136 888,709 858,899 33,868 888,709 858,899 33,868 

Vote 2 Account - Call Account # 62058636716 24,661,302 31,135,862 38,276 24,661,302 31,135,862 38,276 

Vote 4 Account - Call Account # 62058637681 22,697,016 26,742,704 5,073,856 22,697,016 26,742,704 5,073,856 

First National Bank - Call Account - 62238128351 

(Agency) 
3,148 3,027 - 3,148 3,027 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238128517 (Agency) 
2,648 2,546 - 2,648 2,546 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238128781(Agency) 
4,206 4,045 - 4,206 4,045 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238129094 (Agency) 
1,365 1,313 - 1,365 1,313 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238129804 (Agency) 
1,377 1,324 - 1,377 1,324 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238130231 (Agency) 
5,760 5,539 - 5,760 5,539 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238127949 (Angency) 
2,658 2,470 - 2,568 2,470 - 

First National Bank - Call 

Account - 62238128129 (Agency) 

Total 

2,086 1,980 - 2,059 1,980 - 

 209,242,215 144,326,936 26,163,207 232,451,567 136,586,344 25,625,496 

 

The above accounts are for the economic entity. All the accounts are held by First National Bank   
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4.2.11. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS 

 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of: 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

Transitional Facilitation Committee - 1,004,672 - 1,004,672 

Expanded Public Works 

Programme (EPWP) 
- 3,474,994 - 3,474,994 

Department of Water Affairs 

&Forestry 
9,469 9,469 9,469 9,469 

DIDEA 3 3 3 3 

LED Strategy 151 151 151 151 

Dept of Transport 596,795 1,036,004 596,795 1,036,004 

LGSETA 582,956 582,956 582,956 582,956 

THETHA 32,481 1,831,481 32,481 1,831,481 

Water Services Operation Grants 4,131,730 - 4,131,730 - 

Performance Management System - 2,484 - 2,484 

Water Conservation and Demand 

Management 
- 444,681 - 444,681 

Sports and Culture 3,200,697 4,302,496 3,200,697 4,302,496 

IDP Support - 405 - 405 

Disaster Management 339 339 339 339 

ISDG 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - 

Rain Water Harvest 372,069 372,069 372,069 372,069 

Regional Bulk Scheme 3,165,566 3,700,757 3,165,566 3,700,757 

Fire and Emergency 868,661 868,661 868,661 868,661 

Attic 653,985 1,452,765 653,985 1,452,765 

Rural Housing 1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 

LED Capacity (14,362) 513 (14,362) 513 

ISRDP 411 411 411 411 

 16,320,764 20,305,125 16,320,764 20,305,125 

    

The unspent Grants portion are cash backed by term deposits. The municipality complied with the 

conditions attached to all the grants received to the extent of revenue recognised. No grants were 

withheld. 

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been 

recognised. 

See note 19 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government. 

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised. 
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4.2.12. PROVISIONS 

 

 Opening Balance Additions Utilised during the year Total 

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity - 2013 

Long Service Awards 1,432,612 1,651,245 (322,707) 2,761,150 

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity - 2012 

Long Service Awards 163,902 1,432,612 (163,902) 1,432,612 

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity - 2013 

Long Service Awards 1,432,612 1,651,245 (322,707) 2,761,150 

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity – 2012 

Long Service Awards 163,902 1,432,612 (163,902) 1,432,612 

 

Non-current liabilities 2,661,384  1,268,710  2,661,384  1,268,710  

Current liabilities 99,766 163,902 99,766 163,902 

Total 2,761,150 1,432,612 2,761,150 1,432,612 

 

The municipality operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its employees. Under the plan, a Long-

service Award is payable after 5years of continuous service and every 5years thereafter to employees. The 

provision is an estimate of the long-service based on historical staff turnover. No other long-service benefits 

are provided to employees. These provisions are made in order to enable the municipality to be in a 

position to fulfill its known legal obligations when they become due and payable. 

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

were carried out at 30 June 2013 by Mr. C Weiss Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present 

value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 

measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

At year-end, 99 (2012: 102) employees were eligible for Long-service Awards. 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows 

Discount Rate 7.44% 6.80% 7.44% 6.80% 

Cost Inflation Rate 6.86% 5.98% 6.86% 5.98% 

Net Effective Discount Rate 0.54% 0.77% 0.54% 0.77% 

Expected Retirement Age - 

Females 
65 65 65 65 

Expected Retirement Age - Males 60 60 60 60 

Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation were as follows 

Balance at the beginning of the 

year 
1,432,612 1,281,192 1,432,612 1,281,192 

Current service costs 717,834 156,559 717,834 156,559 

Interest cost 211,439 87,040 211,439 87,040 

Benefits paid (386,843) (149,807) (386,843) (149,807) 

Actuarial losses / (gains) 786,108 57,628 786,108 57,628 

Present Value of Fund Obligation 

at the end of the Year 
2,761,150 1,432,612 2,761,150 1,432,612 

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows: 

Current service cost 717,834 156,559 717,834 156,559 

Interest cost 211,439 87,040 211,439 87,040 

Actuarial losses / (gains)  786,108 57,628 786,108 57,628 

Total Post-retirement Benefit 

included in Employee Related Costs 
1,715,381 301,227 1,715,381 301,227 
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4.2.13. LONG TERM LIABILITY  

 

Annuity Loans are repaid over periods varying from 12 to 13 (2012: 13 to 14) years and at interest rates 

varying from 5,00% to 11,47% (2012: 5,00% to 11,47%) per annum. Annuity Loans are not secured. The 

municipality did not default on any payment of its Long-term Liabilities. No terms for payment have been re-

negotiaited by the municipality. Refer to Appendix "A" for more detail on Long-term Liabilities 

 

4.2.14. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

 

Trade payables 58,708,836 35,955,762 58,456,282 35,700,585 

Loan Instalment Account 564,230 564,230 564,230 564,230 

Retention 54,982,166 42,891,412 54,982,166 42,891,412 

Third Party Payments 2,338,353 718,947 1,693,470 27,313 

Staff Leave 6,077,383 5,271,622 6,077,383 5,271,622 

Other Creditors (1,338,544) 112,642 3,034,540 - 

VAT Accrual 3,044,723 (458,987) 3,044,723 (458,987) 

Total 124,377,147 85,055,628 127,852,794 83,996,175 

 

Staff Leave accrue to the staff of the municipality on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The 

provision is an estimate of the amount due at the reporting date. 

4.2.15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE 

 

Categories of financial instruments 

 

Non-current Investments At fair value At amortised cost Total 

Economic entity - 2013 

Financial assets 

Fixed Deposits - 20,425,734 20,425,734 

Long-term Receivables - -  

Car Loans - 162,387 162,387 

Consumer Debtors - - 
 

Sewerage and Sanitation charges - 1,073,638 1,073,638 

Water - 8,727,385 8,727,385 

Other - 7,189,562 7,189,562 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions -   

Staff debtors - 840,618 840,618 

Accrued Interest - 126,487 126,487 

Sundry Debtors - 3,762,863 3,762,863 

Cash and cash equivalents -   

Call Deposits 186,858,265 - 186,858,265 

Bank Balances 45,570,180 - 45,570,180 

Short term deposits 23,130 - 23,130 

Total 232,451,575 42,308,674 274,760,249 

Financial liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities Annuity Loans  29,933,256 29,933,256 

Payables Trade Creditors  58,708,836 58,708,836 

Retentions  54,982,166 54,982,166 
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Non-current Investments At fair value At amortised cost Total 

Third Party payments  2,338,353 2,338,353 

Staff Leave Accrued  6,077,383 6,077,383 

Other liability  (1,338,544) (1,338,544) 

Total  150,701,450 150,701,450 

Economic entity – 2012 

Financial assets 

Non-current Investments    

Fixed Deposits - 18,477,753 18,477,753 

Long-term Receivables -   

Car Loans - 576,354 576,354 

Consumer Debtors - 
  

Water - 24,282,316 24,282,316 

Other  - 4,808,254 4,808,254 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - 
  

Staff debtors - 44,173 44,173 

Sundry Debtors - 127,856 127,856 

Cash and cash equivalents -   

Call Deposits 129,846,881 - 129,846,881 

Bank Balances 7,141,484 - 7,141,484 

Short term deposits 22,244 - 22,244 

 137,010,609 48,316,706 185,327,315 

Financial liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities  - - 

Annuity Loans  31,374,020 31,374,020 

Payables   - - 

Trade Creditors  35,700,584 35,700,584 

Retentions  42,891,412 42,891,412 

Third Party payments  718,947 718,947 

Staff Leave Accrued  5,271,622 5,271,622 

Other Creditors  112,642 112,642 

Bank overdraft  (422,164) (422,164) 

  115,647,063 115,647,063 

Controlling entity – 2013 

Financial assets 

Non-current Investments -   

Fixed Deposits - 20,425,734 20,425,734 

Unlisted Investments - 100 100 

Long-term Receivables -   

Car Loans - 162,387 162,387 

Receivables from Exchange Transactions -   

Consumer Debtors - 16,990,585 16,990,585 

Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions -   

Staff Debtors - 840,618 840,618 

Sundry Debtors - 3,762,863 3,762,863 

Cash and Cash Equivalents -   

Call Deposits 186,858,265 - 186,858,265 

Bank Balances 39,256,915 - 39,256,915 

Total 226,115,180 42,182,287 268,297,467 
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Non-current Investments At fair value At amortised cost Total 

Financial liabilities 

Long-term Liabilities Annuity Loans  29,933,256 29,933,256 

Payables 

Trade Creditors 
 58,456,282 58,456,282 

Retentions  54,982,166 54,982,166 

Third Party payments  1,693,470 1,693,470 

Other Creditors  3,034,540 3,034,540 

  148,099,714 148,099,714 

Controlling entity – 2012 

Financial assets 

Non-current Investments - 
  

Fixed Deposits - 18,477,653 18,477,653 

Unlisted Investments - 100 100 

Long-term Receivables -   

Car Loans - 576,354 576,354 

Receivables from Exchange -   

Consumer debtors - 10,803,865 10,803,865 

Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions - 
  

Staff Debtors - 44,173 44,173 

Sundry Debtors - 127,856 127,856 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 
  

Call Deposits 129,844,781 - 129,844,781 

Bank Balances (422,164) - (422,164) 

Total 129,422,617 30,030,001 159,452,618 

Financial liabilities    

Long-term Liabilities Annuity Loans  31,374,020 31,374,020 

Payables 

Trade Creditors 
 35,700,586 35,700,586 

Retentions  42,891,412 42,891,412 

Staff Leave Accrued  5,271,622 5,271,622 

Total  115,237,640 115,237,640 
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4.2.16. Revenue 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Gains on disposal of Assets 112,802 - 112,802 - 

Service charges 13,720,324 15,286,268 13,720,324 15,286,268 

Rental of facilities and equipment 330,331 235,339 330,331 235,339 

Income from agency services 52,639 26,182 52,639 26,182 

Public Contributions and 

Donations 
200,000 116,833 200,000 116,833 

Other income 1,029,310 1,864,732 1,029,310 1,864,732 

Interest received - investment 12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

Government grants & subsidies 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 

 771,900,035 1,144,553,825 771,749,246 1,144,501,076 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows: 

Service charges 13,720,324 15,286,268 13,720,324 15,286,268 

Rental of facilities and equipment 330,331 235,339 330,331 235,339 

Income from agency services 52,639 26,182 52,639 26,182 

Other income 1,029,310 1,864,732 1,029,310 1,864,732 

Interest received - investment 12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

 27,162,448 28,940,038 27,011,659 28,887,289 

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows: 
Taxation revenue 

Transfer revenue 

 

Government grants & subsidies 
744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 

Public contributions and donations 200,000 116,833 200,000 116,833 

 744,624,785 1,115,613,787 744,624,785 1,115,613,787 

 

4.2.17. SERVICE CHARGES 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Sale of water 11,712,129 13,389,720 11,712,129 13,389,720 

Sewerage and sanitation charges 2,008,195 1,896,548 2,008,195 1,896,548 

 
13,720,324 15,286,268 13,720,324 15,286,268 

 

 

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from Service Charges are in respect of services rendered which 

are billed to the consumers on a monthly basis according to approved tariffs 
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 4.2.18. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Operating grants     

Equitable share 297,328,526 751,360,145 297,328,526 751,360,145 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

(MIG) 
373,803,001 308,146,000 373,803,001 308,146,000 

Dept of Transport 2,215,209 651,996 2,215,209 651,996 

IDP Support 405 662,512 405 662,512 

Expanded Public Works 

Programme (EPWP) 
21,577,995 7,206,226 21,577,995 7,206,226 

Dept of Water Affairs & Forestry 

(DWAF) 
- 2,267,774 - 2,267,774 

Finance Management Grant (FMG) 1,250,000 1,571,133 1,250,000 1,571,133 

Disaster Management - 406,105 - 406,105 

Municipal Systems 

Implementation Grant (MSIG) 
1,000,000 1,090,273 1,000,000 1,090,273 

Municipal Health 3,908,958 - 3,908,958 - 

LGSETA 840,692 - 840,692 - 

Transitional Facilitation 

Committee 
1,004,673 1,281,535 1,004,673 1,281,535 

Fire and Emergency 5,673 33,454 5,673 33,454 

Attic 798,780 3,883,444 798,780 3,883,444 

Regional Bulk Scheme 19,069,520 24,809,583 19,069,520 24,809,583 

Sports and Culture 1,101,798 594,344 1,101,798 594,344 

Water Services Operation Grant 19,286,270 8,022,694 19,286,270 8,022,694 

DIDEA - 221,844 - 221,844 

Performance Management 

Systems 
2,484 41,153 2,484 41,153 

Water Conservation and Demand 

Management 
844,681 1,405,319 844,681 1,405,319 

LED Strategy - 562,494 - 562,494 

LED Capacity 386,120 569,050 386,120 569,050 

ISRDP Nodal Support - 709,876 - 709,876 

 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 

 
744,424,785 1,115,496,954 744,424,785 1,115,496,954 

 

EQUITABLE SHARE 

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community 
members and also to assist poor Municipalities with financing their operational expenditure. 

All registered indigents receive a monthly subsidy of R1,30 per kl (2012: R1,30), which is funded from the 

grant based on the monthly billing, towards the consumer account, which subsidy is determined annually 

by council. Indigent residential households receive 6kl water free every month. No funds have been 

withheld. 

TRANSITIONAL FACILITATION COMMITTEE 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
1,004,672 2,286,208 1,004,672 2,286,208 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(1,004,672) (1,281,536) (1,004,672) (1,281,536) 

 - 1,004,672 - 1,004,672 
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Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

IThis grant was used to facilitate the process of re-establishing Alfred Nzo District Municipality in the 

implementation of section 12 Notice. 

EXPANDED PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMME 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
3,474,994 1,413,220 3,474,994 1,413,220 

Current-year receipts 16,304,000 9,268,000 16,304,000 9,268,000 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(19,778,994) (7,206,226) (19,778,994) (7,206,226) 

Total - 3,474,994 - 3,474,994 

 

The EPWP Grant is used to incentivise municipalities to expand work creation efforts through the use of 

labour intensive delivery methods in the following identified focus areas, in compliance with the EPWP 

guidelines: road maintenance and the maintenance of buildings; low traffic volume roads and rural roads; 

basic services infrastructure, including water and sewer reticulation, sanitation, pipelines (excluding bulk 

infrastructure); other economic and social infrastructure; tourism and cultural industries; waste 

management; parks and beautification; sustainable land-based livelihoods; social services programmes; 

health service programmes; and community safety programmes. 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

FINANCE MANAGEMENT GRANT (FMG) 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
- 321,733 - 321,733 

Current-year receipts 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(1,250,000) (1,571,733) (1,250,000) (1,571,733) 

The Municipal Finance Management Grant is allocated to municipalities to assist in building in-house 

capacity to perform their functions and to improve and stabilise municipal systems. No funds have been 

withheld. 

MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT (MIG) 

Current-year receipts 373,803,001 308,146,000 373,803,000 308,146,000 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(373,803,001) (308,146,000) (373,803,001) (308,146,000) 

The Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) was allocated for the construction of basic sewerage and water 

infrastructure as part of the upgrading of poor households, microenterprises and social institutions; to 

provide for new, rehabilitation and upgrading of municipal infrastructure. The grant is allocated from 

Cooperative Government & Traditional Affairs. No funds have been withheld. 

MUNICIPAL SYSTEMS IMPLEMENTATION GRANT (MSIG) 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
- 300,273 - 300,273 

Current-year receipts 1,000,000 790,000 1,000,000 790,000 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(1,000,000) (1,090,273) (1,000,000) (1,090,273) 

The grant was used to establish and review Policies, By-laws, Internal Control Systems and the preparation 

of a GRAP-compliant Assets Register. No funds have been withheld. 

DEPT OF WATER AFFAIRS 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
9,469 2,277,243 9,469 2,277,243 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
- (2,267,774) - (2,267,774) 

 9,469 9,469 9,469 9,469 

This grant was used for the construction of dams, which will provide sustainable water supply to the 

communities of Umzimvubu and Matatiele local municipality areas . No funds have been withheld. 

DIDEA 

Balance unspent at beginning of 
year 

3 221,847 3 221,847 

Conditions met - transferred to 
revenue 

- (221,844) - (221,844) 

This grant was received to assist in local economic development and the promotion of tourism. No funds 

have been withheld. 

LED Strategy 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
151 562,645 151 562,645 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
- (562,494) - (562,494) 

 151 151 151 151 

This grant was received to assist in local economic development and the promotion of tourism. No funds 

have been withheld 

Dept of Transport 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
1,036,004 1,688,000 1,036,004 1,688,000 

Current-year receipts 1,776,000 - 1,776,000 - 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(2,215,209) (651,996) (2,215,209) (651,996) 

 596,795 1,036,004 596,795 1,036,004 

     

The district municipalities are responsible for developing Integrated Transport Plans that will contribute 

towards a structured and sustainable transport model. No funds have been withheld. 

LGSETA 

Balance unspent at beginning of 
year 

582,956 63,991 582,956 63,991 

Current-year receipts - 518,965 - 518,965 

 582,956 582,956 582,956 582,956 

This grant is used for reimbursement of funds utilised for Municipal Skills and Development and Training for its 

Employees. 

THETHA 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
1,831,481 32,481 1,831,481 32,481 

Current-year receipts - 1,799,000 - 1,799,000 

Other (1,799,000) - (1,799,000) - 

 32,481 1,831,481 32,481 1,831,481 

The local municipalities contributed towards a project to develop job descriptions and evaluate post levels 

within the municipalities. No funds have been withheld. 

Municipal Health Grant 

Current-year receipts 3,908,958 - 3,908,958  

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(3,908,958) - (3,908,958)  
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Water Services Operations Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
- 1,833,850 - 1,833,850 

Current-year receipts 23,418,000 6,188,844 23,418,000 6,188,844 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(19,286,270) (8,022,694) (19,286,270) (8,022,694) 

 4,131,730 - 4,131,730 - 

This grant was allocated to compensate all the employees that were transferred from the Department of 

Water Affairs . No funds have been withheld. 

Performance Management Systems 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

the year 
2,484 43,637 2,484 43,637 

Conditions met – transferred to 

revenue 
2,484 (41,153) 2,484 (41,153) 

Total - 2,484 - 2,484 

 

Water Conservation and Demand Management 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
444,681 1,850,000 444,681 1,850,000 

Current-year receipts 400,000 - 400,000 - 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(844,681) (1,405,319) (844,681) (1,405,319) 

 - 444,681 - 444,681 

This Grant has been allocated to assist the municipality to establish water conservation and demand 

management systems 

Sports and Culture 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
4,302,496 2,106,840 4,302,496 2,106,840 

Current-year receipts - 2,790,000 - 2,790,000 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(1,101,799) (594,344) (1,101,799) (594,344) 

 3,200,697  4,302,496 3,200,697  4,302,496 

 

IDP Support 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
405 662,917 405 662,917 

Current-year receipts (405) (662,512) (405) (662,512) 

 - 405 - 405 

The Grant was used to build capacity in the formulation of IDP for the district as well as providing financial 

assistance to local municipalities to facilitate public participation 

Disaster Management 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
339 406,444 339 406,444 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
- (406,105) - (406,105) 

 339   339 339 339 

This Grant was used to provide immediate relief to communities affected by disasters. 

ISDG 

Current-year receipts  1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Rain Water Harvest 

Balance unspent at beginning 
of year 

372,069 (404,498) 372,069 (404,498) 

Current-year receipts - 827,003 - 827,003 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
- (50,436) - (50,436) 

 372,069 372,069 372,069 372,069 

The Grant was used to harvest water from the rain in the villages where the RDP piped water has not been 

provided 

Regional Bulk Scheme 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
3,700,757 (1,419,271) 3,700,757 (1,419,271) 

Current-year receipts 18,534,329 29,929,611 18,534,329 29,929,611 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(19,069,520) (24,809,583) (19,069,520) (24,809,583) 

Total 3,165,566 3,700,757 3,165,566 3,700,757 

This grant was used for the construction of dams, which will provide sustainable water supply to the 

communities of Umzimvubu and Matatiele local municipality areas .The grant is transferred from DWA. 

Fire and Emergency 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
868,661 86,702 868,661 86,702 

Current-year receipts - 815,413 - 815,413 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(5,673) (33,454) (5,673) (33,454) 

Other 5,673 - 5,673 - 

Total 868,661 868,661 868,661 868,661 

The Grant has been used to buy fire and rescue equipment 

Attic 

Balance unspent at beginning 
of year 

1,452,765 1,953,638 1,452,765 1,953,638 

Current-year receipts - 3,382,571 - 3,382,571 

Conditions met - transferred to 
revenue 

(798,780) (3,883,444) (798,780) (3,883,444) 

Total 653,985 1,452,765 653,985 1,452,765 

This grant is a contribution towards addressing HIV/AIDS issues in the areas of the local municipalities in the 

district and was used for the purchase of drugs, home-based care kits, etc. No funds have been withheld. 

Rural Housing 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 

Current-year receipts - - - - 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
- - - - 

Total 1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 1,219,814 

 

LED Capacity 

Balance unspent at beginning of 

year 
513 198,317 513 198,317 

Current-year receipts 371,245 371,246 371,245 371,246 

Conditions met - transferred to 

revenue 
(386,120) (569,050) (386,120) (569,050) 

Total (14,362) 513 (14,362) 513 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

This grant was received to assist in local economic development and the promotion of tourism. No funds 

have been withheld 

ISRDP 

Balance unspent at beginning 
of year 

411 710,287 411 710,287  

Conditions met - transferred to 
revenue 

- (709,876) - (709,876) 

Total 411 411 411 411 

4.2.19. OTHER INCOME 
 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Penalty  (400) 97 (400) 97 

Fire Levy 442 8,366 442 8,366 

Sundry Income 88,611 797,202 88,611 797,202 

Tender Deposits 917,534 959,446 917,534 959,446 

Refund Received 23,123 99,621 23,123 99,621 

Total 1,029,310 1,864,732 1,029,310 1,864,732 
 

The amounts disclosed above for Other Income are in respect of services, other than described in Notes 16 

and 17, rendered which are billed to or paid for by the users as the services are required according to 

approved tariffs. Internal Recoveries are journalised from other trading and economic service 

 

4.2.20. GENERAL EXPENSES 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Advertising 588,960 177,174 550,878 177,174 

Auditors remuneration 5,096,952 5,634,814 4,588,277 5,585,394 

Bank charges 329,682 194,917 315,418 181,422 

Cleaning 495,553 1,042,867 424,490 1,002,152 

Computer expenses 22,471 5,212 - - 

Consulting and professional fees 2,167,799 1,013,418 415,705 410,282 

Entertainment 7,762 2,182 - - 

Fines and penalties 212,158 141,141 - - 

Gifts 2,500 - - - 

Hire 1,780,266 992,236 1,737,467 970,009 

Insurance 2,372,133 2,597,834 2,372,133 2,597,834 

Conferences and seminars 50,588 259,583 - - 

IT expenses 1,667 32,676 - - 

Marketing 1,060,471 777,882 1,060,471 767,417 

Newspapers and periodicals 34,815 15,961 34,815 15,961 

Tools 46,237 9,964 46,237 9,964 

Fuel and oil 2,602,982 879,258 2,602,982 879,258 

Recruitment fees 576,265 444,724 496,229 352,085 

Postage and courier 2,495 - - - 

Printing and stationery 896,566 460,815 733,059 417,509 

Protective clothing 1,205,637 848,790 1,196,473 848,790 

Security (Guarding of municipal 
property) 

- 6,866 - - 

Staff welfare 16,000 - 16,000 - 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Telephone and fax 4,481,109 3,474,932 4,369,754 3,474,214 

Training 3,036,730 2,127,429 3,006,510 2,098,059 

Travel - local 14,184,669 15,096,325 13,695,912 14,812,104 

Assets expensed 9,306 49,818 - - 

Electricity 9,945,766 7,171,946 9,871,545 7,101,654 

Accommodation 3,741,231 1,608,772 3,366,197 1,531,092 

Audit Committee Allowance 539,907 348,140 453,727 326,255 

Catering and Venue Hire 2,662,056 1,910,429 2,662,056 1,892,429 

Environmental Management 1,021,393 914,591 1,021,393 914,591 

Fire and Rescue Services 2,005,449 2,038,256 2,005,449 2,038,256 

License Fees 1,221,303 536,055 1,221,303 536,055 

Occupational Health and Safety 131,353 - 131,353 - 

Materials & Stores 3,262,462 34,612 3,262,462 34,612 

Chemicals 2,029,126 1,094,787 2,029,126 1,094,787 

Other Grant Expenses 1,472,220 1,318,714 1,472,220 1,318,714 

Other expenses 20,828,517 11,747,767 20,534,694 11,472,640 

Total 90,142,556 65,010,887 85,694,335 62,860,713 

 

4.2.21. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Basic 77,518,055 59,119,686 75,809,807 57,950,057 

Bonus 4,958,255 3,527,443 4,958,255 3,527,443 

Medical aid - company 

contributions 
3,810,287 2,746,509 3,810,287 2,746,509 

UIF 603,065 489,034 595,967 484,512 

SDL 1,083,547 763,225 1,061,851 749,009 

Leave pay provision charge 1,900,641 2,439,788 1,717,688 2,332,850 

Post-employment 

benefits - Pension - 

Defined contribution 

plan 

7,761,183 5,617,381 7,761,183 5,617,381 

Overtime payments 1,633,996 990,749 1,633,996 990,749 

Acting allowances 853,749 140,239 853,749 140,239 

Transport allowance 8,436,908 7,060,190 8,436,908 7,060,190 

Car allowance 224,333 132,000 - - 

Housing benefits and allowances 3,826,542 2,596,132 3,614,209 2,476,132 

Standby Allowance 1,077,379 673,292 1,077,379 673,292 

Shift Allowance 7,570,290 5,851,301 7,570,290 5,851,301 

Bargaining council 115,632 9,452 115,632 9,452 

Defined Benefits : Long Service 

Awards 
1,715,381 301,227 1,715,381 301,227 

Total 123,089,243 92,457,648 120,732,582 90,910,343 

Remuneration of Municipal Manager 

Annual Remuneration 
491,450 595,200 491,450 595,200 

Car Allowance 147,560 387,478 147,560 387,478 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
19,461 1,497 19,461 1,497 

Total 
658,471 984,175 658,471 984,175 

There was no Municipal Manager for 3 months from January 2013 to March 2013. The Senior Manager - Technical Services 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

was Acting in the place of the Municipal Manager for that period. 
 

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer 

Annual Remuneration 252,228 - 252,228 511,355 

Car Allowance - - 84,076 329,432 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
- - 11,706 1,497 

Total 252,228  348,010 842,284 

There was no Chief Financial Officer for 7 months from October 2012 to April 2013. The Deputy CFO was Acting as the Chief 

Financial Officer for that period. 

Remuneration of Senior Manager - Community Services 

Annual Remuneration 585,825 498,225 585,825 498,225 

Car Allowance 146,456 279,825 146,456 279,825 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
13,413 1,497 13,413 1,497 

Total 745,694 779,547 745,694 779,547 

Corporate and Human Resources (Corporate Services) 

Annual Remuneration 410,059 - 410,059 - 

Car Allowance 127,771 - 127,771 - 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
7,116 - 7,116 - 

Total 544,946 - 544,946 - 

Remuneration of Senior Manager: Planning and Developmental Services 

Annual Remuneration 410,059 - 410,059 - 

Car Allowance 127,771 - 127,771 - 

Contributions to UIF, Medical Aid 

and Pension Funds 

7,484 - 7,484 - 

Total 545,314 - 545,314 - 

The Senior Manager Planning and Developmental Services was appointed in November. The PMU Manager 

was acting from January 2013 to March 2013 

Remuneration of Senior Manager: Technical Services 

Annual Remuneration 585,342 572,000 585,342 572,000 

Car Allowance 130,120 328,000 130,120 328,000 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
11,912 1,497 11,912 1,497 

Total 727,374 901,497 727,374 901,497 

Remuneration of Executive Manager: Office of the Mayor 

Annual Remuneration 535,500 494,458 535,500 494,458 

Car Allowance 230,263 240,333 230,263 240,333 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and 

Pension Funds 
9,835 1,497 9,835 1,497 

Total 775,598 736,288 775,598 736,288 

 

4.2.22. REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Executive Major 410,723 456,058 410,723 456,058 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Deputy Executive Mayor 84,811 - 84,811 - 

Mayoral Committee Members 1,950,424 2,022,447 1,950,424 2,022,447 

Speaker 272,791 341,707 272,791 341,707 

Councillors  3,393,289 2,931,653 3,393,289 2,931,653 

Councillors’ pension 

contribution  
459,854 74,318 459,854 74,318 

Other allowances 411,483 432,208 411,483 432,208 

Total 6,983,375 6,258,391 6,983,375 6,258,391 

 

IN-KIND BENEFITS 

The Councillors occupying the positions of Executive Mayor, Speaker and Executive Committee Members of the municipality serve in a 

fulltime capacity. They are provided with office accommodation and secretarial support at the expense of the municipality in order to 

enable them to perform their official duties. The Executive Mayor has use of a Council owned vehicle for official duties. Councillors 

may utilise official Council transportation when engaged in official duties. The Mayor has one full-time bodyguard and a full-time 

driver. 

4.2.23. INVESTMENT REVENUE 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

 

Controlled entities 11,833,276 10,843,766 11,833,276 10,843,766 

Interest in arrear debtors 45,779 - 45,779 - 

Bank 150,789 228,817 - 176,068 

Interest received - other - 454,934 - 454,934 

 12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

Total 12,029,844 11,527,517 11,879,055 11,474,768 

     

 

4.2.24. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Fees 5,096,952 5,634,814 4,588,277 5,585,394 

 

4.2.25. BULK PURCHASES 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Water 1,519,815 2,742,760 1,519,815 2,742,760 
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4.2.26. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Surplus 172,570,718 586,484,526 176,282,896 584,350,790 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 49,326,315 31,183,208 49,178,089 31,132,891 

(Loss) gain on sale of assets and 

liabilities 
(112,802) 84,076 (112,802) 84,076 

Impairment deficit 7,520,000 - - - 

Debt impairment 3,998,790 22,092,662 3,998,790 22,092,662 

Movements in operating lease 

assets and accruals 
7,682 25,136 7,682 25,136 

Movements in provisions 1,328,538 151,420 1,328,538 151,420 

Prior period errors 15,403,188 (158,787,285) 7,244,734 (136,079,566) 

Provision for Leave pay 1,717,688 2,332,850 1,717,688 2,332,850 

Changes in working capital: 

Inventories 108,036 (2,462,044) 108,036 (2,462,044) 

Receivables from exchange 

transactions 
(7,996,929) 107,598 - - 

Other receivables from non-

exchange transactions 
(4,557,939) (7,931,353) (3,742,806) 4,221,389 

Consumer debtors (10,391,526) (28,699,064) (10,391,526) (28,699,064) 

Payables from exchange 

transactions 
39,321,521 86,165,386 43,856,620 32,971,272 

VAT 13,390,335 (21,237,983) 12,838,933 5,384,846 

Unspent conditional grants and 

receipts 
(3,984,361) 5,145,036 (3,984,361) 3,581,148 

Unallocated credits 1,011,767 - 1,011,767 - 

Total 278,661,021 514,654,169 279,342,278 519,087,806 

     

 

4.2.27. COMMITMENTS 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Authorised capital expenditure 

Already contracted for but not provided for 

Infrastructure Assets 380,887,160 609,940,322 380,887,160 609,940,322 

Not yet contracted for and authorised by accounting officers 

Infrastructure Assets 14,572,597 207,633,652 14,572,597 207,633,652 

TEBA - 500,000 - - 

Digital Planet (Pty) Ltd - 165,446 - - 

Creative Hut 924,722 - - - 

ICMS 288,387 - - - 

Indingliz Advertising & Marketing 475,836 - - - 

Jonathan Clark 99,313 - - - 

Deloitte 373,510 - - - 

Furntech 197,000 - - - 

Total 16,931,365 208,299,098 14,572,597 207,633,652 

These commitments will be financed by available retained surpluses and Government Grants. 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due - Buildings 

within one year 273,426 204,702 273,426 204,702 

 in second to fifth year inclusive 394,306 631,581 394,306 631,581 

Total 667,732 836,283 667,732 836,283 

Operating Leases - Vehicles (expense) 

within one year 2,875,236 2,426,115 2,875,236 2,426,115 

in second to fifth year inclusive 2,711,785 4,598,033 2,711,785 4,598,033 

Later than five years 326,211 - 326,211 - 

Total 5,913,232 7,024,148 5,913,232 7,024,148 

Other Equipment 

within one year 494,789 583,854 494,789 583,854 

in second to fifth year inclusive - 428,917 - 428,917 

Total 494,789 1,012,771 494,789 1,012,771 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 

seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No contingent rent is payable. 

Operating leases - as lessor (income) - Buildings 

Minimum lease payments due 

 - within one year 238,040 251,894 238,040 251,894 

 - in second to fifth year inclusive 12,898 222,015 12,898 222,015 

Total 250,938 473,909 250,938 473,909 

Operating Leases relate to Property owned by the municipality with lease terms of between 2 to 3 years, with an option to extend. All operating lease contracts 
contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the 
expiry of the lease period 

4.2.28. CONTINGENCIES 
Contingent Liabilities 

Failure to pay for Contracted Services 

Economic 

Entity 

Controlling 

Entity 

During 2007 Jack Zulu issued summons against the municipality for specific performance; it being alleged that he 
was appointed by the municipality to render certain services at Umzimkhulu Area (previous dispensation) and the 
municipality failed to pay him in terms of the contract. The municipality denies that services were rendered. 
Pleadings closed and a trial date is awaited. 
Failure to pay Pension Contributions 

17,250 17,250 

During 2006 a former employee of the municipality instituted a legal action against the municipality claiming 

pension benefits it being alleged that the municipality failed to pay his pension contributions to the fund at the 

time he was employed by the municipality.  The municipality denies this allegation on the basis that he was 

employed on an all-inclusive package and as such it was his responsibility to structure his package to include 

pension. Pleadings closed and a trial date is awaited. Failure to pay for Goods Supplied and Services Rendered 

100,000 100,000 

During 2008 P Mabandla issued summons against the municipality for goods supplied and services rendered 

to the municipality at the latter's special instance and request. The municipality denies this. Pleadings closed 

and a trial date is awaited. Failure to pay for Services Rendered 

6,572 6,572 

In 2008 MJ Phirimane issued summons against the municipality for services rendered. The municipality is 

defending the matter. The matter is in pleading stage and the outcome is still uncertain. Failure to pay for 

Services Rendered 

28,200 28,200 

In 2006 Malukazi Project Managers issued summons for services rendered in the sanitation program in 

Umzimkhulu. The municipality is defending the matter. A trial date is awaited Failure to pay for Services 

Rendered 

1,914,259 1,914,259 

In 2008 summons were issued by Affinity Solutions (Pty) Ltd for services rendered. The municipality is 

defending the matter. A trial date is awaited Failure to claim from Provident Fund 
313,505 313,505 

In 2009 Z Mgwebi issued summons for damages emanating from failure to act by the municipality it being alleged 

the municipality failed to assist her together with her minor children to claim from the Provident Fund. The matter 

is defended by the municipality. The matter is now in pleading stage. Intervention in execution of Duties: 

1,200,000 1,200,000 

During 2010 J&G Enterprise issued summons for financial damages it being alleged that the municipality 

stopped them from performing in terms of their contract. The matter being defended by the municipality. 

The matter is in pleading stage. Failure to pay for Services Rendered 

1,541,600 1,541,600 
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In this matter summons was sued against the municipality for payment of the sum of R115 000.00 for services 
rendered it being alleged that the Service Provider was appointed to render certain services. The matter is being 
defended. 
Failure to pay for Services Rendered: 

115,000 115,000 

In 2010 summons were issued by David Sepeika Credit Consultants for services rendered (fog harvesting 

project). The matter is defended by the municipality. The matter is in pleading stage Failure to pay for Material 

Supplied: 

159,174 159,174 

Rob Pottow Irrigation issued summons against the municipality for failure to pay for materials supplied in terms 
of a verbal agreement. The municipality is defending the matter. The outcome is not certain at this stage. 
Breach of Contract 

24,522 24,522 

Sinezipho Urban & Rural Development claims against the municipality for alleged termination of contract. The 

municipality is defending the matter.Pleadings have been filed and the outcome is not certain at this stage. 
1,544,713 1,544,713 

Failure to pay for Services Rendered:   

Sometime in 2010 Sihlangene Financial Advisory Services CC and Umnotho issued summons against the 

municipality for services rendered. The municipality is defending the matter Breach of Contract of 

Employment: 

235,585 235,585 

In 2010 Zolani Gulwa issued summons against the municipality for breach of the contract of employment in that 
the municipality failed to pay him in terms of the contract. The municipality is defending the matter and it is 
pending in the high court. The matter is in pleading stage. 
Breach of Service Agreement 

566,189 566,189 

A claim by past service provider: MC Mgugudo for alleged breach of service level agreement with the entity. 120,734 - 

Breach of Service Agreement   

ANDA was mandated by council to mobilise funding for ANDM water infrastructure projects. ANDA then entered 

into an agreement with Gestalt. Gelstalt has instituted legal proceedings against the ANDM and or ANDA. The 

ANDM legal team is disputing any and all of Gestalt claim. The above is disclosed in the financial statements 

without prejudice. 

10,898,400 - 

Failure to Pay for Services Rendered   

In 2010 3P Consulting sued the municipality for services rendered and the matter is being defended by the municipality. 

The matter is in pleading stage. 

442,100 442,100 

 19,227,803 8,208,669 

 

Contingent assets 

 

Contingent Liabilities Economic 

Entity 

Controlling 

Entity 

Claim for Advance Payment   

The municipality has instituted a claim against T A Rautenbach based on acknowledgement of debt of advance payment 

granted for the construction of the one Centres.The outcome of the matter is still pending 
1,748,053 1,748,053 

Failure to deliver Services   

The municipality has instituted a claim against MP Civils for alleged failure to deliver a crawler sprinkler purchased in 

terms of a verbal contract.Settlement proposals are in the pipeline and the outcome of the case is still not certain 
30,700 30,700 

Collission Damages - Various Cases:    

The municipality has issued summons against various individuals for collission damages caused to municipal property. 

The outcome of the matters is still uncertain 
7,986 7,986 

Total 1,786,739 1,786,739 

 

4.2.29. RELATED PARTIES 
All Related Party Transactions are conducted at arm's length, unless stated otherwise 
No declarations were made by councillors and/or management of the municipality of any relationships with businesses. 
In terms of the MFMA, the municipality may not grant loans to its Councillors, Management, Staff and Public with effect from 1 July 2004. 
Loans, together with the conditions thereof, granted prior to this date are disclosed in Note 5 to the Annual Financial Statements 
Compensation of Key Management Personnel and Councillors is set out in Notes 21, of the Annual Financial Statements 
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Compensation to accounting officers and other key management 

 
Short-term employee benefits 5,468,105 3,980,030 5,468,105 3,980,030 

Post-employment benefits - Pension - Defined contribution plan 26,676,773 19,512,843 26,676,773 19,512,843 

 32,144,878 23,492,873 32,144,878 23,492,873 

 

4.2.30. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS 

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows: 

Prior Period Errors Economic Entity 
Controlling 

Entity 

Opening Balance 1,634,531,843 1,629,532,129 

Payables incorrectly accounted for in the prior period (195,353) (195,353) 

Accruals omitted in the prior period 1,156,964 1,156,964 

Correction of Leave Accrual 715,807 689,917 

Correction of Inventory double counted (151,426) (151,426) 

Assets omitted in the prior period 348,795,302 348,795,302 

Additions overstated in the prior period (390,600) (390,600) 

Assets amounts condoned by council (116,992,258) (116,992,258) 

Correction of amounts Incorrectly recorded in VAT Receivable (3,277,582) (3,277,582) 

Write off of Payables condoned by council (15,822,912) (15,822,912) 

Expenditure recorded in the wrong period (2,570,577) (2,570,577) 

Correction of Grants income (492,126) (492,126) 

Correction of Long Service Awards incorrectly calculated 1,281,192 1,281,192 

Adjustment of Debtors account to billing report (2,042,112) (2,042,112) 

Provision for Doubtful debts omitted 22,428,037 22,428,037 

Restatement of accruals 3,643,817 3,643,817 

Write off of Trade debtors condoned by council 6,387,021 6,387,021 

Other expenses misclassified (279,178,000) (279,178,000) 

Reversal of Duplicated accounts (22,587,758) (22,587,758) 

Total 
1,575,239,279 1,570,213,675 

  

 

Statement of financial position 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Property, plant and equipment 1,519,490,942 1,517,358,269 1,519,490,942 1,517,062,623 

Receivables from Exchange 

Transactions 

10,818,287 32,731,684 10,803,864 32,717,261 

Receivables from Non-Exchange 

Transactions 

172,029 14,894,184 172,029 7,374,184 

VAT Receivable 22,932,381 18,408,489 22,932,381 18,408,489 

Cash and Cash equivalents 136,588,445 172,310,078 129,422,617 165,144,250 

Payables 85,055,627 85,899,781 83,996,176 84,840,330 

Unspent Conditional Grants 20,305,123 18,027,488 20,305,123 18,027,488 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Government Grants and Subsidies 

Received 

1,115,496,953 1,115,489,186 1,115,496,953 1,115,489,186 

Interest Earned - External 

Investments 

11,527,517 11,409,261 11,474,768 11,356,512 

Employee Related Costs 92,457,648 93,780,511 90,910,343 92,233,206 

Depreciation and Armotisation 31,183,208 31,180,811 31,132,891 31,130,494 

Impairment Losses 22,092,662 13,698 22,092,662 13,698 

Repairs and Maintenance 14,763,887 18,873,601 14,714,835 18,824,099 

Bulk Purchases 2,742,760 2,268,002 2,742,760 2,268,002 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Contracted Services 41,425,426 38,879,725 41,425,426 38,879,725 

Grants and Subsidies Paid 285,710,436 395,837,149 285,710,436 395,837,149 

General Expenses 65,010,884 66,460,119 62,860,710 64,309,945 

 

Financial risk management 

The Accounting Officer has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the municipality's risk 

management framework. The municipality's risk management policies are established to identify and 

analyse the risks faced by the municipality, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and 

adherence to limits. 

Due to the largely non-trading nature of activities and the way in which they are financed, municipalities 

are not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Financial Instruments play a much 

more limited role in creating or changing risks that would be typical of listed companies to which the IASs 

mainly apply. Generally, Financial Assets and Liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities 

and are not held to manage the risks facing the municipality in undertaking its activities. 

Treasury monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal policies 

and procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity. Compliance with policies 

and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis, and annually by external 

auditors. The municipality does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risk, 

reports quarterly to the municipality’s audit committee, an independent body that monitors the 

effectiveness of the internal audit function. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the municipality will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 

with its Financial Liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The municipality’s 

approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 

meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 

losses or risking damage to the municipality’s reputation. 

Liquidity Risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in 

relation to cash flow requirements. Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are 

met on a timeous basis and, if required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive rates 

to ensure that cash flow requirements are met. 

 

Credit risk 

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the municipality if a customer or counterparty to a Financial 

Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the municipality’s receivables 

from customers and investment securities. Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its 

contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the municipality. The municipality has a sound credit 

control and debt collection policy and obtains collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the 

risk of financial loss from defaults. The municipality uses other publicly available financial information and its 

own trading records to assess its major customers. The municipality’s exposure of its counterparties are 

monitored regularly. 

Potential concentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of fixed deposit investments, long-term debtors, 

consumer debtors, other debtors, short-term investment deposits and bank and cash balances 

Trade and Other Receivables are amounts owed by consumers and are presented net of impairment 

losses. The municipality has a credit risk policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an 

ongoing basis. The municipality is compelled in terms of its constitutional mandate to provide all its residents 

with basic minimum services without recourse to an assessment of creditworthiness. Subsequently, the 

municipality has no control over the approval of new customers who acquire properties in the designated 
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municipal area and consequently incur debt for rates, water and sanitation services rendered to them. 

Consumer Debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and 

geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these debtors. 

Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision for impairment. 

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries in the 

geographical area of the municipality. Periodic credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of 

accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee is increased accordingly. 

Consumer Debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and 

geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these debtors. 

Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision for impairment 

In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts by 

"levying of penalty charges", "demand for payment", "restriction of services" and, as a last resort, "handed 

over for collection", whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Council's Credit Control and Debt 

Collection Policy. 

The municipality limits this risk exposure in the following ways, in addition to its normal credit control and 

debt management procedures:   

The application of section 118(3) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA), which permits the municipality to 

refuse connection of services whilst any amount remains outstanding from a previous debtor on the 

same property; 

A new owner is advised, prior to the issue of a rates clearance certificate, that any debt remaining from the 

previous owner will be transferred to the new owner, if the previous owner does not settle the outstanding 

amount 

Encouraging residents to install water management devices that control water flow to households, and/or 

prepaid meters. 

The requirement of a deposit for new service connections, serving as guarantee 

The consolidation of rates and service accounts, enabling the disconnecting services for the non-payment 

of any of the individual debts, in terms of section 102 of the MSA; 

There were no material changes in the exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for 

managing and measuring the risk during the year under review. The municipality’s maximum exposure to 

credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position, 

without taking into account the value of any collateral obtained. The municipality has no significant 

concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of consumers, and is not 

concentrated in any particular sector or geographical area. 

The municipality establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of anticipated losses in 

respect of trade and other receivables. 

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the relevant financial 

instruments is as follow Credit risk is managed on a group basis. 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade debtors. The municipality only 

deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-

party. 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to 

customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if 

there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account 

its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or 

external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly 

monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee 

insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate. 
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Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Fixed Deposits Investments  20,425,734 18,477,753 20,425,834 18,477,753 

Long term Receivables  162,387 768,906 162,387 768,906 

Consumer Debtors  16,990,585 10,803,865 16,990,585 10,803,865 

Other Debtors  4,729,968 172,029 4,729,968 172,029 

Cash and Cash equivalents  232,451,575 137,010,609 226,115,180 129,844,781 

 
` 
Market risk 

Foreign exchange risk 

The economic entity does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. 

The economic entity reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments on an ongoing basis. 

The municipality expects its foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure. 

4.2.31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

The municipality entered into a loan agreement with DBSA for the advancement of R300 000 000 on the 

13th of September 2013. The loan was taken to advance the Infrastructure projects. As security for the 

amount advanced, the Municipality undertook to open a secondary bank account with First National 

Bank. The municipality will cede in securitatum debiti the secondary bank account as continuing and 

covering security for any obligations which the Municipality may at any point owe or have towards DBSA 

arising out of the loan agreement. Disclose for each material category of non-adjusting events after the 

reporting date: The loan acquired will result in a long term liability of R300 000 000. 

4.2.32. UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Opening Balance 24,026,980 13,141,422 24,026,980 13,141,422 

Unauthorised Expenditure current 

year 
803,949,135 10,885,558 102,645,391 10,885,558 

 827,976,115 24,026,980 126,672,371 24,026,980 

 

4.2.33. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Opening balance 520,778 142,178 264,059 142,178 

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

current year 

517,273 378,600 240,325 121,881 

 1,038,051 520,778 504,384 264,059 

 

Incident 

Prior Period Errors Economic Entity 
Controlling 

Entity 

Interest on late payments 160,069 53,257 

Penalty charged by SARS for late payment of PAYE 187,067 187,067 

 347,136 240,324 

The expenditure above has all been condoned by council. 
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4.2.34. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 
 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Opening balance 197,514,692 2,197,829 194,973,911 2,197,829 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - 

current year 

14,815,030 195,316,863 11,707,153 192,776,082 

Less: Amounts condoned (209,221,845) - (206,681,064) - 

 3,107,877 197,514,692 - 194,973,911 

 

 

Details of irregular expenditure – current year 
 Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings 
 

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred contrary to Supply 

Chain Management due to the urgency of the matter 
Condoned by Council 1,076,458 

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred contrary to Supply 

Chain Management. This was because it was impractical to get three 

quotations before appointing a service provider 

Condoned by Council 5,595,806 

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred contrary to Supply 

Chain Management. 
Condoned by Council 6,492,167 

Competitive bidding process not followed Condoned by Council 1,650,599 

  14,815,030 

 

Details of irregular expenditure condoned Condoned by Council  

Wild Coast Sun accommodation Condoned 594,500 

Repairs at Disaster Office, Mount Frere Condoned 394,440 

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred contrary to Supply 

Chain Management 
Condoned 205,692,124 

Three quotes not obtained Condoned 1,437,111 

Use suppliers not on the database Condoned 211,932 

Competitive bidding process not followed Condoned 891,738 

  209,221,845 

 

4.2.35. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 

 

Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Opening balance - - - - 

Current year subscription / fee - 34,766 - 34,766 

Amount paid - current year - (34,766) - (34,766) 

     

Audit fees 

Opening balance (99,902) 363,931 (99,902) 363,931 

Current year Audit Fee 4,588,277 2,561,874 4,588,277 2,561,874 

Amount paid - current year (4,488,375) (2,661,776) (4,488,375) (2,661,776) 

Amount paid - previous years - (363,931) - (363,931) 

 - (99,902) - (99,902) 

PAYE, Skills Development Levy and UIF 

Opening balance 80,916 80,916 80,916 80,916 

Current year subscription / fee  18,868,253 14,782,865 18,868,253 14,782,865 

Amount paid - current year (18,868,253) (14,782,865) (18,868,253) (14,782,865) 

 80,916 80,916 80,916 80,916 

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 
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Figures in Rands 
Economic Entity Controlling Entity 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current year subscription / fee 20,590,493 14,782,865 20,590,493 14,782,865 

Amount paid - current year (20,565,365) (14,782,865) (20,565,365) (14,782,865) 

 25,128 - 25,128 - 

VAT 

VAT receivable 10,093,448 22,932,381 10,093,448 22,932,381 

VAT payable 1,948,867 1,397,465 - - 

 12,042,315 24,329,846 10,093,448 22,932,381 

 

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note 9 .  

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 

 

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts 

The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2013: 

 
Outstanding less than 90 days 

R 
Outstanding more than 90 days 

R 

Total 

R 

30 June 2013 

Kotelana NE 2,310 7,834 10,144 

Macuphe SB 271 4,761 5,032 

Total 2,581 12,595 15,176 

30 June 2012  

Kotelana NE 423 5,053 5,476 

Macuphe SB 1,265 2,345 3,610 

Total 1,688 7,398 9,086 
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4.3. THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FUNCTIONALITY 

 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality during the financial (2012-13) had a fully functional Audit Committee which 

was set up in accordance with the prescripts of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003.  

The Committee comprised of three independent members, who were not in the employ of the District 

Municipality, nor were they political office bearers.  The details of the Audit Committee members are 

summarised of the following: 

 

NAME DESIGNATION QUALIFICATION GENDER 

Anil Ramnath Audit Committee Chairperson 

Bachelor of Accounting Science 

(B Compt) 

Bachelor of Accounting Science 

(B Compt (Hons) 

Certificate in Theory Of 

Accounting 

Final  Qualifying  Exam  (Board 

Exams) (CA) Completed Articles 

Chartered Accountant (SA) 

Matric Exemption 

Male 

Velenkosini 

 

Lindokuhle 

 

Mtshali 

Audit Committee Member 

Chartered Accountant SA – CA 

(SA) 

BCom (Hons) Accounting- CTA 

B  Tech  (Cost  &  Management 

Accounting) 

National Diploma ( Cost & 

Management Accounting 

National Senior Certificate 

Male 

Philiswa 

 

Nongalo 

Audit Committee Member 

CTA 

B Com 

National Senior certificate 

Female 
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For the financial year ending 30 June 2013, the Committee has reviewed and / or advised on matters 

relating to: 

 

-2013 

 Internal Audit Organogram 

 Strategic Risk Register 

 Risk Assessment Report 

 Strategic Risk Action Plan 2012-2013 

 Annual Financial Statements 

 AG Strategy of Alfred Nzo DM 

 Annual Performance Information Report 2011-2012 

 Annual Performance Information Review Report 2011-2012 

 ICT governance 

 AG Report 

 Management Letter 

 Audit Committee Charter 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Annual Report 

 Internal Audit Report: Subsistence and Travelling 

 Internal Audit Report: Follow up Reviews on previous internal audit 

 AG Action Plan 

 Deviation Process Review Report 

 Revenue Collection and Cash Management 

 Dashboard Report 

 

4.3.1. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 

The Audit Committee during the financial year under review managed to achieve its target in terms of 

having four meetings annual and further reported to the municipal council.   Full Audit Committee Report is 

further attached to the report as an annexure for reference.   The Audit Committee during the financial 

year under review held its annual meetings as follows: 

 03 August 2012 

 29 August 2012 

 12 October 2012 

 12 December 2012 

 08 March 2013 

 13 May 2013 

 

4.3.2. MUNICIPAL AUDIT STATUS 

The municipal performance over the last three financial years in as far as the audit is concerned is 

summarized below: 

Financial Year Auditor General’s Opinion 

2010/11 Disclaimer 

2011/12 Disclaimer 

2012/13 Disclaimer  
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CHAPTER 5: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (KPA 5) 

 

5.1 OVERVIEW OF THE EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL FUNCTIONS AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

 

Statutory duties and functions of Council are prescribed by; inter alia:  

 The Constitution; 

 The Local Government: Municipal Structures Act; 

 The Local Government: Municipal Systems Act; and 

 The Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act.  

The Council has performed the following functions, which are prescribed not to be delegated:  

 Passed by-laws; 

 Approved IDP and Budget; 

 Elected the Executive Mayor, Speaker and Chief Whip; 

 Delegated executive powers to Council’s Executive Mayor; 

 Entered into service delivery agreement for the provision of municipal services through external 

mechanism in terms of section 76(a) of the Systems Act. 

 Established section 79 and 80 committees and appointed chairpersons for those committees. (g) 

Determined councillor salaries, allowances and benefits; 

 Determined the terms of reference of Council Committees 

 

During the financial year under review, the Municipal Council consisted of 40 Councillors and 8 traditional 

leaders wherein a total of 11 Councillors were on a full-time basis (Executive Mayor, Speaker of Council, 

Chief Whip of Ruling Party and eight (8) Mayoral Committee Members which were also Portfolio Heads of 

Standing Committees).   

The following structures are in place and are mainly responsible for the areas mentioned in the adjacent 

column: 

STRUCTURE KEY AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY 

Council 

 Meets at least once per quarter, (4 Ordinary  Council Meetings 

and 7 Special Council Meetings, totaling 12have been convened 

during this period under review). 

 Deals with delegated and non-delegated functions in line with the 

Constitution, Structures Act, Systems Act and MFMA. 

 Considers reports and recommendations by both mayoral 

committee and council committees. 

Mayoral committee 

 Meets fortnightly; 

 Considers   reports   and   recommendations   by   the section 80 

committees; 

 Is the principal committee of the council charged with the 

responsibility to provide necessary direction to the municipality in 

between council meeting 

Human Resource and Social 

Development 

This committee convenes monthly and oversees the following 

matters: 

 Human resources; 

 General administration; 

 Information and communication technology 

 Legal services 

Finance and Economic 

 

Development 

The committee also meets monthly and is responsible for 

matters relating to: 

 Budget; 

 Expenditure; 

 Income; 

 Supply chain management; 

 Planning and development of all projects and programmes. 
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STRUCTURE KEY AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY 

 Integrated Development Plan. 

 Local Economic Development 

 Environmental Management Plan 

 Tourism development 

Human Settlement and Infrastructure 

 

The committee meets monthly and assumes responsibility for 

matters relating to the following:  
Water Services; 

 Water Services; 

 Water Services provision 

 Infrastructure provisioning 

Community Liaison, Research and Heritage 

The committee meets monthly and is responsible for the following 

functions: 

 
 Fire Rescue Services 

 Disaster Risk Management 

 Municipal Health Services 

 Thusong Service Centre and ISD & Customer Care 
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5.1.1. STATUS ON COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 

The status on performance on Council scheduled meetings and the average attendance is summarised 

below 

 

No of Council 

meetings-12 

Meetings 

Scheduled 
Meetings Held Meeting No Attendance 

4 Ordinary 

8 Special 
12 

1 60% 

2 57% 

3 67% 

4 80% 

5 75% 

6 90% 

7 95% 

8 72% 

9 80% 

10 57% 

11 77% 

   12 92% 
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5.2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND CONSULTATION 

 

The ANDM communication division is responsible for communication and public participation. This is a cross 

cutting function that necessitates the unit to work with all directorates and political leadership within the 

municipality, sector departments, Government Communication and Information Systems, local 

municipalities and state owned enterprises, to facilitate community and public participation activities. 

For the financial year 2012-13, mayoral imbizos were conducted by the municipality in soliciting inputs from 

the public relating to the integrated development plan. The matters raised by the communities during 

these mayoral imbizos have been encapsulated in the ultimate integrated development plan of the 

municipality; 

Extensive public hearings were held with the communities of the municipality in getting the necessary 

reflections on the formulation of these important programmes inter alia IDP, budget process and 

community awareness on payments of municipal services. 
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5.3. COMMUNICATION STRATEGY 

 

The district municipality’s communication strategy is informed and guided by the municipal programme of 

action (Integrated Development Plan) and also influenced by various pronouncements made at national, 

provincial government levels, local municipality level within the district and further taking cognizance of 

communication implications of other strategic stakeholders within the Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

The communication strategy workshop was held to solicit views from various stakeholders within the district 

and beyond. The workshop was attended by Councilors, Managers, sector departments and civil society 

organizations. Among some provincial stakeholders who were present to assist in the development of the 

district communication strategy were the Government Communication and Information System (GCIS), 

Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs and Office of the Premier. 

The communication strategy was adopted by the Council as the official document to be used in the 

implementation of the communication approach for the district municipality. The Communications Unit was 

central in the co-ordination of District Communicators Core Team meetings to assess the implementation of 

the communication action plans and also coordinate consolidated communication programme of action 

which is attended by communicators from local municipalities, the GCIS and OTP.  The communications 

unit also held quarterly District Communicators Forum Meetings aimed at monitoring and implementing the 

communication action plan.  

The district communication unit also provided communication support to local municipalities within the 

jurisdiction of the Alfred Nzo District Municipality and through this support the Matatiele and Umzimvubu 

Local Municipality reviewed their communication strategy action plans for 2012/2013.Matatiele, 

Umzimvubu and Ntabankulu Local Municipality had also functional Local Communicators Forums which 

were central in coordinating and implementing local communication action plan and the district 

Communications Unit was instrumental in these sittings.  The unit further was central in branding certain 

entry points to the borders of the district, branded municipal vehicles and buildings. Co-ordinated and 

communicated municipal programmes like the annual Open Council Day and Mayoral Outreaches and 

also produced municipal publications like the newsletters, leaflets and brochures to disseminate 

government information to communities.  

 

THE COMMUNICATION UNIT PERSONNEL: 

 

The Alfred Nzo District Municipality communications unit comprises: 

 Communications Manager  

 Communication Officer: Internal Liaison and Communication System  

 Communication Officer: 

The Communications unit is located in the office of the Executive Mayor and is administratively 

accountable to the office of the Municipal Manager.  
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5.4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS 

 

The district municipality did not develop any new IGR framework during the year under review since the 

existing framework was deemed relevant to the requirements of the IGR Framework.   The district 

Municipality further maintained the form of the existing IGR Structures which are Broader IGR (municipalities, 

government departments, government Parastatal and other stakeholders) District Mayors Forum, Municipal 

Manager’s Forum, IDP Managers’ Forum, IDP Representative Forum, District Communicators Forum, District 

Aids Council, District Support Team and District Environmental Management Forum.  The district Municipality 

held a total of three standing Broader IGR meetings out of four scheduled meetings and the fourth meeting 

was treated as a preparatory meeting for the Provincial EXCO Outreach. The broader IGR Structure sits on 

a quarterly basis and other IGR structures sits bi-monthly or as and when a need arises.   Such structures 

feed up to the broader IGR Structure.  During the financial year under review, the district municipality held 

a Provincial EXCO Outreach where the district municipality accounted to the EXCO on the state of service 

delivery, governance and further reflected on challenges affecting the district as whole in terms of 

rendering services and further highlighted areas of intervention by the EXCO. 

The district continued using the same IGR structures formulated the previous year however some challenges 

such as lack of attendance by government departments, instability within the district in the form of 

Municipal Manager’s position were experienced.  The district municipality then managed to hold a total of 

four meetings and most of those meetings were due to the preparation for National Elections and 

preparation of reports for Provincial EXCO visits. 

The district municipality during the financial year under-review retained its partnership with Osterhsund 

Local Municipality of Sweden.  The partnership started years back and it was meant to assist the 

municipality on job shadowing, LED programmes, skills development and waste / environmental 

management.  This partnership saw a number of delegates’ visits between the two municipalities taking 

place during the financial year.  These visits ensured strengthened relations and improved capacity in terms 

of both human and financial capabilities. 
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5.5. LEGAL MATTERS  

 

The Municipality has a Legal Services Unit made by two officials.  The Manager of the Unit has a B-Juris and 

LLB degree and he is an admitted attorney and the Admin Clerk has a National Diploma in Office 

Management and Technology.  The Municipality is outsourcing some of the matters particularly the High 

Court matters. The following firms were used during the year under review: 

 Fikile Ntayiya and Associates Makaula Zilwa Attorneys Mdledle Incorporated 

 Kunene Attorneys 

 

5.5.1. MANAGEMENT OF LITIGATION 

 

5.5.1.1. CASE LOAD MANAGEMENT WITH SPECIFIC REFERENCE TO: 

 

A. FAVOURABLE CASES 

 

Case name Recovery (yes/No) Reasons for non-recovery 

ANDM & Sinothando Mtshengu Yes 

The debtor’s emoluments were 

attached and the debt is being 

serviced. 

ANDM & Dumisani Lusawana No 
Judgment obtained and the matter 

is at execution stage. 

ANDM & Mzulungile Luphindo No 
Debtor no longer paying attorneys 

instructed to proceed with litigation. 

ANDM & Thembile Thompson Yes 
The Debtor is paying  though not 

regularly. 

ANDM & Elvin Mkoward Chirwa Yes Debtor is paying 

ANDM & Mlungisi Gila No 

Instructed attorneys to obtain the 

services of the Tracing Agents to 

locate the whereabouts of the 

Judgment debtor. 

ANDM & Zanovuyo Malusi No 
The Municipality is struggling to get 

the whereabouts of the debtor. 

ANDM & Jacqueline Bosman Yes Debtor currently servicing the debt. 

ANDM & Nontutuzelo Magugu No 

We shall soon instruct attorneys to 

re-issue summons and ensure that 

the same is served to the debtor. 

ANDM & Theo Rautenbach No 

The matter is being defended and 

all necessary pleadings have been 

filed. 

ANDM & MP Civils No 
Settlement negotiations are in the 

pipeline. 

ANDM & Ernst Zelhuber NO 
Matter is being defended and there 

are no prospects of wining 
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B.  UNFAVOURABLE CASES 

The Municipality did not have any unfavourable cases during the year under review. 

 

5.5.1.2. CASE AGE ANALYSIS 

 

Case name 
Nature  of  the 

case 

Date of 

commencem

ent  

Cases of 

2 years 

or 

bellow 

Cases 

beyond 

2 years 

Reasons for extensive 

duration 

Moeketsi  Joseph 

Phirimane & 

ANDM 

Contractual 
30  September 

2009 
 Yes 

The plaintiff is the dominis 

litis so he is not taking any 

action to prosecute the 

matter. 

Malukazi Project 

 

& ANDM 

Contractual 19 July 2006  Yes 

The matter is still at pleading 

stage and the plaintiff  has  

not  taken  any steps to 

prosecute the matter 

Affinity Solutions 

 

(Pty) Ltd 

 

& ANDM 

Contractual 30

 Octob

er 

 

2008 

 Yes Pleadings closed the matter 

 

dying natural death. 

J & G Enterprise 

 

(Pty) Ltd 

 

& ANDM 

Contractual 

 

claim. 

13 April 2010  Yes Pleadings closed the 

 

municipality is awaiting trial 

date. 

Zoliswa Mgwebi 

 

& ANDM 

Claim of 

Death 

 

Benefits 

19  September 

 

2009 

 Yes Pleadings were  closed  

and matter set down for 

trial. 

Makaziwe 

 

Marketing Cc 

 

& ANDM 

Contractual 

 

(services 

rendered) 

06  September 

 

2007 

 Yes The matter is slowly dying 

 

natural death. 

ANDM 

 

& 

 

MP Civils 

Contractual April 2009  Yes The matter is awaiting trial 

 

Date 
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ANDM  &  Ernest 

 

Zellhuber 

Claim for 

pension 

contributions 

2006  Yes 
Pleadings closed awaiting 

trial date 

Rob Pottow 

Irrigation & ANDM 

Payment for 

goods alleged 

to have been 

supplied  

2011  Yes Settlement negotiations are 

in the pipeline 

3P Consulting 

 

&ANDM 

Claim for 

recovery  of 

monies for 

services 

alleged to 

have been 

rendered 

2010  Yes Awaiting trial date 

David Sepeika 

 

Credit 

 

Consultants 

Claim for 

compensation 

for services 

alleged to 

have been 

rendered 

2010  Yes Pleading stage 

      

Umnotho & 

 

ANDM 

Claim for 

services 

alleged to 

have been 

rendered 

2011  Yes Awaiting trial 

Zolani   Gulwa   & 

 

ANDM 

Claim for 

salary shortfall 

2010  Yes Awaiting trial 

Sunset  Beach  & 

 

ANDM 

Interdict 

stopping 

Municipality 

from 

implementing 

Kwa Bhaca 

Project 

2012  Yes Finalized awaiting taxation 

Sinezipho   Urban 

 

& Rural 

Development & 

ANDM 

Claim for loss 

of income 

2012 yes  Awaiting trial 

Theodore 

 

Armstrong 

 

Rautenbach 

Claim for 

advanced 

payment 

2005  Yes The chances of succeeding 

in recovering the money 

are nominal we are hoping 

that we will recover through 

Asset Forfeirture Unit 

ANDM Contractual 04 August  Yes Judgment obtained and 

the matter is at execution 
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& 

 

Vukile Selonyane 

 

(Car Loan) 

 

2008 

stage. 

Phumla 

 

Mabandla 

 

& ANDM 

Contractual 2008  Yes Pleadings  closed  and  the 

 

municipality is awaiting trial 

date. 

Ernest Zellhuber 

 

& ANDM 

Unpaid 

 

pension 

contributions 

November 

 

2006 

 Yes Pleadings  closed  and  the 

 

municipality is awaiting trial 

date. 
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A)  DEFAULT JUDGMENTS 

 

No default judgments were obtained against the Municipality during the financially year under review. 

 

B)  PREVENTION MECHANISMS OF CURRENT LITIGATIONS: 

 

The Legal Services Department is involved in drafting, editing and vetting of contracts.  Legal services also 

assist on contract management. Contracts entered into by the Municipality have a dispute resolution 

clause, so some of the matters are resolved without the necessity of litigation. In some instances litigation is 

inevitable given the nature of the disputes. 

 

C)  CRIMINAL MATTERS EMANATING FROM CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

 

There is one case of fraud emanating from payment of ghost employees by the Human Resource Personnel 

to wit Viwe Makholwa, Nontethelelo Gogela and Bulelwa Bidla. Necessary disciplinary proceedings have 

been instituted against the affected employees and they have since been dismissed from work.  Criminal 

case has been reported with the Police and they are currently out on bail.  There are matters emanating 

from the previous financial years.    The matter of Zolani Gulwa is still pending in the Regional Court.  The 

matter involving Lizo Cekeshe, Zola Moyana and Andisiwe Njungwini and Mbongeni Tyabule is awating 

Regional Court Date.  

 

5.5.2 Management of Legal Risks 

 

There is no specific Policy adopted by Council to manage Legal Risk during the Year under review.  The 

Municipality is ensuring proper implementation of the existing Policies to wit Supply Chain Management 

policy, Transport Policy, Recruitment Policy etc. to ensure that the Municipality is not exposed to litigation 

risk 
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CHAPTER 6: FUNCTIONAL AREAS REPORTING AND ANNEXURE 

 

6.1 GENERAL INFORMATION (POPULATION STATISTICS) 

 

OVERVIEW 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality consists of four Local Municipalities being Matatiele, Umzimvubu, Ntabankulu 

and Mbizana. Umzimvubu local municipality is made up of 27 wards, Matatiele local municipality is made 

up of 26 wards, Mbizana local municipality is made up of 31 wards and Ntabankulu local municipality is 

made up of 18 wards of which the district municipality is made of 102 wards.  Alfred Nzo DM has its Civic 

Office which seats in Mt Ayliff Town.   The Council of Alfred  Nzo  has  a  total  of  48  Councillors,  including  

the  Executive Mayor, Speaker and Chief Whip and eighteen full-time Councillors which are Members of 

the Mayoral Committee. 

 

Reporting 

Level 
Detail Total 

1. Geography: 

 Geographical area in square kilometers 11 119 km
2

 

Note Indicate source of information ANDM SDF, 2011 

2. Demography: 

 

Total population 801344 

Indigent Population <total> 

Total number of voters <total> 

Note Indicate source of information Statistic SA, 2011 

3. Age breakdown: 

 
65 years and over 34456 

between 15 and 64 years 273679 

14 years and under 242257 

Note Indicate source of information Statistic SA, 2011 

4. Household income: 

 

- over R3,499 per month 11518 

- between R2,500 and R3,499 per month 5132 

- between R1,100 and R2,499 per month 30401 

- under R1,100 per month 29875 

Note Indicate source of information Statistic SA, 2011 
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6.2. COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES FUNCTION’ S PERFORMANCE 

OVERVIEW: 

The department deals with specifics that include Disaster Management, Fire & Rescue Services, Municipal 

Health 

Services, Customer Care, Institutional & Social Development, and Thusong Service Centre and Sports, Arts, 

Recreation, Culture, Heritage and Museum. 

The function of provision of various community and social services within the municipality is administered as 

follows and includes: 

 

NOPHOYI   THUSONG   SERVICE   CENTRE: 

The Centre is responsible to provide services closer to the people, it locally based and coordinates through 

the established structure, provision of services by various dept i.e. SASSA, Social Development, Home Affairs, 

SAPS, Post Office, Health. It is a one-stop service centre. 

 

MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES:  

The service is designed to ensure that a comprehensive environmental health services package is rendered 

to the inhabitants of the district (rich and poor combined), as this is a free basic service. 

 

INSTITUTIONAL  &  SOCIAL  DEVELOPMENT:   

The programmes which were undertaken in the year under review include: Community development in the 

form of creating sustainable teams to take care of the projects conducted by the DM in ANDM villages, 

facilitation of crime prevention sessions, Library programme coordination.  

 

CUSTOMER CARE:  

Ensure that ANDM renders an efficient and   effective   quality   service   delivery   to   all   of   its 

communities. 

 

FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES:  

The mandate of the unit includes:  preventing the outbreak or  spread  of  fire, fighting or extinguishing 

existing fires, protection of life or property, against fire or other life threatening danger, the rescue of life 

from fire or other dangers, subject to the provision of health act, rendering of ambulance/ emergency 

services. 

 

DISASTER  MANAGEMENT  SERVICES:   

Responsible  Disaster risk Management and prompt      response. Facilitate scientific risk assessment process, 

promote community awareness & capacity building, facilitate disaster response, recovery and 

rehabilitation programs – providing social  emergency relief 

 

SPORTS, ARTS, RECREATION, CULTURE, HERITAGE & MUSEUM 
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THE MUNICIPALITY HAS A MANDATE TO:  

 

Render all these above named services in conjunction with all affected stakeholders, thus rendering a 

comprehensive service to the communities of ANDM. 

THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES OF THIS FUNCTION ARE: 

 

 Disaster Management Recovery & Rehabilitation 

 Disaster Management Plan development 

 Facilitation of recruitment & support to Fire Services objectives 

 Embark on community fire safety awareness and education 

 Turnaround times for responding to a reported fire incident 

 Water Quality Monitoring 

 Food Control & Safety 

 Health surveillance of premises 

 Institutional social development 

 Customer care 

 Thusong Service Centre 

 

THE KEY ISSUES FOR 2012/13 FY ARE: 

 

 Disaster Management Plan be reviewed 

 Service Level Agreements of the Nophoyi Thusong 

 Service Centre be signed 

 Customer Care be fully operational 

 Beefing up of the units through employment of personnel Devolution of personnel from ECDoH to 

ANDM be finalised 

 Develop a Fire Safety Plan 

 By- laws/ guidelines around functioning of the dept to be fully operational and be inclusive of the new 

demarcation boundaries. 

ANALYSIS OF THE FUNCTION: 

 

SERVICES PROVIDED 

Nature and extent of services provided: Actual Target 

No of samples taken and analysed on-site 953 400 

No of CoAs issued (to complying businesses including caterers) 70  

No of businesses evaluated (food selling only) 350  

No of food poisoning awareness’s done 119  

No of businesses evaluated 456  

No of assessments & investigations done (after notification) 02 100% 

1 skid unit, specialised equipment for Maluti fire engine, specialised uniform 

procured & delivered 
1 1 

105 fires reached & extinguished on time 105  

Businesses and schools reached on fire safety awareness programmes 

(consecutively) 
200 & 100  
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NUMBER AND COST TO EMPLOYER OF ALL PERSONNEL ASSOCIATED WITH EACH COMMUNITY SERVICES FUNCTION: 

 

Nature and extent of services provided: 
Number of 
Employees 

Cost 

Nophoyi Thusong Service Centre 3 R240,000.00 

Municipal Health Services 32 R12,791,437.50 

Fire & Rescue Services 34 R18,900,000.00 

Disaster Management 8 R4,588,060.00 

Institutional & Social Development & Customer Care Note: total number to be 

calculated on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis, total cost to include total salary 

package 

20 R6,444,229.29 

Sports, Arts, Culture, Recreation, Heritage and Museums 
           1 

R58,333.00 

Total operating cost of community development services 

function 
 R43,022,060,12 
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Key 

Performance 

Area 

   

 

Disaster 

Management 
 Current  

Target 

   

 
 
 

•

 App

roved 

Disaster 

managemen

t policy 

frameworks 

and plans 

(Metro and 

DM) 

 

•

 Initi

ated the use 

of the 

Thusong 

centre, 

despite the 

fact that 

SLAs have 

not yet been 

signed 

 

The policy framework has been 

reviewed and workshops have been 

carried out, esp. in both LMs 

(Umzimvubu & Matatiele). 

Disaster Management Plan: A disaster 

management plan has been 

finalised. 

Procurement of 1 Disaster Response 

vehicle (bakkie - 

4WD) 

Procurement of emergency relief 

material for all wards affected 
 
 

• No of services provided by 

various departments within 

the center 

• No  of  people  attended  at  

the  centres  (Home Affairs- 

issuing of ID, birth certificates 

and distribution of identity 

documents and marriage 

certificates issued at the 

centre 

• SASSA old age grants, foster 

grants and food parcels to 

needy communities 

• Clients consulted by social 

workers at the centre is  

improving tremendously 

• Certification    of    documents    

by    SAPS    has increased at 

the centre 

• No of clients attended 

to by DOH has also 

increased 
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Function: Special Programmes Unit 
 
Sub 

 
Function: 

Reporting 
 
Level 

Detail Total Cost 

 
 

Overview: 

 
 

To  ensure  specific  mandate  of  the  

unit  I  its relevance in implementing of 

government macro- socio economic 

development strategies, through 

mainstreaming, coordination, lobbing 

through mainstreaming,  coordination, 

lobbying  and advocacy. 

  

 
 

Descriptio

n  of the 

Activity: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Analysis of 

 
 

The function is to coordinate and 

facilitate the formation of youth council, 

gender, forum, elderly forum, disability 

forum and children advisory council as be 

dictated by policy of the municipality. 
 

 

Youth objectives 

To  integrate  youth  development  plan  

with  IDP 
 
objectives 

 
To  ensure  youth  programmes  are  

mainstreamed within the municipality 

Disability objectives 
 

To develop a clear performance 

indicators in line 
 
with priority areas to ensure affective 

monitoring and evaluation progress. 

To allocate resources for the benefit of 

disabled people and mechanisms 

ensuring that these resources reach them. 

To intergrade interest of people with 

disabilities into budget, programmes, 

polices legislation and / or strategies. 

 

 

Analysis   of   the   Function   Youth   and   

Disability 
 
Programmes below 
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the 
 
Function: 

 
 
 
 
 

Youth 

Develop

ment 

Program

mes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total 
 
 
 

Disability 

Develop

ment 

Program

mes 

 
 
 
 

Condom week and Youth Awareness 

campaign 
 
District  seminar 

 
Youth Empowerment Programme 

 
Youth Development 

 
Youth Meetings 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Launch of Disability structure 
 
Provincial Disability summit  preceded by 

the District 
 
Pre-summit 

 
Disability data collection 

 
Disability outreach programmes 

 

1 
 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 
 
 
 

 

1 
 
2 

 
1 

 
4 

 
1 

200 000 
 
11 00 

 
200 000 

 
20 000 

 
1 425 00 

 
 
 

432450 
 
 
 

5 700 
 
24 890 

 
188 300 

 
21 485 

 
10 000 

 



Alfred Nzo District Municipality 2012/13 Annual Report 

 Page 133 
 

 



Alfred Nzo District Municipality 2012/13 Annual Report 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE  1 
FULL AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 2012/13 





























Alfred Nzo District Municipality 2012/13 Annual Report 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE  2 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 2012/13 



Page 1  

 
 

 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 
 

1 Audit Committee Members and Attendance 
 
In terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and the Alfred Nzo District Municipality’s Audit 
Charter, the Audit Committee must consist of at least three members, all of whom must be external independent 
members.  None of the members may be councillors.  

 
The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets at least four times per year as per its 
approved Charter.  During the year under review the mandatory quarterly meetings and one special meetings were 
held. 

 

Member Qualifications Appointment 
Number of 

meetings attended 

Mr Anil Ramnath (Chairperson)  B. Compt (Hons) CA(SA) 17 December 2011 6/6 

Mr Velenkosini Lindokuhle Mtshali B. Compt (Hons) CA(SA) 17 December 2011 6/6 

Ms Philiswa Nongalo  B. Compt (Hons)  1 May 2012 1/6 

 
 

2 Audit Committee’s Responsibilities 
 
The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are outlined in Section 166(2)(b) of the Municipal Finance Management Act 
(No 56 of 2003). The Audit Committee has adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference as its Audit Committee 
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein.  
 
A summary of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities in terms of the foregoing Act and its Charter is that it is 
responsible for, amongst other things, the following: 

 

Auditors and external audit 
 
 Discuss and review with external auditors, inter alia, 
 

 the  nature and scope of the audit function;  
 agreeing to the timing and nature of reports from the external auditors; 
 considering any problems identified in the municipality as a going concern; 
 review the Auditor-General’s management letter and management response; and 
 meeting the Auditor-General at least annually to ensure that there are no unresolved issues of 

concern. 
 

 

Annual Financial Statements 
 

 review and discuss the unaudited annual financial statements with the Accounting Officer prior to 
presentation of the foregoing financial statements for audit together with recommendations, if any, 
regarding amendments to the said statements; 

 review and discuss with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer, the audited annual financial 
statements to be included in the Annual Report; 

 review significant adjustments resulting from the audit; 
 review effectiveness of the internal audit; 
 review risk areas of the operations to be covered in the scope of the internal and external audits; and 
 review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to management and 

other users of such information.  

 REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
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Internal Control and Internal Audit 
 

The monitoring and supervising of the effective function of the internal audit including; 
 

 evaluating performance, independence and effectiveness of internal audit and external service 
providers through internal audit; 

 review the effectiveness of the internal controls and to consider the most appropriate system for the 
effective operation of its business; 

 initiating investigations within its scope e.g. employee fraud, misconduct or conflict of interest. 

 

Ethics 
  

Reviewing the effectiveness of mechanisms for the identification and reporting of:  

 
 any material violations of ethical conduct of councillors and municipal staff; 
 compliance with laws and regulations; and 
 environmental and social issues. 

 

Compliance  
 

 carrying out investigations into financial affairs as Council may request; 
 reviewing the effectiveness  of mechanisms  for the identification and reporting of: 

 compliance with laws and regulations; and 
 the findings of regulatory bodies or audit observations. 

 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that, it has complied with its responsibilities and has discharged them properly 
and efficiently. 
 

3 The Effectiveness of Internal Controls 
 
The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 
liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the MFMA and the King III Report on Corporate 
Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the 
internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well 
as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 
 

4 The quality in year management and Monthly/Quarterly Report submitted 
in terms of the MFMA 

 
The Audit Committee has not received and reviewed certain performance management reports and is unable to 
comment on the content and quality of these monthly and quarterly reports. 
 
Except for the foregoing reports, the Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and 
quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer and management during the year under review.   

 
 
5 Internal Audit Function 
 
During the year under review, an audit plan was prepared based on the Annual Risk Assessment. The following is 
a list of projects undertaken by Internal Audit, arising from the risk assessment: 
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Date of meeting Major item discussed  

03 August 2012 

 

 Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 

 Internal Audit Organogram  

 Strategic Risk Register  

 Risk Assessment Report 

 Strategic Risk Action Plan 

 Annual Financial Statements 

12 August 2012  AG Strategy of Alfred Nzo DM 

 Annual Performance Information Report 2011/12 

 Annual Performance Information Review Report 
2011/12 

 IT (General Controls) Report 

 

29 August 2012  Annual Financial Statements  

 

12 December  2012  AG Report 

 Management letter  

 Audit Committee Charter 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Internal Audit Report: Substance & Travelling (S&T) 

 Internal Audit Report: Follow-Up Reviews on previous 
internal audit 

 

08 March 2013  Deviation Process Review Report 

 S&T Review Report 

 Revenue Collection & Cash Management 

 

13 May 2013  Implementation Status: Management Action Plan to 
address AG’s Findings  

 Ignite Report 

 Dashboard Report 

 

 
 

All reports and assignments are followed up by Internal Audit and the Audit Committee to ensure that management 
actions have been implemented. This action was necessary to ensure that management does not temporise Audit 
Committee and Council. 
 
 

6 Evaluation of Financial Statements 
 
The Audit Committee has: 

 
 reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer the audited annual financial 

statements to be included in the Annual Report;  

 reviewed the Auditor-General's management letter and management responses; 

 reviewed the accounting policies and practices;  

 reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit;  

 evaluated the audited annual financial statements to be included in the Annual Report and, based on the 
information provided to the Audit Committee, considered that the said statements comply in all material 
respects with the requirements of the MFMA and Treasury Regulations as well as South African 
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and certain statements of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and statements of Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting 
Practice (GAMAP); and 
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7 Appreciation 
 

I would like to thank my colleagues for making themselves available to serve on this Committee and for the 
significant contributions that they have made. 
 
As an Audit Committee, we rely to a great extent on the Alfred Nzo District Municipality’s Manager: Internal 
Audit and his staff in the Internal Audit Department for their support and assistance and, in particular, for the 
role they continue to play in improving the accounting and internal auditing systems and controls at District 
Municipality. We are indebted to them for their cooperation and assistance.  
 
We are also grateful to the Chief Financial Officer, the Auditor-General, and all other invitees to our meetings, 
including the external service providers, all of whom provided invaluable information to the Committee. 
 
 
 

Mr Anil Ramnath 
Chairperson: Alfred Nzo District Municipality Audit Committee 
13 November 2013 
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ALFRED NZO DISTRICT MUNICIPAL ANNUAL 

PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2012/13 
 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Legislative Requirement 

 

Section 40 of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 as amended outlines that a 

Municipality must establish mechanisms to monitor and review its Performance 

Management System so as to measure, monitor, review, evaluate and improve 

performance of its organizational and departmental levels.   The Municipal Planning 

and Performance Management Regulations, 2001 stipulates that that a municipality’s 

performance  management system entails a framework that describes and 

represents how the municipality’s cycle and processes of performance planning, 

monitoring, measurement, review, reporting and improvement will be conducted.  

Alfred Nzo District Municipality in compliance with the Performance Regulations 

developed and adopted its Performance Management System policy Framework 

which gives an indication of the approach by the municipality towards performance 

management.  During the financial year under review, the municipality developed 

and adopted its Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan hence quarterly 

performance reports on implementation of municipality projects and programmes as 

per approved IDP, Budget and SDBIP were produced at the end of each quarter. 

 

 

Section 46 (1) of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 as amended stipulates that a 

municipality must prepare for each financial year a performance report reflecting: 

a) The performance of the municipality and each external provider during that 

financial year; 

b) A comparison of the performance with target set for and performances in the 

previous financial year; and  

c) Measures taken to improve performance. 

 

It is against the above-mentioned background that Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

has drafted its Annual Performance Report for 2012/13 reflecting level of 

performance by the municipality and further reflects some comparison with the 

performance in the previous financial year (2011/12).  The annual performance 

report reflects on the municipal performance per National Key Performance Area.  
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2. MUNICIPAL PERFORMANCE OVERIVEW 

 

The approach towards giving an overview in terms of the level of performance by the 

municipality during the 2012/13 financial year has been based on a number of 

projects or programmes the municipality set as targets to achieve in line with 

approved Integrated Development Plan and Service Delivery and Budget 

Implementation Plan.  Projects and Programmes were categorized in relation to 

National Key Performance Areas and the level of performance by the municipality 

per KPA is highlighted.  Three scenario measures have been used to assess the 

state of performance by the municipality and scenario are as follow: 

 

 Target Achieved 

 Target partially achieved 

 Target not achieved 

 

Targets that are being categorized as achieved are those targets where the 

municipality completed or achieved 100% of the set target.  Targets that are 

categorized as partially achieved are those targets where the municipality performed 

some activities but not completed the tasks i.e. where a plan or policy was supposed 

to be adopted by the Council but only the draft document was produced but not 

finally adopted by Council.  Target not achieved are those targets that the 

municipality did not perform even a minimum level or where nothing at all was done.  
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2.1 Municipal Performance per KPA 

1. BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Water Safety 
Plan 

Developed and 
approved Water 
Safety Plan 

Council 
Resolution 

01 Water 
Safety 
Plan 

Draft 
Water 
Safety 
Plan 

Complete 
water 
safety 
plan 

Inception 
report and 
risk 
assessme
nt 

R350 000.00 R323437.67 Delays were 
experienced due to 
Adjudication 
committee not 
sitting. 

Fastrack the project 
and budget for it in 
the 2013/14 
financial year 

Groundwater 
Management 
Plan 

To ensure a 
sustainable 
development of 
resources for 
various 
groundwater 
users. 

Council 
Resolution 

01 
Groundwa

ter 
Managem
ent Plan 

01 
Groundwa

ter 
Managem
ent Plan 

Install 
data 
loggers in 
4 water 
storages 
and 5 
boreholes 

Nil R1700 000.00 R0.00 Delays were 
experienced due to 
appointment letters 
not being signed. 

Handover the 
project to Water 
Conservation and 
Demand 
Management  Unit 

Municipal Dam 
Safety Plan 

Ensure the 
protection of 
water resources 
through proper 
management and 
monitoring of 
Municipal Water 
Dams. 

Council 
Resolution 

01 
Municipal 

Dam 
Safety 
Plan 

01 
Municipal 

Dam 
Safety 
Plan 

Install 
data 
loggers in 
4 water 
storages 
and 5 
boreholes 

Nil R1700 000.00 R0.00 Delays were 
experienced due to 
appointment letters 
not being signed. 

Handover the 
project to Water 
Conservation and 
Demand 
Management  Unit 

B
as

ic
 

S
er

vi

ce
 

D
el

iv

er
y 

Emergency 
Response Plan 
for water 
disease 

Plan for 
waterborne 
disease outbreak 
management 

Council 
Resolution 

Emergenc
y 

Response 
Plan for 

Draft 
Emergenc

y 
Response 

Conduct 
two 
awarenes
s 

-Bleach 
procured 
for Zinini 
village in 

R500 000.00 R22500.00 Poor community 
mobilization for 
awareness 
campaigns 

Request social 
facilitators to 
mobilize the 
community for the 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

outbreak water 
disease 
outbreak 

Plan for 
water 

disease 
outbreak 

campaign
s 
 
-Procure 
emergenc
y stock  
 
 

Mbizana awareness 
campaigns 

Water Quality 
Monitoring 

Compliance with 
water quality 
standards  

Blue and Green 
drop Compliance 
Certificate 

Improved 
GDS and 

BDS 
results 

64% 
(12%) 

improvem
ent 

Submit 12 
water 
quality 
samples 
for each 
system to 
DWA 
system 

12 water 
quality 
samples 
for each 
system 
submitted 
to DWA 
BDS and 
GDS  

R1000 000.00 R750 000. 00 None  None  

Waste to Wood 
nurseries 
 

 

  

Promotion of safe 
environment 
management 
practices through 
promotion of 
greening within 
households, 
towns and 
schools. 

Two nurseries 
completed and 
nursery 
equipment 

-02 
Nurseries. 
-Equipped 
nurseries 

and 
monitoring 

Two 
nurseries 
completed 

and 
nursery 

equipment 

-
Complete
d nursery 
in 
Ntabankul
u 
 
-Project 
members 
for 
Ntabankul
u nursery  

-
Ntabankul
u nursery 
constructe
d and 
completed 
 
-Project 
members 
trained 
 
 

R500 000.00 R261 000.00 Supply chain staff 
members were on 
different leaves and 
the order for 
seedlings and 
protective clothing 
was not issued. 

Procure seedlings 
and protective 
clothing next 
financial year (2013-
14) 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

trained 
 
-Seedling 
inputted in 
Ntabankul
u nursery 

Review of 
Environmental 
management 
Plan (EMP) 

Reviewed and 
approved 
Comprehensive 
Policy Framework 
Plan 

Council 
Resolution 

01 
Environm

ental 
Managem

ent 
Framewor

k 
completed 

Draft EMF 
in place 

 
-Alien 
plants 
removed 
in 
Matatiele 
Dam 
-Execute 
erosion 
control 
measure 
around 
Matatiele 
dam 
-Plant tree 
in 
Cedarville 

-50% alien 
plants 
removed 
in 
Matatiele 
town dam 
-20% 
eroded 
lands 
rehabilitat
ed. 
- 
Cedarville 
trees 
planted 

 

R500 000.00 R250 000.00 Targets achieved None  

Integrated 
Waste 
Management 
Plan (IWMP) 

Reviewed and 
approved IWMP 

Council 
Resolution 

01 IWMP 
completed 

Nil  Complete
d designs 
for 
Ntabankul
u waste 
buyback 

Designs 
for 

Ntabankul
u waste 
buyback 
center 

R500 000.00 R200 000.00 Target achieved None  
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 
 
 
 
Installed 
40 
Concrete 
waste bins 
in 
Ntabankul
u Town 

completed 
 

40 
Concrete 
waste bins 
installed in 
Ntabankul
u Town 

B
as

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Community 
based natural 
resource 
management 
(CBNRM) 

To protect natural 
resources and at 
the same time 
bring long lasting 
benefits to the 
community. 

One CBNRM 
project completed 
in ANDM and 
handed over to 
project members. 

01 
CBNRM 
project 
handed 
over to 
project 

members 

01 
CBNRM 
project 
handed 
over to 
project 

members 

Train 8 
project 
members 
on 
chainsaw 
applicatio
n, First 
Aid, 
Herbicide 
applicatio
n and 
Health 
and 
Safety. 

8 project 
members 
trained on 
chainsaw 
applicatio
n, First 
Aid, 
Herbicide 
applicatio
n and 
Health 
and 
Safety 

R200 000.00 R80 000.00 Target achieved None   

Waste Buy back 
Centres 

Establishment of 
Waste Buy 
Centres 

One waste 
buyback center 
completed. 

01 Waste 
Buy back 
Centres 

completed 

01 Waste 
Buy back 
Centres 

completed 

Refurbish
ed Mt 
Frere 
Waste 

Mt Frere 
Waste 

Buyback 
refurbishe

R200 000.00 R158 997.16 Target achieved None  
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Buyback. d. 

Waste 
Management 
Training and 
Awareness 

Awareness on 
waste 
management 

Number of 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted 

Four 
awarenes

s 
campaign

s 
conducted 

Four 
awarenes

s 
campaign

s 
conducted 

Four 
waste 

awarenes
s 

campaign
s 

conducted 
across the 

district 

Three  
waste 

awarenes
s 

campaign
s 

conducted 
across the 

district 

R100 000.00 R69300.00 Matatiele Waste 
Manager left the 
municipality and the 
campaign couldn’t 
take place. 

Environmental 
manager  in 
Matatiele LM to 
champion the 
awareness 
campaign during the  
2013/2014 financial 
year 

Backlog 
Eradication 
Strategy 
Development 

Approved 
Strategy by 
Council 

Council 
Resolution 

Adopted  
Strategy 

Nil Adopted  

Strategy 
Adopted  

Strategy 
R346,423.01 R228,639.18 No challenges Nil  

Water Services 
Development 
Plan (WSDP) 
Development 
 
 
 
 
 

Developed WSDP 
incorporating two 
new local 
municipalities 

Council 
Resolution 

Adopted 
WSDP  

Draft 
Document 
in place 

Adopted 
WSDP  

Reviewed 
WSDP 

R434,853.00 R434,853.00 Some gaps have 

been identified in 

the final 

document 

PsP (Gibb) have 

been 

appointment to 

fix the gaps, they 

have submitted 

the draft 

document for 

comments. 

 

Review of 
District 
Integrated 
Transport Plan 

Adopted DITP Council 
Resolution 

Adopted 
DITP 

Draft 
Document 
in place 

01 DITP 
document 

Draft 
documen

t 

R452,580.00 R0.00 No challenges 

experienced 

Since there are no 

challenges, 

therefore no 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

(DITP) corrective 

measures needed 

Electricity 
Sector Plan 

Adopted 
Electricity Sector 
Plan  

Council 
Resolution 

Adopted 
Plan 

Draft 
Document 
in place 

Reviewed 
Electricity 

Sector 
Plan 

Reviewed 
Electricity 

Sector 
Plan 

R261,059.22 R261,059.22 No challenges 
experienced 

Nil  

Caba-Mdeni 
Water Supply 
(Phase 2 
construction) 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
households 
served with water 

2305 0 2305  Construc
tion 

100% 
complete

, 
however 

the 
defects 
liability 
has not 

commen
ced as 
Eskom 

had not 
yet 

connecte
d the 

power 
lines. 

R600 000.00 R2,898,338.36 

 
Delays by Eskom in 
installing power 
lines 

Eskom to finelise 
installation 

Cabazana Bulk 
Water Supply 

Finalisation of 
Designs, EIAs 

Number of 
households 

3756 0 751  Construc
tion at 

R11 500 00.00 R8,273,601.91 Not achieved, Terminate 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

and Licensing served with water 50% 
complete 

Contractors 

defaulting & 

withdrawing from 

the project 

defaulting 

contractors 

Cabazi Water 
Supply 

Project Design Number of 
households 
served with water 

980 0 490  Construc

tion at 

70% 

complete 

R11 500 000.00 R6,451,762.77 Achieved Speed up award 

of tender for 

mechanical and 

electrical 

Fobane Water 
Supply (Phase 
1A-1F) 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

2305 0 576  Still on 

defect 

liability 

period 

R15 000 000.00 

9
,9

0
4

,2
5

7
.9

3
 Delays by the 

contractor in 

executing other 

parts of the works 

Contractor to do 

other work 

through a cession 

Greater 
Mbizana Water 
Supply Scheme 
(RBIG) 

Provision of bulk 
water services to 
Mbizana Town 
and surrounding 
villages 

Completion of 
technical report, 
registration of the 
project on 
MIG/MIS 

48 407 0 2681 Project 
submitte
d to EC 

Appraisal 
committ

ee for 
recomm
endation 

R6 000 000.00 R966,530.00 Project cannot be 

funded under 

RBIG 

Project to be 

submitted to  

Hlane Water 
Supply 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

2337 2337 2337 Construc
tion at 

70% 

R12 500 000.00 R3,476,418.60   
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

completi
on 

KwaBhaca 
Regional Bulk 
Water Supply 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

16667 0 980 Not 

achieved 

new 

consulta

nt not 

appointe

d yet and 

contract

ors 

progress 

for 

Section 3 

slow 

R26 000 000.0

0 

R23,563,067.96 Contractors not 

complying with 

OHS 

requirements. 

Contractors to 

comply  

Maluti/ 
Matatiele/ 
Ramohlakoana 
Water Supply 

Augmentation of 
water supply to 
Matatiele, Maluti 
and 
Ramohlakoana 

Design Report 3307 0 2810 Not 

achieved 

R2,200,000.00 R185,291.04 Delays with the 
committees 

 

Mvenyane 
Water Supply 
(All Phases) 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

2305 0 2305 Achieved

, last 

contract

or 

R2 500 000.00 R3,107,654.77 None  
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

reached 

practical 

completi

on. 

However 

there is 

still 

additiona

l work to 

do, 

electrific

ation and 

spring. 

Siqhingeni Bulk 
Water Supply 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

2529 0 632 Not 

achieved 

only 

reached 

tender 

advertisi

ng stage 

R5 800 000.00 R1,689,369.85 Challenges with 

sitting of 

evaluation 

committee 

Committees to 

convene 

Tholamela Sub-
Regional Water 
Supply 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

4112 0 1028 Progress 
not 

achieved 

R11 500 000.00 R5,503,856.46 Slow progress Issue a letter of 

warning to the 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

due to 
delays 
with 

approval 
of VOs 

for 
access. 

contractor for 

slow progress 

Tholang Water 
Supply 

Provision of water 
to households 

Number of 
Households 
served with water 

2305 0 615 Official 
handing 
over to 

communi
ty 

R518 000.00 R0 All reticulation 

network 

completed but 

there is no water 

Connect the 

reticulation into 

the Maluti 

scheme 

Maluti/Ramohla
koana 
Sewerage 
Upgrade 

Provision of 
sanitation to 
households 

Number of 
Households 
served with 
sanitation 

1220 0 1220 Achieved
, 

construct
ion 

reached 
target 

R1 800 000.00 R1,868,849.26 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 Procurement of 

Fire and 

Rescue Service 

Vehicles 

-To promote fire 

safety and fire 

fighting  

Development of 

procurement 

documentation 

 

Appointment of 

the service 

provider 

  04  R5 500 000.00 R1 029 880. 60 The payment of 

chassis for two 

vehicles has been 

effected. The 

balance will only 

be paid on 

delivery of the 

vehicles. 

None 

Fire risk 

assessment 

project 

To ensure safe 

and sustainable 

environment for 

the people of the 

ANDM 

 

-community 

consultation 

process 

-development of 

the 1st report 

 

  01 
 
 
 
 

01 

01 
 
 
 
 

01 

R5 500 000.00 R373 836.78 None Draft Safety  

Plan in place 

Facilitate the 

recruitment and 

support to key 

Fire & Rescue 

Service 

objective 

-To maintain a 

balanced shift 

strength 

Maintenance  of 

balanced shift 

strength 

Development of 

the concept 

document for new 

  20 20 R500 000.00 R196 020.00 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

intake 

 Plan and 

Launch of 

Public 

Information 

Education and 

Relations 

(P.I.E.R.) 

program. 

To promote a fire-

safe environment  

within the  ANDM 

Development of 

the concept 

document for new 

intake 

  40 
campaign

s 

34 R550 000.00 R Intake not 

approved by the 

Mayoral 

Committee. 

None 

Training Center 

establishment – 

Mount Frere 

To promote fire 

safety and fire 

fighting to ensure 

sustainable fire 

safe environment 

through service 

delivery 

Feasibility Study 

Report 

  01 01 R500 000.00 Nil Delayed 

procurement 

process. Bidders 

submitted before 

closing date. 

Evaluation not 

conducted. 

Supply Chain 

Committees to be 

trained. The 

function to be 

included in the 

Supply Chain 

Committee 

Chairperson score 

card. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Strengthening 

of  Control 

Center 

To promote fire 

safety and fire 

fighting to ensure 

sustainable fire 

safe environment 

through service 

delivery 

Development of 

Procurement 

documents 

  01 01 R950 000.00 R Delayed 

procurement 

process. Bidders 

submitted before 

closing date. 

Evaluation not 

conducted. 

Supply Chain 

Committees to be 

trained. The 

function to be 

included in the 

Supply Chain 

Committee 

Chairperson score 

card. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



16 | P a g e  A N D M  A n n u a l  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t  2 0 1 2 / 1 3  

 

 

KPA No 1: Basic Service Delivery 
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2. INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Institutional 

A
rrangem

ent

s 
and 

O
rganisation

al 

D
evelopm

ent 

Skills 
Programmet 

To make the 
workplace an 
effective learning 
environment for 
employees and 
councilors through 
implementation of 
skills programme. 

Number of 
employees and 
Councilors trained 

131 74(56%) 150 74 1,800,000.00 1 476 528.94 Supply chain 
management 
processes delay 
appointment of 
training providers. 

SCM Unit informed 
about the delays 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

an
d 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Internship 
Programme 

To use the 
workplace as an 
active learning 
place for new 
entrants into the 
labour market 

Number of interns 
placed per 
department/ unit. 
-Percentage of 
interns absorbed 
within the 
municipality 

10 14 (140%) 10 21 300,000.00 300,000.00 None None 

In-service 
training 
programme  

To enable 
students gain 
much needed 
work exposure in 
real work 
environment to 
complete formal 
qualifications 

Number of 
students offered 
In-service training 

5 0 3 3 240,000.00 180 000 No potential 
candidates came 
forward for 
consideration into 
programme 

An advert will be 
issued  issues 
calling on potential 
candidates to apply 
for the programme 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Study 
Assistance 
Programme 

To encourage 
employees and 
councilors to 
advance their 
educational levels 
by getting formal 
qualifications in 
the form of 
diplomas and 
degrees with 
accredited tertiary 
institutions. 

Number of 
employees and 
councilors 
assisted with their 
studies and 
obtained 
qualifications. 

20 3(15%) 15 30 180,000.00 621 999.94 Employees 
reluctant to study on 
their own 

Awareness 
campaigns to be 
made to employees 
and Councillors 
about the 
helpfulness of the 
programme. 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t Induction 

Programme 
To make new 
municipal 
employees get 
formal induction 
into municipality 

Number of 
induction sessions 
conducted 

4 0 4 0 200,000.00 0 Unavailability of 
other departments 
to make 
presentations 
during the induction 
sessions 

A proposal has 
been made for the 
department of 
induction packs to 
be given to new 
employees. 

Registration 
with 
Professional 
Bodies  

To inculcate a 
level of 
professionalism 
within employees 
by encouraging 
registration with 
established 
professional 
bodies per field. 

Number of 
employees 
registered with 
respective 
professional 
bodies. 

100 0 10 7 210,000.00 9 889 Few employees 
registered with 
professional bodies 

Encourage more 
employees to 
register with 
professional bodies. 

External To support Number of 0 0 15 5 150,000.00 0 Investigating the Consultative 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Bursary 
Schemes 

academically 
deserving and 
needy children to 
pursue tertiary 
qualifications in 
special and 
scarce skills  

children assisted 
with bursary 
schemes 

credibility of the 
documents 
submitted by 
beneficiaries 

meetings have been 
scheduled with the 
Tertiary institution of 
the Beneficiaries 

Subsistence 
and Travelling 
(Training and 
Development 

To ensure that 
municipal 
employees and 
councilors get 
essential 
subsistence and 
travel allowances 
when attending 
training and 
development 
programmes 

Monthly, Quarterly 
and Annual 
Expenditure 
Reports 

Monthly, 
Quarterly 
and yearly 

reports 

Monthly, 
Quarterly 
and yearly 

reports 

150 74 750,000.00 1 618 485.31 None  None. 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Individual 
Performance 
Management  

To encourage 
performance 
Culture, 
appraisals of 
employees and 
reward good 
performance 

Number of 
Performance 
Agreements 
signed and 
assessment 
reports produced 

4 
performan
ce 
agreement 
signed and 
4 
performan
ce reports 
produces  

4 
performan
ce 
agreement 
signed and 
2 
performan
ce reports 
produces  

37 
performan
ce 
contracts 
signed  

35 
perform
ance 
contract
s signed  

400,000.00 400 000 The staff shortage 
in HR Office 
between October 
2011 to January 
2012. 

Fast track the 
appointment of the 
Senior Manager 
Corporate Services 

Organisational 
Development 

To capacitate staff -Signed and 
adopted 

-Signed 
organogra

-Not 
achieved 

Adopted 
staff 

Policies 
adopte on 

50,000.00 R42 000 The final draft was 
sent back to 

To refer it to Council 
for adoption on the 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Organogram. 
-Number of HR 
policies adopted 

m 
 

 
 

establish
ment  and 
HR 
Policies 

the 20 
August 
2012 and 
the staff 
establish
ment also  
adopted 

department for staff 
consultation. 

20th of August 2012 

Employee 
Wellness 
Programm 

To provide 
employee 
assistance, 
Occupational 
Health and Safety 
and HIV and AIDS 
in the workplace 

Surveys Report 60% 

employee 

beneficiari

es in the 

programe. 

70% of 
employee 
benefited 
from the 

pogramm
e  

Wellness 

interventi

on 

EAP 

strategy 

and 

wellness 

interventi

on 

Achieved  300 000 257 618.25 None None 

Job Evaluation To ensure equal 
pay for work of 
equal value 

Job Evaluation 
Results Report 

Implement

ation of 

the Job 

evaluation 

system 

Not 
achieved 

Implement

ation of 

Job 

valuation 

Achieved  R5m 1,4m None. None  
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KPA No 2: Institutional Development & 

Transformation
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3. LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Lo
ca

l E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Finalisation of 
the Review of 
ANDM LED 
Strategy 

To have a 
credible LED 
Strategy with 
clear 
implementation 
Plan 

Approved LED 
strategy 

01 LED 

Strategy 

Draft 

Status 

Quo and 

Inception 

Report in 

place  

01 LED 

strategy 

developed 

and 

approved  

01 LED 

strategy 

developed 

and 

approved 

by council 

R 500 000 R 500 000 None  None  

Development of 
investment 
attraction 
strategy  

To develop and 
implement an 
investment 
attraction strategy 
by 2016/17  

Approved 
investment 
attraction strategy  

0 0  01 
investmen
t attraction 

strategy 

Inception 
and 
situational 
analysis 
reports 
were 
developed 
& 
approved 
by DST.  

R 500 000 R 500 000 The other phases of 
the strategy will be 
develop on 13/14 
financial year. 

This project will be 
completed by 13/14 
financial year. 

Rural 
Development 
Summit  

To ensure that 
there is continued 
dialogue of rural 
development 
issues. 

Number of 
stakeholders 
mobilized and 
participated in the 
review process 

0 0 01 Rural 
Developm

ent 
Summit 

Concept 
document 
for the 
summit 
was 
developed  

R 500 000 R 200 000 Rural Development 
Summit did not take 
place due to the fact 
that the 
development 
process of the 
planning documents 
that would inform 
the Summit had not 

Rural development 
summit is planned 
for 2013/14 financial 
year. 



23 | P a g e  A N D M  A n n u a l  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t  2 0 1 2 / 1 3  

 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

been concluded 

SMME Strategy 
Development 

To develop a 
strategic 
development 
framework for 
SMME 
development in 
ANDM 

Approved SMME 
Development 
Strategy 

01 SMME 
Developm

ent 
Strategy 

Draft 
Status 
Quo 
Report 
and 
Inception 
Report in 
place.  

01 SMME 
strategy  

01 SMME 
strategy  
is 
developed 
and 
approved 
by the 
council 

R 500 000 R 500 000 None  None 

Lo
ca

l E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Tourism Sector 
Plan 

To develop a 
strategic 
development 
framework for the 
Tourism Sector in 
ANDM 

Tourism Sector 
Plan in Place 

01 
Tourism 
Sector 
Plan 

Draft 
Status 
Quo 
Report 
and 
Inception 
Report in 
place.  

01 tourism 
sector 
plan 

01 tourism 
sector 
plan is 
developed 
and 
approved 
by council  

R 500 000 R 500 000 None  None  

District Support 
Team 

To enhance the 
consistency and 
integration of 
government 
technical support 
for LED at the 
district level. 

Number of District 
Support Team 
meetings held 

04 02 (50%) Establish 
LED for a  

5 LED for 
a 

establishe
d  

R 150 000 R 150 000 None None  
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KPA No 3: Local Economic Development
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4. GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
 

Five Year IDP 
Development 
(2012-2017) 

To have a 
Credible IDP that 
enables the 
municipality to 
achieve its 
mandate of 
effective service 
delivery in an 
efficient manner 

-Council 
Resolution. 
-Report on 
Assessment from 
the MEC’s 
Offices. 

01 01 (100%) 
achieved. 

01 01 (100%) 
achieved. 

R1000,000.00 R786 352.46 None None 

Institutional 
Performance 
Management 
System 

To ensure 
compliance with 
relevant 
legislation through 
proper reporting 
on performance 
by the 
municipality. 

Number of 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Reports Produced 

04 03 04 04 0 0 There is challenge 
of non-submission 
of quarterly reports 
by departments  

Departments to 
report on a monthly 
basis 

Annual Report 
2011/12 

To ensure proper 
reporting on 
performance by 
the municipality to 
have well 
informed 
inhabitants on the 
overall municipal 
performance on 

Adopted 1 
Municipal Annual 
Report for 
20110/11 

01 01 01 01 0 0 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

services delivery. 

Memorial 

Lecture 
To hold 2 

memorial lectures  
Invitation, adverts 

and list of guests 

invited 

01 
memorial 
lecture  

01 
memorial 
lecture  

02 
Memorial 
Lectures  

01 

Memoria

l Lecture  

R500 000 R350 000 Council could not 

host the second 

memorial lecture  

To hosts as per 

council resolution.  

Open Council To hold a once off 

event and take 

the Council to the 

people of the  

Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality  

Identification of 

the venue, 

Invitation, adverts 

and list of guests 

invited 

01 01 (100%) 01 01 R350 000.00 R350 000.00 None  None  

Newsletter and 
Pamphlets 

To promote the 
district 
programmes 
through the 
publication of 
newsletters and 
pamphlets 

Number of copies 
and pamphlets 
produced 

01 0 04 
newsletter 
bulletins 

04 
newsletter 
bulletins 

R400 000.00 R400 000.00 None  None 

Brail and 
Translation 

To translate 
municipal 
documents in all 
languages spoken 
in the district area 
and brail 

Number of 
translated 
documents 

04 
Newsletter 

 
04 

pamphlets 

02 (50%) 
Newsletter 

 
08 (200%) 
pamphlets 
developed 

08 10 R100 000.00 R100 000.00 N/A N/A 

G o o d G ov er n a nc e a n d P u bl
i c P ar tic ip at
i

o n Branding and 
Marketing 

To ensure the 
effective 

Approved 
Municipal 

  01 Manual 
 

01 Manual 
 

R1 500 R1 500 000.00 None  N/A 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

implementation of 
the 
communication 
strategy 

Branding and 
Marketing plan 
manual  
 
 
New logo 
development 
 
Faces of the 
Municipality 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

01 Logo 
 
 

01 poster 
 

 
 
 
 
 

01 Logo 
 
 

01 poster 

000.00 

Disability 
Support and 
Development 
Programmes 

To set guidelines 
for integration of 
disability issues 
into policies, plans 
and programs  

District Disability 
policy review 
 
 
 
District Disability 
meetings 
 
Disability 
Economic 
Empowerment 
 
Skills 
Development 
Programme 
 
International   Day 

  01 

 

01 

 

01 

 

01 

01 

01 

 

01 

 

01 

 

01 

01 

R600 000 R167 000.00  
 
 
 
Only Umzimvubu 
and Ntabamkulu  
were affected. 
 
Forum members 
had no transport 
 
 
 
None 
 
 
None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

for Disabled 
 
Support and care 
programme 
 
Disability and 
Rural 
Development 
 
Disability as a 
human right 
Programme 
 
Data collection 

 

01 

00 

 

00 

00 

 

 

 

01 

00 

 

00 

00 

 
 
 
None 
 
Program was 
delayed  
 
 
Programme  
delayed  
 
 
 
 
Programme delayed 

  To have an 
existing Disability 
Forum  

01 01    R190 000 R188.300 This programme 
was adjusted to the 
next financial year 
because of the 
delay by service 
provider 
 
 

Referred to this is 
financial budget   

Older Person’s 
Programme 

To coordinate and 
facilitate the 
mainstreaming of 
Elderly 
Programmes  

Develop database 
for Older Persons 
Projects 

01 01   R500 000.00 R374 349 This was adjusted 
to the next term 
because of the new 
demarcation 
arrangements  

To separate plane 
action plan and be 
used as a strategy 
document  
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 Development of 
integrated district 
Elderly Policy 

       01 01   Database was done 
in house 

 

Facilitate the 
Elderly Economic 
Development and 
Empowerment 
Programme 

  01 01     

Reviewal of 
District Older 
Persons Forum 

  03 01   Due to budget 
constraints the 
programmes were 
fused into 1  

 

  District Older 
Persons Forum 
Meeting 

  01 01     

Coordinate and 
commemorate the 
Institutionalised 
days 

  04 04     

International 
Older Persons 
Day 

  01 01     

Golden games   01 01      

Organize 
intergenerational 
Programme (talk 
show) 

  01 01     

Fun day for the   03 01    Proper planning and 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Elderly (XMAS 
party) 

budgeting is done 

Organize Older 
Persons 
parliament 

  01 01    Integration of 
programmes with 
sector departments 
done 

Easter Week end 
and Moral 
regeneration  

  01  01    Proper planning and 
budgeting is done 

Older Persons in 
HIV & AIDS 
Programmes 

  01 01     

          

Children’s 
Programmes 

To facilitate the 
creation of an 
environment that 
would be 
conducive for 
growth and 
development of 
children 

Establishment of 
Children’s Forum 

  01 01 R500 000.00 R289 550  Integration of 
programmes with 
the Dept of Social 
Development was 
done  

Establishment of 
Children’s 
Advisory Council 

  01 nil   Need to do 
benchmarking with 
other municipalities 

 

Establishment 

of Children’s 

Net Club 

       01 01     

Organize 

Children’s 

  01 nil   The programme 
was under 
budgeted for 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Parliament 

Children’s 

Games 

  01 01     

Awareness 
campaigns on 
Children’s Rights 
and 
responsibilities 

  01 01     

  Parent child 
debates  

  03 01   Due to financial 
constraints these 
awareness 
programmes were 
integrated into one 
session 

 

  Schools Health 
Awareness 
Campaigns 

  02 01   Due to budget 
constraints these 
programmes were 
fused into one 
session 
 
 

 

  Take a child to 
work campaign 

  04 01   The programme 
was done in 
partnership with 
department of 
health 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Children in ICT   01 01     

Christmas party 
for children 

  04 Nil    No infrastructure 
conducive for 
children in place  

 

Back to school   01 Nil    Due to a great 
number of school 
uniform requests 
from communities 
the budget was 
deferred to back to 
school 

 

Conduct 
municipal wide 
risk assessment 

Facilitate the 
identification, 
analysis and 
rating of risk. 

  

 Facilitate the 
development of 
risk register. 

Policy 
development 

Municipal Risk 
Assessment 
register 

 

Risk Assessment 
reports 

  01 01 80 000 75 000  Improved budgeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conduct 
Internal Audit 
as per the 
approved 
Audit Plan 

Provide 
innovative and 
effective 
internal audit 
services 

Compile 
Internal Audit 
Plan: 
Strategic 
Coverage Plan & 
Operational 
Plan. 

01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R800 000.00 R600 000.00 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 
Update Internal 
Audit Charter 
 

 
 

01 

 
 

01 

 
 

01 

 
 

01 

 
 
None 

 
 
None 

AFS  reviews Establish 
whether all 
disclosures are 
made in the 
financial 
statements. This 
includes 
checking 
whether the 
statements 
reconcile with 
the trial balance 
as well as with 
supporting work 
papers 

Perform 
internal audit 
assignment: AFS 
reviews. 

01  01 01  01 R800 000.00 
Nil 

R600 000.00 
Nil 

 Proper planning and 
research needs to 
be done 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual 
Performance 
Information 
Reviews 

Test whether 

annual 

performance 

reports are 

aligned with 

targets set in 

service delivery 

Internal Audit 
report: 
Performance 
Information 

01 
 

01 01  01 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

and budget 

implementation 

plans (SDBIP) 

and 

performance 

agreements of 

senior 

managers. 

Determine the 

extent of 

compliance with 

performance 

management 

regulations and 

Municipal 

System Act. 

 

External Audit 
Coordination 

Controlling the 
issuing and 
receipting of 
requests for 
information by 
the external 
auditors. 

Up dated RFI  and 
communication 
register  

01  
 

01 
 

01 
 

01 Nil  Nil None  None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Assisting in the 
resolution of 
differences 
between the 
management 
team and the 
external 
auditors 

Revenue 
Collection 
and Cash 
Management 

Test controls 
around billing 
processes 
Determine 
whether the 
indigent 
register is in 
place and Test 
their 
completeness 
and also the 
existence of 
indigent policy.  
Test whether 
over the 
counter 
receipts are 
properly 
recorded and 
timeously 

Internal Audit 
Report: 
Revenue 
Management 

N/A  N/A 01  01 Nil Nil None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

banked. Test 
whether direct 
deposits are 
identified and 
properly 
recorded in 
financial 
records 

S&T review Test control 
around 
payment 
process of S&T 

Internal Audit 
report 
(This internal 
audit 
assignment was 
part of 
approved 
internal audit 
plan 2012-13, 
management 
requested 
internal audit 
office to 
conduct special 
internal audit 
with regard 
S&T). 

n/a n/a N/A  N/A Nil Nil N/A N/A 

Human 
Resources 
Management 

Establish 
whether staff 
recruitment, 

Conduct 
internal audit 
on Human 

N/A N/A 01 01 Nil Nil None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

reviews appointment, 
and termination 
were conducted 
following the 
municipality’s 
human 
resources policy 
manual. 

Resources 
Management 
processes and 
systems. 

Compile audit 
Methodology 

Craft audit 
methodology in 
order to guide 
internal audit 
staff 

Audit 
methodology 

N/A N/A 01 
 

01 R 200 000.00 Nil Target has been 
achieved, we have 
solicited services of 
OCA to perform this 
function. 

 

SCM & 
Expenditure 
Management 
reviews 

Test controls 
around SCM 
and Expenditure 
management 
processes. 
Determine the 
extent of 
compliance with 
relevant laws 
and legislations. 

Internal Audit 
report: SCM and 
Expenditure 
management 
processes 

N/A N/A 01 01  Nil  Nil None  None  

Follow up 
reviews on 
management 
action plan 

Determine the 
extent of 
implementation 
of Management 

Report on 
Implementation 
status of action 
plan 

01 
 

01 
 

01 
 

01 Nil  Nil  None  None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Action Plan to 
address AG’s 
findings. 

Quarterly 
Performance 
Information 
review 

Test whether 

annual 

performance 

reports are 

aligned with 

targets set in 

service delivery 

and budget 

implementation 

plans (SDBIP) 

and 

performance 

agreements of 

senior 

managers. 

Determine the 
extent of 
compliance with 
performance 
management 
regulations and 

Perform 
Internal Audit 
Assignment: 
Performance 
Information 

2 
Audit 

Perform 
Informatio

n 
conducted  

2 audit 
assignme
nts were 
performed 
and 
reported 
to  
managem
ent and 
Audit 
Committe
e 

4 
Audit 

Performan
ce 

Informatio
n 4 times 
per year 

4 audit 
assignme
nts were 
performe

d and 
reported 

to the 
manage

ment 
and 

Audit 
Committ

ee. 

Nil Nil None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Municipal 
System Act. 

Asset 
Management 

Test whether 

assets are 

correctly 

capitalized in 

the asset 

register and 

whether 

assets are 

physically 

counted and 

are 

adequately 

insured. 

Test the 

extent of 

compliance 

with GRAP 

17   

Asset 
management 
internal audit 
report 

N/A N/A 01 01 Nil Nil None None 

ICT reviews Review the 
adequacy and 
effectiveness 

None N/A N/A 01  0 R 200 000.00 00 This target is not 
achieved due to 
adhoce assignment 
delegated to office 

The project will be 
priorities for next 
financial year. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

of the controls 
within the ICT 
environment, 
as these 
processes 
directly impact 
on data 
integrity, 
validity and 
confidentiality 
of financial 
information of 
Alfred Nzo 
District 
Municipality 

of internal audit by 
MM. 

Compliance 
Reviews 

Performance 
compliance 
determine the 
extent of 
compliance with 
relevant laws 
and legislation 

Internal Audit 
Report on 
compliance  

N/A N/A 01  0 Nil Nil Compliance 
internal Audit was 
not performed 
due to non-
appointment of 
budgeted internal 
audit post and 
also adhoc 
assignments 
assigned to the 
internal audit 

The project will be 
priorities for next 
financial year. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

office. 

To provide 
innovative and 
value adding 
internal audit 
services 

Reconciliation 
statement review: 
Internal Audit 
report. 

Internal Audit 
Report 

 01 01 N/A N/A Nil Nil N/A N/A 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n To provide 
innovative and 
value adding 
internal audit 
services 

DASHBOARD 
report 

Follow up on 
DASHBOARD 
has carried out 
and final report 
was tabled to the 
Council meeting 
/AG (SA) visit held 
on the 16 May 
2012. 

01 01 01 01 Nil Nil N/A N/A 

Film 

Production 

 

To have a 

local based 

film 

production 

The script 

has been 

developed 

and signed 

  01 01 R R86 000.00 MoU was signed 

on the third 

quarter and funds 

were transferred 

on the fourth 

quarter. 

Programm 

planned to be 

finalsed in 

2013/2014 

financial year. 

Operation 

of leagues 

To ensure 

leagues are 

functioning 

none   01 01 R100 0000.00 Nil Funds were 

utilized in the 

Salga games 

None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

optimally 

particulary on 

the play-off 

stages 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
 

Horse 

racing 

To ensure 

that horse 

development 

programme 

and racing is 

functional in 

the district 

Local horse 

racing  

  01 01 R100 000.00 R60 000.00 Due to late 

transfer of 

funds 

pragramme had 

to be done on 

July 2013 

Programme 

planned for July 

2013 

Alfred Nzo 

Memorial 

Lecture 

To preserve 

Alfred Nzo 

Legacy 

programme 

Procurement 

for fencing of 

Alfred Nzo 

heritage site 

  01 01 R200 000.00 Nil Programme was 

postponed to 

August 2013 

None 

Marketing of 

the call 

centre 

To create 

awareness and  

popularize the 

call Centre and 

Customer care 

Community 

education and 

awareness 

campaigns 

about the  

  01 01 R340 000.00 R116 862 Tight time frames To improve on 

planning 



43 | P a g e  A N D M  A n n u a l  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t  2 0 1 2 / 1 3  

 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Line to ANDM 

Communities 

Customer Care  

line to at least 

two local 

municipalities 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
 

Establishmen

t of ANDM 

Batho Pele 

Steering  

 

To Promote 

practical 

application of 

Btho Pele 

Principles by 

all 

departments, 

Directors of 

ANDM 

Batho Pele 

Championship 

rolled over 

from 

committee to 

individual 

departments 

  01 01 R100 000.00 Nil None None 

Establishmen

t of the 

Customer 

care Centre 

 

To ensure that 

there is 

existence 

sound 

relations 

between 

ANDM and its 

Effective and 

efficient 

management 

of the call 

Centre 

  01 01 R2 000 000.00 R2 000 000.00 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 customers 

communities, 

service 

Provider, Rate 

payers. 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
 

Establishme

nt of 

community 

structures 

 

To promote 

Stakeholder 

participation 

and 

community 

ownership of 

projects 

Conduct 

stakeholders 

meetings and 

Democratic 

election of 42 

community 

structures of 

all new ANDM 

Projects. 

  70 
communit

y 
structures 

42 
Structures 

R400 000.00 R200 000.00 None None 

Training and 

Capacity 

Building of 

Community 

Structure 

To promote 

Stakeholder 

participation 

and 

community 

ownership of 

Training of 84 

community 

structures 

community 

skills, 

Constitution 

  84 84 Nil Nil None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 

 

 

projects. 

 

 

and roles and 

responsibilitie

s. 
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KPA No 4: Good Governance and Public 

Participation

T
a

rg
e

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

6
8

T
a

rg
e

t 
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 a
c
h

ie
v
d

, 
1

1

T
a

rg
e

t 
n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

2
1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

%

Target achieved Target partially achievd Target not achieved
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5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND VIABILITY 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 V
ia

bi
lit

y 

R
ev

en
u

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

T
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 b
ill

in
g 

in
 c

us
to

m
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 

Water meter 

readings captured 

on SAMRAS for 

monthly billings 

  12 12 0                            0 Target achieved Appointment of 
additional meter 
readers 

Run monthly 

exceptional 

reports 

  12 12 0                            0 Target achieved Some water meter 
are counting 
backwards.  These 
are handed to 
technicians for 
fixing. 

A
cc

ur
at

el
y 

an
d 

tim
eo

us
 b

ill
in

gs
 

Submit faulty 

meter readings 

report for 

attendance by 

Technical 

Services 

technicians 

  12 12 0                            0 Target achieved Some water meter 
are counting 
backwards.  These 
are handed to 
technicians for 
fixing. 

Number of 

households billed 

(Approximately 

5500) 

  5 500 5 874 0                            0 Target achieved Consumers every 
now and then apply 
for service 
connections. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

R
ev

en
u

e 
E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

t 

T
im

eo
us

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
re

ve
nu

e 
du

e.
 

Increase cash 
collections from 
customers 

  Reduce 
debt by 

5% 

Debt 
Increased 
by 19% 

   
Whilst overall debt 

has not decreased, 

however actual 

cash collections 

increased by 39% 

Intensive 
implementation of 
credit control policy 
utilizing the current 
staff members. 

Implementation of 
Revenue 
Enhancement 
Strategy(RES) 

  Approved 
and 

implement
ed RES. 

Draft RES 
developed 

  Still awaiting council 
adoption. 

 

Perform 
receivables age 
analysis reports 
monthly. 

  12 12   Target achieved N/A 

Refer faulty 
prepaid meters to 
technical services 

  Submit 
monthly 

faulty 
meter 

reports 

12 reports 
submitted 

to 
technical 
services 

  Target achieved. Whist these reports 
are submitted, the 
turn-around time in 
attending to faults is 
slow. 

 Send debt 
collection notices 
to all customers 
with arrear debts. 

  Monthly Not 
Achieved 

  No debt collection 
staff 

Appointment of debt 
collection staff. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

R
ev

en
u

e 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 

T
im

eo
us

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 

al
l 

re
ve

nu
e 

du
e.

 
Appointment of 
debt collection 
officers to 
enhance credit 
control 

  3 Officers 
appointed 

0   Due to prioritization 
of posts, only posts 
for cashiers posts 
were filled.  

N/A 

Send debt 
collection notices 
to all debtors with 
arrears. 

  1500 80   Due to finalization 
of placement, staff 
members placed as 
Debt Collectors still 
have grievances. 

Finalizing of 
grievances for all 
staff members that 
were placed. 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

R
ev

en
u

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

p
o

lic
ie

s 

Review revenue 
management and 
debt collection 
policies. 

Council Approval   1 1   Target achieved N/A 

Introduction of 
revenue 
management 
policies to 
stakeholders. 

Number of policy 
roll-out session 
held 

  7 7   Target achieved N/A 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag

em
en

t 

an
d 

V
ia

bi
lit

y 

A
ss

et
s 

an
d

 
L

ia
b

ili
ty

 

m
an

ag
e

m
en

t 
U

pd
at

ed
 

fix
ed

 
as

se
ts

 

re
gi

st
er

 
by

 

30
 

Ju
ne

 

20
13

 

Appointment of 
Service Provider 
for Infrastructure 
Assets 

  1 1 R 1 000 000  Target achieved Payment to the 
appointed service 
provider only 
effected after year 
end. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Ensure updated 
fixed assets 
register 

  GRAP 
Compiant 
FAR by 31 

August 

Achieved   Target achieved Quarterly update of 
FAR for movable 
assets. 

 

 Reconcile fixed 
assets register 
and asset control 
account in G/L. 

  Monthly 
reconciliati

ons 

Achieved   Target achieved  N/A 

A
ss

et
s 

an
d

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
hy

si
ca

l 
ve

rif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

as
se

ts
 

Physically verify 
all movable 
municipal assets 
in all ANDM 
locations. 

  Quarterly 
reconciliati

ons (4) 

2   Due to vacant posts 
within the Asset 
Mngnt Unit Q2 was 
not completed and 
Q4 was done as 
part of the annual 
update of FAR. 

Engage additional 
resources within the 
BTO to provide 
support in 
performing quarterly 
reconciliations. 

Barcode all 
movable 
municipal assets 
procured. 

  All Achieved   Target achieved All assets are 
barcoded as they 
are acquired. 

A
ss

et
s 

an
d

 

L
ia

b
ili

ty
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

F
le

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 
al

l 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 a

ss
et

s 

Appoint insurer for 
municipal assets 

  Appointm
ent letter 

for insurer 

Achieved R1.8million R970k Target achieved  

Update the ANDM 
insurance portfolio 
with assets 

  On-going Achieved   Target achieved N/A 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

additions and 
update insurer 
accordingly. 

Ensure 
processing of all 
insurance claims 

  On-going Achieved   Target achieved N/A 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

V
ia

bi
lit

y 

Update and 
maintain fleet 
records 

Ensure physical 
verification of 
municipal fleet. 

  1 1   Target achieved  N/A 

Development and 
review of policies 
and procedures 

Council approved 
policies  

  1 1   Target achieved N/A 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 

al
l 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 

Update and 
complete a liability 
register; payment 
of installments 
and G/L recons. 

  Liability 
register 

Achieved   Target achieved N/A 

   Payment 
of 

installmen
t 

Achieved   Target achieved N/A 

  G/L 
recons 

Achieved   Target achieved N/A 

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 V
ia

b
ili

ty
 

In
ve

n
to

ry
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 a
ll 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

 Activate and 
Implement the 
stores module on 
SAMRAS 

  100% 60%   Not yet fully 
operational at 
Satellite offices as 
they do not have 
access to SAMRAS,  
also require 
additional training.   

  Full roll-out to be 
done in 2013/14 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Reconcile 
physical stock-
take to SAMRAS 
reports 

  Monthly 
Reconcilia

tions 

Performed 
at year 

end 

  Stock values on 
SAMRAS only 
captured effective 
from March 2013.   

Training of staff and 
install SAMRAS 
module to all 
satellite offices 

Conduct physical 
stock count at all 
stores. 

  100% 100%   Target achieved N/A 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 

V
ia

b
ili

ty
 

S
u

p
p

ly
 C

h
ai

n
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Demand 
Management 

Facilitate the 
development of a 
Annual 
Procurement 
Plan. 

  1 1   Target achieved Late submission by 
departments 
remains a 
challenge.  One on 
one sittings will be 
planned for 
2013/14. 

A
cq

ui
si

tio
ns

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t Ensure that all 

goods and 
services are 
procured in 
accordance with 
SCM Policy 

  100% 100%   Target achieved  For deviations, 
these are reported 
accordingly. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Ensure 
appointment of 
service providers 
in line with SCM 
Policy 

  List of 
awarded 

bids 

Achieved   Target Achieved N/A 

Ensure 
submission of 
monthly reports 
on all acquisitions 

  Monthly 
Reports 

Achieved   Target achieved Monthly S71 reports 
are submitted 
internally and 
externally. 

Ensure proper 
management of 
supplier database 

  Monthly 
Update 

Achieved   Target achieved  N/A 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Payroll 
management 

Ensure that 
Councilors and 
Officials as well 
as third party 
payments are 
effected promptly 

  Monthly Achieved   Target achieved N/A 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 

Ensure that all 
creditors are paid 
on a monthly 
basis 

  100% 100%   Target achieved  N/A 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Perform monthly 
creditors 
reconciliations 

  100% 100%   Target achieved  N/A 

F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

V
ia

b
ili

ty
 

 
B

u
d

g
et

in
g

 a
n

d
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

Approval of 
Annual Budget for 
2013/14 

 Budget 
timetable 

 Link IDP with 
budget 

 Departmental 
budget inputs 

 Draft budget 

 Budget 
advertisement 

 Consultation 
with relevant 
stakeholders 

  1 1   Target achieved Budget for 2013/14 
Adopted by council 
on 29 May 2013. 

R
ep

or
tin

g 

Timely 
submission of the 
Financial 
statements 

  1 1   Target achieved AFS for 2011/12 
submitted to AG on 
31 August 2012. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial 

Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement 

of target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 
Timely 

submission of 

monthly, 

quarterly, mid-

year reports 

  17 17   Target achieved 12 monthly reports, 
4 quarterly reports 
and 1 mid-year 
report. 
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KPA No 5:  Financial Viability and Management

T
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a

rg
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Target achieved Target partially achievd Target not achieved
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6. SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 

 

National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2012/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement of 

target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

S
pa

tia
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k District Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

Review and 

Implementation 

To have an SDF 

that promotes 

sustainable 

development 

through a 

framework plan 

that guides the 

development of 

Land Use 

Management 

Systems (LUMS) 

by Local 

Municipalities 

within district 

jurisdiction   

Approved District 
SDF and 
Implementation 
Plan incorporated 
on 2012/13 IDP 
and Budget. 

01 Spatial 
Developm

ent 
Framewor

k Plan 

Draft 
Document 

in place 

01 01 R0.00 R0.00 N/A N/A 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2012/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement of 

target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

S
pa

tia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

GIS Upgrade To maintain an 

accurate and 

consistent 

database of water 

infrastructure and 

other GIS 

information 

All new water and 
sanitation projects 
captured on the 
GIS data 

-Capturing 
of 8 Water 
Schemes. 

-
Procurem
ent of 10 

GPS 
Devices 

 
 
 

-05 
Hardware 
Maintenan

ce. 
-01 GIS 
Server 
setup. 

-
Maintenan
ce of GIS 
Software 

-02 (25%) 
Water 

Schemes 
captured. 

 
-10 

(100%) 
GPS 

Devices 
procured. 

 
-03 (60%) 
(Hardware 
maintaine

d. 
-01 GIS 
Server 

 
-Achieved 

Equipmen
t in good 
condition 

Service 
providers 
appointed 
to replace 

GIS 
equipment 

such as 
Plotter and 

source 
some 

necessary 
equipment 

such as 
laminato 

R200 000.00 R0.00 -GIS A3 colour 
printer taken for 
repairs.  
 
-There was a 
problem with the 
FLEX GEN System 
and therefore could 
not access budget 
for this project, 
hence orders for the 
appointed service 
providers could not 
be processed until 
end of financial year.  
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2012/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement of 

target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 

GIS Shared 

Service 

Implementation 

-To ensure LMs 

within the ANDM 

have access to 

GIS data and 

related services 

Upgrade ArcGIS 
Server to recent 
version. 
 
Upgrade the GIS 
Web Portal. 
 
Conduct 
Workshop to LMs 
on accessing GIS 
data via internet. 

  01 
 
 
 

01 
 
 
 

04 

01 
 
 
 

01 
 
 
 

00 

R500 000 R131 749.14 Procurement 
processes delayed 
appointment of 
Service provider to 
upgrade GIS web 
portal hence GIS 
workshops could not 
be conducted. 

Project to continue 
into 2013/14 
financial year. 

 

GIS Strategy -To have an 

informed guide for 

the current 

functioning and 

future 

development of 

the GIS unit. 

-Handover a 
complete GIS 
strategy. 

  01 GIS 
Strategy 

01 GIS  
Strategy 

R200 000 R154 500.00 Strategy still 
requires to be 
adopted by the 
council. 

Need to facilitate 
adoption of the 
strategy. 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2012/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement of 

target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 

GIS Data 

Maintenance 

Capturing all 

completed Water 

Supply Schemes 

Infrastructure 

-Complete & 

accurate 

settlements 

database 

. Filling gaps on 
existing Water 
Infrastructure data 
 
 
2.Capture drought 
relief projects 
 
 
 

1. Environmental 
Information 
Systems (EIS) 

2.  
4.Social 
Infrastructure and 
Tourist Facilities 
 
5.Sanitation 
Backlogs 
 
6. Settlement 
Names and 
Boundary 
Verification. 
Backlogs Survey. 

  06 water 
supply 

schemes 
 
 

02 
drought 

relief 
projects 

 
 

06 Urban 
Areas 

 
 
 

02 LM`s  
 
 

00 
 
 

04 LM`s  
 
 

06 water 
supply 

schemes 
 
 

01 Drought 
relief 

project 
 
 
 

04 Urban 
areas 

 
 
 

02 LM`s  
 
 

00  
 
 

04 LM`s  

R600 000 R 0.00 Procurement 
process took off 
later than target 
date. Some Projects 
were done in house 
and hence none 
expenditure.  

Projects are to be 
continued during the 
2013/14 financial 
year. 

National  

KPA 

Project Name Measurable 

Objective/s  

Key Performance 

Indicator/s (Unit 

Performance for 

2011/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual budget 

in Rands 

Expenditure by 

end of Financial 

Reasons for non-

achievement of 

Planned measures 

for improvement/ 
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of Measure) Annual Annual Year target Comments 

Target Actual Target Actual 

 

Development of 

Guidelines for 

Small Towns 

Restructuring 

To facilitate Urban 

Renewal of all 

Small Towns 

within the district 

by 2017 

undertake the 

reviewal of land 

use guidelines 

-Formulation of 

Terms of 

Reference 

-Procurement 

process 

N/A N/A 01 
Consolidat

ed 
Guidelines  
for Small 
Towns 

Restructuri
ng  

No 
Achievem
ent 

R450 000.00 R44 000.00  Procurement 
Processes Started 
late  

Finalisation of 
Procurement 
Processes Before 
the start of next 
financial year 

Nodal 

Development 

Frameworks 

To facilitate 

planning that 

guides future 

development of 

nodes 

Formulation of 

Terms of 

Reference 

-Procurement 

process 

N/A N/A 02 Nodal 
Developm

ent 
Framewor

k 

02 Nodal 
Developm

ent 
Framewor

ks 

R800 000.00 R800 000.00 None  None 

Spatial Planning 

(Capacity 

Support to LMs 

on SDF 

Reviews) 

To facilitate 

development or 

review of Spatial 

Development 

Frameworks for 

Mbizana and 

Ntabankulu LMs 

to guide future 

development. 

Terms of 

Reference 

 

 

Financial 

Capacity to LM` 

N/A N/A 02 LMs 02 LMs R1 100 000.00 R1000 000.00 None None 
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National  

KPA 

Project 

Name 

Measurable 

Objectives/s  

Key 

Performance 

Indicator/s 

(Unit of 

Measure) 

Performance for 

2012/12 

Performance for 

2012/13 

Annual 

budget in 

Rands 

Expenditure 

by end of 

Financial Year 

Reasons for 

non-

achievement of 

target 

Planned 

measures for 

improvement/ 

Comments Annual Annual 

Target Actual Target Actual 

Establishment of 

District Land 

Claims Task 

Team 

-To facilitate a 

25% settlement 

of Land Claims 

in ANDM by 

2017 

- Terms of 

Reference 

- Establishment 

of the Task 

Team 

-Task Team 

meetings 

N/A 
 

 

 

N/A 04 Task 
Team 

Meetings 

01 Task 
Team 

Meeting 

R250 000.00  Meetings did not sit 
due to non - 
availability of 
members 

To commence with 
the Task Team 
meetings on the 
beginning of the 
next financial year 

 Establishmen

t of District 

Planning 

Forum 

To have a 

functional 

Planning 

Forum by 2013 

that will 

coordinate 

Development 

Planning 

Activities 

across the 

district 

-Terms of 

Reference 

N/A N/A 06 

Meeting

s  

06 

Meeting

s 

R150 000.00 R0 None None  
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KPA No 6:  Spatial Development Planning
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1. OVERALL MUNCIPAL PERFORMANCE 2012/13 

 

The municipality planned and budgeted for a total of 100 projects or programmes for 2012/13 financial year.  The overall 

performance by the municipality as per the targets for 2012/13 can be summarized as follows: 

 

Municipal Performance 2012/13
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The performance of the municipality for 2012/13 is almost identically to the performance for 2011/12 where the municipality 

obtained 47% of targets achieved, 29% of targets partially achieved and 24% of targets that were not achieved.  The non-

achievement of municipal targets can be mainly associated with lack of human resources capacity where the municipality had 

vacancies and the fact that most plans or policies were developed but were not finally adopted by Council. 

 

 

 

____________________ 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

Date: 31/08/2013 


